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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the “Company’)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITRBES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of National Arts Entertainment and Culture
Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
to you the 2020 annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

Following years of investments and development,
the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio became an all-
round landmark of culture and entertainment and
attracted increasing number of tourists and shooting
crews. Nevertheless, the debts arising from the vast
investments of the Group in prior years casted significant
financial burden on the Group. The adverse effects of
debt financing towards the Group were revealed and
significantly increased the financial risk of the Group.
To mitigate the financial risk of the Group, the Group
commenced a debt restructuring exercise in 2019 and
the exercise was completed on 29 June 2020 by way
of issuing new shares and convertible bonds. Upon
completion of such exercise, the short term cash flow
pressure of the Group was greatly relieved.

2020 was a challenging year for the Group. The outbreak
of COVID-19 seriously impacted the global economy, and
the Group is in the entertainment and tourism sectors
which are heavily damaged by the pandemic. The
precautionary measure adopted to prevent COVID-19
severely impacted the operations of the Group, for the
whole 2020, the operation of the film studio and the hotel
were either suspended or could only offer a very limited
extent of services.
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Due to the unfavorable circumstances, the Group is
forced to change its operational model and numerous
projects of the Group could not be executed as planned.
The unexpected business risks that came with the
COVID-19 pandemic alerted the Group that a well-
diversified business portfolio is very important for the
sustainability and the long term development of the
Group’s business.

The completion of the debt restructuring exercise
enabled the Group to execute diversification by focusing
its resources to develop new business, the Group actively
sought breakthroughs in the digital technology areas
and two new businesses were launched by the Group
in 2021, namely digital commerce business and cross-
border E-commerce business. With the vast market of
the online commerce business, the Group expected that
these two new businesses will generate strong income
stream for the Group in the future. For more information
on the two businesses, please refer to the relevant
sections set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

Looking forward, apart from developing the abovesaid
new businesses, with the rapid development of the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
(the “Greater Bay Area”) and the support of local
governments, the Group will from time to time leverage
on its past successful experience in the film and
entertainment industry to continue developing its core
business by collaborating with various parties and in
various means, including but not limited to the expansion
of Xigiao National Arts Film Studio and developing new
film-related projects with the aims to bring additional
income to the Group and further enhanced the Group's
reputation as a southern studio center.

On the other hand, the Group will continue to seek new
opportunities so that the Group can enhance its business
portfolio as an all-rounded enterprise by proactively
participating in various new projects and investments
so as to broaden its revenue sources beyond its current
business. The Group will also consider fund-raising
activities so as to fuel its future development as well as
enable the Group to meet its future fund obligations.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to the
Company’s shareholders for their continuing support and
the Board members and staff for their dedication and
contributions.

Thank you for your support.
Chow Kai Weng
Chairman, Executive Director and

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 October 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W&

BUSINESS REVIEW

Xigiao National Arts Studio Project

Located in Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the
Group’s Xigiao National Arts Film Studio (the “Studio”)
and National Arts Resort Hotel (the “Hotel”) (collectively
the “Xiqiao National Arts Film Studio Project’) has
the view of Mount Xigiao which is known as one of the
national 5-star tourist attractions and has total developed
land area of 444,000 square meters. There are unique
film shooting areas throughout the Studio along with
theme parks, hotel and performing arts complexes. The
Studio incorporates sightseeing and recreational facilities
which make it the most international vacation resort in
Guangdong Province. Over the past years, the Studio
successfully organised a number of events, including
the “Fairy Aquatic Exhibition and Dinosaur Exhibition”,
“Boutique Lingnan Study Tour”, “National Arts Mid-
Autumn Festival Journey and Northern Lights Night”,
“June 1 Family Green Photography Tour”, etc. In addition,
the Group’s National Arts Brilliant Emperor Cinematic
Action Stunt Training Center ([FRZ 812 B & B) 115 H 42
FIF L), which combines films and televisions, culture
and tourism and teaching activities, aiming to nurture the
next generation of movie and television elites. Meanwhile,
the Group has participated in several charity groups
on education. The Studio cooperated with charitable
organisations such as Caritas and Po Leung Kuk to
organise study group events for students to participate
and to explore different culture and film production in the
Studio. The Group believes that the events held by the
Group will effectively improve the brand awareness of the
Studio and will push the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio
Project to the peak.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The valuation method in respect of the Studio has
changed from income approach to cost model due to
the impact of COVID-19 pandemic and to align the
accounting policy with industry practice resulting a
decrease in value. Nevertheless, the Group would not
exclude the possibility of increase in value after the ease
of COVID-19 pandemic.

Travel

National Arts Travel Limited (“NA Travel”) has been
established and commenced its business since 2015.
It provides one-stop travel services especially for
major organizations, associations and tourists with
“Diversification, Professionalism, and Internationalism” as
their principles, and formulates flexible and comfortable
travel plans and personalized products. To enhance
the comprehensive customer support and increase its
travel agency’s market competitiveness, NA Travel has
updated its accounting, inquiry and sales system in
2018. In addition to optimizing traditional group tours,
travel insurance, international flight and hotel booking,
it also organises customized group tours, providing
extraordinary experience for travelers, including private
tours, business trainings and activities, honeymoon
and wedding plans, cruise vacations, professional and
featured tours, etc. In 2019, NA Travel initiated the
“Charity Tours” (“E&Z ZH&”) in Zhaoging and Foshan for
large organizations and also arranged “Trip to Resort of
National Arts Studio” ("‘BIZHRKBEERE ZHK") for

disabled group to fulfil corporate social responsibilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In addition, in order to diversify its product lines, NA Travel
established “Skyyer Travel (F§< £ &#%%) ” in 2018 through
the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. Skyyer Travel
presents a fresh brand image with the slogan “What Travel
means is ...... you decide to go and take action! (% 5t
Z......08 F8R9 - JLEY) 7. It specializes in designing “Tailor-made
tours for sport, hobby and industry” and invites various
celebrities as guests to create “Star-class Travel” which
categorizes into Sport-themed Travel (golfing, marathon,
cycling, basketball, table tennis, darts, kung fu, swimming,
diving, dragon boat, yoga, dancing), Art-themed Travel
(painting, photography, tea ceremony, music), Taste-themed
Travel (food and wine tasting), Religion-themed Travel
(Christianity, Buddhism, Taoism), etc., providing customers
with unique experiences of in-depth tours. In 2019, to make
its products more international and specialized, Skyyer
Travel expanded beyond Asia for the first time and entered
regions in Europe and the Middle East, including seeking
the famous red wine producing areas in Bordeaux, France,
visiting luxury and world-renowned buildings in Dubai and
Abu Dhabi. Meanwhile, Skyyer Travel organized “Theme
Activity Travel”, including international darts tournament,
wing chun tournament, hung kuen tournament, concert and
beauty contest, etc. In the third quarter of 2019, Skyyer
Travel also participated in a Sports Expo and held “Skyyer
Travel Brand and Outstanding Athlete Award Ceremony”
for the first time in order to achieve branding and marketing
effects.

In order to align with the current education blueprint of
“Broadening horizon and life-long learning”, NA Travel
established “National Arts Cultural Study Tour Expert (
E L EHER) " through the Travel Industry Council of
Hong Kong at the beginning of 2019, which specializes
in assisting primary and secondary schools, universities,
social groups and institutions to plan and organize
different cultural exchange and education activities with
foreign counterparts. Under the mission that “Study tours
are provided to broaden horizon, acquire knowledge, and
have real experience” and the philosophy of “Exploring
the world, making friends and enriching life”, it provides
professional itinerary advice and considerate services,
coupled with new elements, including trainings for
language, interests, history, arts, science and technology,
leadership and team building. Study tours cover Foshan,
Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Dongguan, Shanxi in China,
Taiwan, Korea, Singapore, etc. The goal is to make
sure that every participant will have an unforgettable
experience. In order to align with the development of
the Greater Bay Area, National Arts Cultural Study Tour
Expert organized a corporate inspection delegation
themed “Greater Bay Area Youth Entrepreneurship
Tour” spanning Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Foshan and
Dongguan in late 2019, which broke with traditional
tourist routes for scenic spots, instead, it opened a new
era for entrepreneurs to study and exchange in famous
enterprises. In the coming future, National Arts Cultural
Study Tour Expert will set to input more resources to
develop into the Greater Bay Area, so as to embrace new
market trends.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Furthermore, at the end of 2019, NA Travel and National
Arts Cultural Study Tour Expert entered into a “Greater
Bay Area Strategic Cooperation Agreement” with a media
organization, aiming to implement a number of Greater
Bay Area cultural and business exchanges and inspection
activities, and assist industrial leaders and potential elites
to have a deeper understanding on the unique culture
and local customs and practices of the “9+2” cities in the
Greater Bay Area, so that they can be well prepared to
cultural differences before tapping into the Greater Bay
Area market.

In order to give the Group’s customers a better
understanding on the products and policies of the
Group’s travel agency, the Group launched various travel
publications, including: “Special Edition for Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (five themes:
Corporate Exchange, Volunteer Services, Team Building,
Experience Activities, Exploring the Ancients and
Seeking its Origin)”, “Guidebook for Skyyer Theme Travel
Collection”, “Study Tour Special Edition for National
Arts Cultural Study Tour Expert”, “Recommendation for
Special Package Tour of NA Travel”, etc.

Currently, NA Travel has expanded its digital marketing
business in all directions, and entered into a platform
cooperation agreement with a travel platform operated
by a large Chinese-funded institution in early 2020. In the
future, NA Travel will also focus on tourism technology to
tap into their huge market potential.

On the other hand, NA Travel and Skyyer Travel are also
committed themselves to social responsibilities, including
the “1st Hong Kong Youth Festival — Sports Carnival and
Record-setting Darts Event (E— 2 & B S F/H— B 55
FEET ARZERIALEK) ", “Sowers Action — Boundless
Teaching Charity Concert (i Bl 178) — 8 # BB &= 5 4
)", “Kind-Hearted Fellow under “Smiling Again, Hong
Kong People” Program (B A XA BRI ENSOE
17% )" etc. In the future, they will continue to actively
participate in charitable activities and pay back to society
to pursue the Group’s aspiration for public welfare.

In 2020, all outbound and inbound tourism businesses
were badly hit by the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19")
pandemic and came to a halt during the whole year.
The uncertainties are expected to continue until the first
half of 2021. However, by virtue of NA Travel’'s well-
established and well-planned foundation as well as NA
Travel’s competitive advantages, including the “Themed
Interest Tours” and the “Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area Inspection Tour” which have been
developed and deployed, the Group is confident that the
travel business will have a steady and robust rebound in
the fourth quarter of 2021 when the pandemic is over.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Film Shooting Base

The film shooting base is the core project of the Xigiao
National Arts Film Studio Project. It covers 374,000
square meters of land, including a lake of 120,000 square
meters and numbers of indoor and outdoor studios which
are equipped with excellent and comprehensive ancillary
facilities in order to provide the Southern China and
foreign shooting crews the most realistic and delicate
scenes.

By virtue of the extensive choices of scenes, supreme
geographical location and multifunctional ancillary
services, the film shooting base has been heavily used by
the production crews. Since 2017, the Group has taken
the role of rental agent by entering into several rental
agreements with a number of companies renting film
shooting equipment. The partners provide the plentiful
props, attires and high-tech shooting equipment including
lots of ancient costumes of Ming and Qing dynasties,
antique furniture, simulated ordnance and other
performing props. It generates substantial revenue to
the Group. Besides creating enormous synergistic effect
for the Group, it also enhances the Group’s capability of
provision of ancillary services in respect of film shooting,
and also facilitates centralization of the industry as well
as strengthen the Group’s competitiveness among its
peers. On 4 January 2018, Foshan Bureau of Culture,
Publication, Radio, Film and Television (the “Bureau”)
approved a few wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company to assist the Bureau in the operation and
expansion (i) that would facilitate film enterprises from
various regions moving into Foshan, policy presentation,
solicitation of investment and funding as well as shooting,
etc.; (i) of digital studio and film location construction
projects; and (iii) in respect of diversification of props and
equipment portfolio, leasing and consolidation of props
leasing business.

The Group is also the first enterprise designated by
the Foshan Government to help building Foshan as the
largest operation hub for props and equipment in Foshan,
with focus on film and television industry, which boosted
the reputation of the Group in the industry, thereby
further consolidating the presence of the Studio in the
film and television industry in Southern China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Wedding Photography

The Group reached an agreement with a renowned
domestic wedding photography chain group in the fourth
quarter of 2013 to develop its brand-new wedding
photography business. Pursuant to the agreement, the
Group leased the Studio with an area of approximately
20 mu (13,333.33 square meters) for a term of 12 years
and the wedding photography company invested RMB10
million for the construction of scenic spots in different
styles such as European, Korean and Japanese styles.

Hotel

The 5-star Hotel located next to the Studio provides
over 350 suites facilitated from deluxe suites to signature
rooms. The Hotel offers a wide range of dining choices
and high-quality food services, it has 6 specialties
restaurants with Chinese and foreign styles, offering high-
class food and wine from around the world. The Hotel
is also equipped with a variety of recreational facilities
such as Spa, gym room, swimming pools and tea house,
allowing travelers to enjoy themselves within the Hotel in
all respects including dining, drinking and entertainment.

In addition, the Hotel also provides catering services
and business centre, meeting rooms and lecture
halls, thereby satisfy essential needs and wants of the
customers. To boost high quality service, the Hotel
wishes to build strong communication among its staff by
organising group activities such as sport day, in order
to educate the staff of the importance of team work and
to raise spirit in the corporate environment. Besides, the
Hotel was awarded “19th Golden Horse Award of China
Hotel — Best Theme Hotel Resort of Greater Bay Area”
which recognized the corporate management quality and
service quality of the Hotel.

The Hotel has been designated as a quarantine hotel by
the Foshan Government since September 2020 as its
geographical location, ancillary facilities and ventilation
system meet the standards required by the government.

The valuation method in respect of the Hotel has
changed from replacement cost model to cost model
due to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic and to align
the accounting policy with industry practice resulting a
decrease in value. Nevertheless, the Group would not
exclude the possibility of increase in value after the ease
of COVID-19 pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEW R

Film Production

The Group spared no effort in promoting film culture
for many years such as production of and investment
in movie, microcinema and online TV programme to
promote the culture and the spirit of entertainment.

During 2016, the Group invested in the production of a
charity film named “Our Days in 6E”(F fIRI6EHL). The
theme of “Our Days in 6E” is in line with the current
social status, laden with educational significance as part
of its social responsibility. The Group expects to invest
more in the production of films of various themes with an
intention to step forward to the diversified film market.

During 2020, the Group invested in the production of
a new film, and it is currently in the stage of the post-
production.

Cinema

National Arts Films Production Limited (“NA Films”),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
has been cooperating with its joint venture for the
development of cinema business in a large shopping mall
in a transportation hub area of Zhuhai, Guangdong, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

NA Films held 60% equity interest in the joint venture.
The cinema boasts eight screens and a total of more than
730 seats. The cinema has commenced its operation
since May 2014 which supports further comprehensive
development of the Group’s entertainment and culture
business.

Artiste Management

To enhance the popularity of the Group’s artists such
as Rose Chan and Brian Yuen, the Group has arranged
a variety of performance opportunities including the
participation in the charity movie, “Our Days in 6E” (%
fH6E ¥I), the modern romantic movie, “Romantic
Marriage” (#EIHMEE) .

Besides, the Group also explores the PRC market for its
artists by making arrangement for them to participate
in live reality show and online drama to enhance their
popularity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Development of New Business

As the global economy was embracing new development
opportunities against headwinds, the Group actively
sought breakthroughs in new businesses in 2020 and
made efforts in the digital technology area. The Group’s
digital technology layout will first give priority to new
pattern of consumption and new economy, and focus on
“digital commerce” and “cross-border e-commerce”.

Digital commerce business

Guangzhou is the center of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, with its commerce and trade
industry ranking first in China in terms of development
and scale. According to the policies of the Guangzhou
Government, the Guangzhou Government will devote
efforts in building a pilot zone for new commerce and
trade innovation cluster in Guangzhou in the future,
while Guangzhou International Commodity Exhibition
& Trade City will become the core area. Currently, the
trade city focuses on the wholesale of daily necessities
and exquisite snacks, with accumulative transaction
scale exceeding RMB200 billion, being in an upward
development cycle. Guangzhou National Arts Huiying
Film & Television Co., Ltd. (BN REE X Z R EEER
A 7)) (“Huiying”), entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement with partners including Guangdong
International Commodity Exhibition & Trade City Co.,
Ltd., and jointly established Guangdong Lingbian Digital
Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (BREEH T %
B AR A A) (“Lingbian Digital”). Lingbian Digital was
licensed to be the sole value-added service management
company in Guangzhou International Commodity
Exhibition & Trade City. The revenue related to Lingbian
Digital will neveal in 2021 financial statement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEW R

Cross-border E-commerce Business

The Group has always been determined to actively
embrace the new economy and explore other
development opportunities, and is committed to
seeking a diversified business layout. In particular, to
set a footprint in the digital e-commerce business is
an important part of the diversified business strategy
of the Group. During the year, the Group established
National Arts Digital Technology Co., Ltd. ( BZ &5k
AR AQF) (“NA Digital”), to vigorously expand its
cross-border digital e-commerce and digital marketing
business and achieve integrated marketing of contents,
channels and traffic. Its principal businesses include
market development, customer relationship maintenance,
project strategy, platform channel, execution and
coordination services, as well as the operation of
online service platforms and production of content for
influencers and artistes, targeting the markets in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. NA
Digital boasts a digital e-commerce service team with
deep understanding of domestic and overseas markets,
premium brands and product networks, and maintains
in-depth cooperation with major social and e-commerce
platforms to provide full-chain services for the promotion
of digital e-commerce of cross-border brands in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

The “Bay Area Cloud Warehouse (& ZE &) ", a digital
technology-focused industrial cluster platform under
NA Digital, also officially established presence in the
Guangzhou International Commodity Exhibition & Trade
City jointly established by the Group and Guangzhou
Commercial Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. ( EN
Bt EERKREBEEBR A A ) (“Guangzhou Commercial
Holdings”), a wholly state-owned enterprise under
Guangzhou government, marking another milestone of
the Group’s development in digital e-commerce matrix.

As a cross-border export consumer service platform, Bay
Area Cloud Warehouse focuses on digital technology,
and leverages on the Group’s entertainment, film and
television ecosystem to empower the development of
the platform. It aims to build a world-class marketing
platform with regional synergy by gathering world-class
quality products, coordinating and promoting resources,
and adopting the new model of combining online and
offline advantages.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the fourth quarter of 2020, the Group invited one of
the most representative industrial and commercial groups
in Hong Kong, the Youth Committee of the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong (the “CMA
Youth Committee”), which gathered the resources of
many young entrepreneurs and manufacturers, to support
the launch of products under the cooperation program of
BuyLive (a new e-commerce live streaming platform) and
ViuTV. In 2021, the Group once again cooperated with a
number of famous brands of the CMA Youth Committee
through the “Skyyer Live-streaming Sale for Chinese New
Year (BS S EREMBERT) "

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the digital
e-commerce business actively made deployment to
demonstrate the development potential of the Group
and the importance of digital e-commerce business
development. It also marked the development
advantages and direction of NA Digital’s new digital
commerce business layout planning featuring “service-
originated aggregation, aggregation-driven transactions,
transaction-generated data, and data-based finance”.

The PRC team of the Group includes talented staffs who
have extensive knowledge of policies and regulations in
cross-border e-commerce and owns practical operating
experiences in several ecommerce channels.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
has successfully established an online flagship store on
a well-known PRC ecommerce platform, Tmall Global.
Following this success, the Group will continue to
develop other flagship stores on various ecommerce
platforms, including JD.com and Pinduoduo.com. Aside
from focusing on the current establishment of channels
on numerous platforms, the Group also fixates on the
development of different brands and targets customer
groups globally in order to provide a comprehensive sales
and distribution solutions. At the same time, the Group
takes its advantages in the coalesce supply chains, such
as global distribution strategies and private channels
distribution strategies so as to cover all businesses online
and offline worldwide.

Based on the rapid market development and staggering
growth of consumer powers on cross-border ecommerce
market, the Group will increase its efforts in ecommerce
business of both importation of high-quality foreign goods
and exportation of domestic products in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic to the Group

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the
operation of the Studio and the Hotel has been
temporarily suspended since 24 January 2020 and
29 January 2020 respectively (the “Temporary
Suspension”). In view of the relief of the epidemic in
the PRC, the operation of the Studio and the Hotel
has resumed from 16 May 2020. As the Hotel has
been designated as a quarantine hotel by the Foshan
Government since September 2020, it was required to
be temporarily closed to the public and only used for
serving guests who are subject to quarantine coming
from abroad.

Since the Group’s business was adversely affected in the
early stage of the COVID-19 pandemic, the management
realised that a single business was exposed to the risk of
force majeure. Therefore, the Group has been planning
to diversify its business. In late 2020, the management
adjusted the Group’s business to develop the digital
commerce business.

FUTURE PROSPECT

Benefiting from the opportunities brought by the
construction of the Belt and Road Initiative, the
development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area, as well as the opening of the Hong
Kong section of the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Express Rail Link and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao
Bridge, the China National Tourism Administration is
able to bring more convenience to overseas visitors to
travel within the Greater Bay Area, strengthen market
supervision, promote marketing and cooperation, and
support the industry to develop more “one travel with
multi-stops” tourism products. Hong Kong may become
a “transit station” in the Greater Bay Area, and travel
agencies are expected to design more intra-Bay tourism
products, such as corporate inspection tour, film-induced
tourism and special interest group tour, in response to
the development of the Greater Bay Area.

With aging population, more senior people choose to
travel abroad after retirement. Travel agencies will design
more medium to short itineraries, and expand the cruise
market to provide a more diverse travel experience to
cater the needs of the senior people. As young people
pay more attention to tourism and cultural experience,
in-depth travelling is increasingly popular among them.
Therefore, the travel agencies will design tours with more
characteristics, such as sports tourism, art tourism,
experience tourism and religious tourism, in order to
attract young travelers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The demand for business travel is increasing, and the
opening of the two major infrastructures, namely, the
Hong Kong section of the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Express Rail Link and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-
Macao Bridge, has greatly enhanced the advantages of
connection between Hong Kong and the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. Travel agencies are
expected to expand tourism in related fields, cooperate
with the Group’s resort hotels and studios, and launch
corporate training and communication experiences and
theme activity tourism to meet the needs of corporate
customers.

Furthermore, in order to diversify business and disperse
risks, the Group has further expanded its digital
e-commerce and digital marketing business, including
establishing strategic partnerships with different brands
and platforms. The Group’s Bay Area Cloud Warehouse
has integrated resources of multiple parties in conjunction
with the matrix strategy of Guangzhou International
Commodity Exhibition & Trade City to provide one-stop
solutions. It will focus on digital trade and exhibition
platform to develop four major service ecosystems,
namely intellectual property service system, foreign trade
service system, business expansion services and chain
financial services (33 & B ARTS) , with a view to the
strategic ecological development of “one center, four
major services”. It aims to provide one-stop cross-border
e-commerce services to brand owners, including product
selection, warehousing, logistics, customs clearance
and online store operation. As a pioneer in the digital
e-commerce industry in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, the Group’s digital technology
division is expected to play a big role in boosting its
business, and will become a new profit growth driver
promoting the steady improvement of its performance.

In the future, the Group will exploit its geographical
location in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area, one of the four major bay areas in the world,
and upgrade its business operations. In addition to
enhancing research in education field, the Group will
earnestly develop digital technology to empower eight
aspects, namely smart intelligent property rights, trade
and exhibition, cross-border, membership, public domain,
private domain, ecological system and finance. It is
expected that more quality products, resources and
channels will join hands to establish a foothold in the
Greater Bay Area and go global.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In addition, following the emerging trends of cross-
border e-commerce and staggering growth of consumer
powers, the Group will emphasize on the development of
its e-commerce business inspect of continue to develop
multi-channel selling by setting up flagship stores on
various well-known PRC ecommerce platforms, including
JD.com and Pinduoduo.com, and also increase its efforts
in e-commerce business of both importing high-quality
foreign goods and exporting domestic products in the
future. Meanwhile, the Group is planning to expand its
e-commerce business globally by cooperating with global
brands and partner companies and develop its superior
strategies of global and private coalesce supply chains,
in order to achieve the goal of “Global is Local, Local is
Global”.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

With the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
Temporary Suspension, the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2020 decreased drastically when
compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Nevertheless, following the Temporary Suspension, the
direct costs of the Group were also reduced and the
Group has been operating at minimal costs so as to
maintain its necessary operation.

Given the fact that (a) most of the hotel properties and
film studio held by listed companies in Hong Kong in the
hotel and theme park industries are accounted for using
the cost model; and (b) the effect of COVID-19 pandemic
on unexpected fluctuation in properties value, during the
year, the Group aligned its accounting policy with the
industry practice and stated its hotel properties and its
film studio at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. This change in accounting policy has
resulted in a decrease in the value of the hotel properties
and film studio owned by the Group. Under the impact
of the force majeure caused by the COVID-19 pandemic,
the profitability of the hotel properties and film studio did
not decrease as a result of the reduction in value. The
Group is confident that the business and profitability of
its hotel properties and film studio will gradually resume
to the previous level upon the ease of the COVID-19
pandemic.

During the year under review, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$30.35 million, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$105.57 million as
compared to that in 2019. The decrease in revenue was
mainly attributable to the Temporary Suspension. The
operation of the Studio and the Hotel was resumed from
16 May 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Staff costs for the year under review decreased to
approximately HK$53.37 million from approximately
HK$58.02 million in 2019, representing an decrease
of approximately HK$4.65 million. Such decrease was
mainly due to the Temporary Suspension during the year
under review.

Other operating expenses for the year under review
decreased to approximately HK$55.66 million from
approximately HK$126.02 million in the corresponding
period in 2019. The Group recorded a decrease in other
operating expenses of approximately HK$70.36 million
due to the Temporary Suspension during the year under
review.

Finance costs for the year under review decreased to
approximately HK$150.28 million from approximately
HK$244.43 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. Interest expenses of approximately HK$94.15
million included in the finance costs were accrued
interest on bonds, loan from shareholders and unsecured
other borrowings, which were settled by way of issuance
of the convertible bonds and new shares of the Company
on 29 June 2020 pursuant to the Group’s restructuring
transaction.

Gain on financial restructuring of approximately
HK$805.66 million was recorded during the year under
review. Such impact arose from the difference between
the carrying amount of liabilities settled of approximately
HK$2,062.12 million and the fair value of the convertible
bonds and the news shares of the Company issued of
approximately HK$1,228.15 million and equity settled
share-based payment expenses of approximately
HK$28.31 million under the Group’s restructuring
transaction, details of which are set out in the paragraphs
headed “Restructuring Transaction” and “Scheme of
Arrangement” below. Nevertheless, the impact was non-
cash item and does not have any real impacts on the
operations and cash flows of the Group during the year
under review.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recorded a net profit of approximately HK$43.49 million
as compared to a net loss of approximately HK$605.24
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Such
increase in the net profit was mainly due to the gain on
financial restructuring during the year under review.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources REEERMBER
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
(Audited) (Audited)
(EBERZ) (&2 Z)
Current assets B EE 102,766 130,713
Current liabilities nEAE 275,882 1,946,600
Current ratio mEh & 37.2% 6.7%

Current ratio as at 31 December 2020 was 37.2%
(2019: 6.7%). As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s
total positive cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$12.60 million (2019: positive cash and
cash equivalents approximately HK$3.67 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately HK$173.12
million. In addition, due to the outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic, the core business as well as the fundraising
activities of the Group have been severely affected.
These conditions indicate that there may exist a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Notwithstanding the existence of these indicators, the
Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate for the
consolidated financial statements to be prepared on
the assumption that the Group will continue to operate
as a going concern. In order to improve the Group’s
financial position, immediate liquidity and cash flows, and
otherwise to sustain the Group as a going concern, the
Directors have adopted several measures, including the
following:

(a)  Extension of the Group’s other borrowing

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the Group has renegotiated the maturity date
of other borrowings and other payables and
accruals of approximately and HK$64,901,000
and HK$55,231,000 respectively. Those creditors
extended the maturity date for a two-years period.

(b)  Credit facilities obtained after the end of
the reporting period

On 2 September 2021, the Group obtained a
loan with a principal amount of RMB29,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$35,366,000)
carrying an interest rate of 10% per annum,
available for the Group’s working capital and its
financial obligations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Possible fund-raising activities

Issue of Option Shares and Warrant
Shares

On 13 March 2020, the Company entered into
an agreement (the “SSF Agreement”) with GEM
Global Yield LLC SCS (the “Investor”), pursuant
to which the Investor has agreed to grant the
Company an option to require the Investor
to subscribe for the shares of the Company
(the “Shares”) (the “Share Subscription
Facility”) and the Company has agreed to issue
383,000,000 warrants (the “Warrants”) to the
Investor.

Under the Share Subscription Facility, the
Company has right to request the Investor to
subscribe for the Shares at a price which is 90%
of the average closing price of last 10 trading days
immediately following the delivery of subscription
notice by the Company to the Investor, but not
lower than HK$0.23 per Share (the “Option”). The
Option is exercisable by the Company for 3 years,
commencing on 13 March 2020. The aggregate
subscription price under the Share Subscription
Facility is HK$2,350,000,000.

The Warrants carry a right to the Investor to
subscribe for up to a total of 383,000,000 Shares
at a price of HK$0.23 per Shares for 3 years,
commencing on the date of the satisfaction or
the fulfilment of conditions precedent to the SSF
Agreement.

The issuance of the Shares under the Share
Subscription Facility and the Warrants is subject
to the approval from the Stock Exchange and the
Shareholders.

The SSF Agreement and all actions taken or to
be taken by the Company pursuant to the SSF
Agreement were generally and unconditionally
approved, ratified and confirmed and the specific
mandates was granted to the Directors to allot
and issue 383,000,000 Warrant Shares at the
exercise price of HK$0.23 each (subject to
adjustment) in the SGM held on 5 October 2020.
The warrants were issued by the Company in
January 2021.

Details of the SSF Agreement, the issue of the
Option Shares and the Warrants are set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 13 March
2020, 27 July 2020, 31 August 2020, the
Company’s circular dated 11 September 2020
and the Company’s poll results announcement
dated 5 October 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Issue of Convertible Bonds

On 17 April 2021, the Company entered into
the subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”) with the GEM Global Yield, LLC
SCS (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which the
Subscriber has agreed to subscribe for, and
the Company agreed to issue, the convertible
bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$25,000,000 (the “2021 Convertible Bonds”).

The 2021 Convertible Bonds with a principal
amount of HK$25,000,000 were issued by the
Company with carrying a coupon rate of 4 % to
the Subscriber for term of three years on 27 May
2021. The net proceeds from the issue of the
2021 Convertible Bonds were approximately
HK$25,000,000 and are used for the Group’s
working capital and the settlement of professional
fees.

(d) Various cost control measures

The management of the Group plans to improve
the Group’s financial performance by taking
steps to reduce discretionary expenses and
administrative costs.

Nevertheless, should the Group fail to implement the
measure as mentioned above, it might not be able to
continue to operate as a going concern, and adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying value
of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for further liabilities which might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

On the basis of the foregoing, and after assessing the
Group’s current and forecasted cash positions, the
Directors are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
in full the Group’s financial obligations as they fall due
for the period of twelve months from 31 December 2020.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared on the going concern basis.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 17 October 2002. The capital of
the Company comprises only ordinary shares. As at
31 December 2020, 7,423,868,369 ordinary shares were
issued and fully paid.

EEEWR DT

BEXRERARILE

ARARBROR_ZEE-_F+A+ELHEBIFR
GEMtm - AQARBAERSEBER R_Z-F
F+=-A=+—H" A7,423,868,3690% 31T &
HEBRREBK-

2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
Amount Relative Amount Relative
&% 1H ¥ ok FEE
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
F#ERT % FET %
Bank overdrafts RITHEX - 0% 5,778 0.3%
Loans from shareholders EERER 90,023 10.3% 589,457 34.9%
Borrowings B 154,560 17.6% 227,040 13.4%
Bonds BEH - 0% 1,153,283 68.3%
Promissory note TS 48,463 5.5% 115,197 6.8%
Convertible bonds Al {15 5 866,016 98.8% - 0%
Lease liabilities HEas 35,416 4.0% 29,763 1.8%
Total borrowings ER4@zE 1,194,478 136.2% 2,120,518 125.5%
Equity % (317,738) (36.2%)  (431,283) (25.5%)
Total capital employed FriE M ERNEBE 876,740 100% 1,689,235 100%
The Group’s gearing ratio (i.e. the total borrowings to the RZEZFF ﬁ +—B AEBENELSE
total capital employed) was approximately 136.2% as at BLEER(AMERBEGRUFMERANERNRTE)NA
31 December 2020 (2019: 125.5%). 136.2% (—ZZ&— j'LE 125.5% ) °
Foreign Exchange Exposure 9h BE L g

The Group’s reporting currency is expressed in HKS$.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, most of the
transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group were
denominated in HK$ and RMB. During the year under
review, since the Group had both HK$ and RMB receipts
and payments, the net RMB exposure was not significant.
The Board considers that the Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk was not significant; therefore, no hedging
transaction was made during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had the following
capital commitments:

BEXRiE

RZEZZEF+-_A=+—H AEEBFUTER
HEHE

2020 2019
—TEE =—NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TAET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Contracted but not provided for: HESIEE ST -F
Construction of properties ESELS 85,239 78,389
Authorised but not contracted for: EHEERRETAY -
Construction of properties (Note) YRR (F1) 356,506 334,411
Note: Capital commitment for construction in properties it V) 5 AR A B AR B A R B 43 1L B R AR I %
related to capital commitment for construction of film BIEHEARFEEBE - BRERBERAA (XA

studio and hotel in Foshan, the PRC. The authorised
amount was approved by the Directors according to
the land lease agreements signed between Lux Unicorn
Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and the local authority in Foshan, the PRC, in relation
to the leasing of lands for development of tourism and
related entertainment business and hotel operations.
The completion of constructions and commencement
of operations of the projects shall be within three and
four years respectively from the signing of the lease
agreements.

Future Plans for Substantial Investments or
Capital Assets

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 13 December 2017, Foshan Guohao Theme
Park Management Company Limited (1L HE 2 &
EEEHMRAET) (‘Guohao Theme Park”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into
a subscription agreement with Guangdong Hongtu
Guangdian Investment Co., Ltd. (EXRLBEEXERE
22 7)) (“GD Hongtu”), pursuant to which GD Hongtu
will make a capital injection of RMB20 million into the
Guohao Theme Park which is the project company for
the second phase development of National Arts Film
Studio (the “Second Phase Project”). The Second
Phase Project is planned to have indoor studio and
boutique hotel to be constructed next to the first phase
of the Studio and the Hotel.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
plan for substantial investments or capital assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 409
(2019: 505) staff based in the PRC and Hong Kong.
The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performances, experiences and the prevailing industry
practices. In addition to basic salaries and mandatory
provident fund, staff benefits including medical coverage
scheme and share options are offered.

The Group’s remuneration policy was reviewed
periodically by the remuneration committee and the
Board’s remuneration is determined by reference to
market terms, company performance, and individual
qualifications and performance. The Group aimed to
recruit, retain and develop competent individuals who
were committed to the Group’s long-term success and
growth. Remunerations and other benefits of employees
were reviewed annually in response to both market
conditions and trends, and were based on qualifications,
experience, responsibilities and performance.

The current remuneration of directors and key
management is determined by the individuals
performance and market trends.

During the year under review, the Group has not
experienced any significant problems with its employees
or disruption to its operation due to labour disputes
nor has it experienced any difficulties in the recruitment
and retention of experienced staff. The Directors believe
that the Group has a good working relationship with its
employees.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Kai Weng, aged 36, joined the Group in
January 2010. Mr. Chow holds a Bachelor Degree of
Business Administration with previous experiences in
media and financial industries. Mr. Chow was appointed
as an executive Director on 25 March 2011 and as the
vice chairperson of the Board on 5 August 2016. He was
subsequently appointed as the chairman of the Company
on 4 May 2018 and the chief executive officer and the
compliance officer of the Company on 13 June 2018.
On 14 May 2019, Mr. Chow was re-designated from the
chairman of the Company to the associate chairman of
the Company. On 22 July 2021 Mr. Chow was appointed
as the chairman of the Company. Mr. Chow is also the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Board and
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun, aged 30, joined the Group in
August 2013 and has been promoted as the financial
controller of the Group since November 2016. Before
joining the Group, he worked in an accountancy firm
for two years. Mr. Cheng is primarily responsible for the
financial and treasury management of the Group and
the overall management of the operations of the Group.
Mr. Cheng was appointed as an executive Director on
4 May 2018. Mr. Cheng is also a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Ho Leung Ting, aged 33, joined the Group in
December 2014 and has been promoted as the financial
manager of the Group since November 2016. Mr. Ho
holds a bachelor’s degree in professional accounting.
Mr. Ho is primarily responsible for the financial and
treasury management of the Group and the overall
management of the operations of the Group. Mr. Ho was
appointed as an executive Director on 15 November
2018. Mr. Ho is also a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company.
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Dr. LAM, Lee G. (“Dr. Lam”), aged 62, was appointed as
a non-executive Director in June 2017. He holds a BSc in
Sciences and Mathematics, an MSc in Systems Science
and an MBA from the University of Ottawa in Canada,
an LLB (Hons) in law from Manchester Metropolitan
University in the UK, a LLM in Law from the University of
Wolverhampton in the UK, an MPA and a PhD from the
University of Hong Kong.

Dr. Lam is currently an independent non-executive
director of each of CSI Properties Limited (Stock Code:
497), Vongroup Limited (Stock Code: 318), Mei Ah
Entertainment Group Limited (Stock Code: 391), Elife
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 223), Haitong Securities
Company Limited (Stock Code: 6837, 600837 on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange), Hang Pin Living Technology
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1682), Kidsland
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2122),
Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
337), and Huarong International Financial Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 993), and a non-executive director
of each of Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 188), China LNG Group Limited (Stock
Code: 931), Mingfa Group (International) Company
Limited (Stock Code: 846) and Hong Kong Aerospace
Technology Group Limited (formerly known as Eternity
Technology Holdings Limited, Stock Code: 1725), the
shares of all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Dr. Lam is also an independent non-executive director of
Asia-Pacific Strategic Investments Limited (Stock code:
5RA), Alset International Limited (Stock Code: 40V),
Beverly JCG Limited (Stock Code: VFP), and Thomson
Medical Group Limited (Stock Code: A50), the shares
of all of which are listed on the Singapore Exchange.
Dr. Lam is an independent non-executive director of
AustChina Holdings Limited (Stock Code: AUH), whose
shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange
and TMC Life Sciences Berhad (Stock Code: 0101),
whose shares are listed on the Bursa Malaysia, and a
non-executive director of Jade Road Investments Limited
(Stock Code: JADE), whose shares are listed on the
London Securities Exchange.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEERE

HRE\L (IMBEL]) 625 R _F—LF X
ABRZERFRTEST MELHEMEXNEANE
REZHBEREBBET ZGNBRIRIBER
RE2 - RESHMBRH AR ERREEL
B REABEERBAZBRLBM -FEX
B ARTBELREEH LB -

MELTREFERRBIEGR AT (RHOKR:
497) ENEEBR AR (BRMHRIK:318) - =
TIRLENEBMBERAF (BRMARFE:391) - 5
EEERBR AT (BRMHMRIE:223)  BEBEFR
B BERAR (BRMDARSE: 6837 MR EBES
RS BT R 5 R 600837) @ AEERKE
AR AR (RMHRE:1682) « S X015 B B 4%
EBR AT (B ARSE:2122) 4k FEERE
RAR(RHORF:B7) RERBEBFSRBIZRE
RAE (RMRIR:993) 2 BUFNITES I B
NEEECRIZERERAF (BRMHMAIT:188) -
FEXAREEBR AT (RMHMIE:931) - B
S8 (EBR)BRAT (BRMHDR: 846) REEM
ABEEEERAA (FIH: BEERBIERER
NECRORIRA728) ZIERTESE - MLEAF
N A Z R0 R B 22 BT _E T e 1% 7T & Asia-Pacific
Strategic Investments Limited (XD 5% : 5RA)
Alset International Limited (B {3 1% 5% : 40V ) -
Beverly JCG Limited (B9 X85 : VFP ) & Thomson
Medical Group Limited (%3 5% : A50) 2 L IE
HITES MEASREZRHERITNEES
REMEM - MIELTHRABBRMNELZIZHALETA
&) AustChina Holdings Limited ( B3 5% : AUH)
N B %P3 %2 5 Fr (Bursa Malaysia) £ TMCAE
wRE(RHBARI:0101) ZBUIERNTEETUAR
BBFEHFR ST LT AGFJade Road Investments
Limited (B9 3% : JADE) 2 3ESATTE F -

HEREXECEEBERR T —FT_ZFRH

29



-30,1

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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In the past three years, Dr. Lam was an independent
non-executive director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group
Limited (stock code: 8148) up to 1 March 2021, Huarong
Investment Stock Corporation Limited (stock code: 2277,
privatized on 12 November 2020) up to 31 December
2020, Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
404) up to 27 September 2019 (the shares of which were
delisted on the Stock Exchange in December 2019),
Glorious Sun Enterprises Limited (stock code: 393) up to
31 August 2019, Mingfa Group (International) Company
Limited (Stock Code: 846) up to 23 April 2020, and Xi'an
Haitiantian Holdings Co., Ltd. (stock code: 8227) up to
23 July 2018, and he was also a non-executive director
of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited (stock code: 455) up
to 26 August 2021, China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial
Group Limited (stock code: 412) up to 14 May 2020 and
Green Leader Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 0061)
up to 22 July 2019 and the shares of all of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. He was an independent
non-executive director of each of Sunwah International
Limited (stock code: SWH, a company listed on the
Toronto Stock Exchange) up to 30 June 2021, Top Global
Limited (stock code: BHO, a company previously listed
on Singapore Exchange and privatized on 17 August
2021) up to 31 August 2021.

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert, aged 64, holds a Bachelor
Degree in Commerce and is a practicing Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chui was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director in May 2009.
Mr. Chui is currently the chairman of each of the audit
committee and the remuneration committee of the Board.
Mr. Chui is a fellow member of the Hong Kong institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants. Mr. Chui is currently
an independent non-executive director of Tse Sui Luer
Jewellery (International) Limited (Stock Code: 417), Wing
Lee Property Investments Limited (Stock Code: 864),
Asia Cassava Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
841) and Huiyin Holdings Group Limited (Stock Code:
1178) the shares of these companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and F8 Enterprises
(Holdings) Group Limited (Stock Code: 8347), the shares
of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. He
is also a director of a number of private companies and
associations.
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Mr. Li Kit Chee, aged 66, has more than 30 years’
experience in auditing, accounting and secretarial
services. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor Degree of social
sciences (with honours) in The University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Li is also a fellow member of The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants. Mr. Li is a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a managing director of Arthur Li,
Yau & Lee C.P.A. Limited. Mr. Li is a director of Cheong
Yip Secretary Limited, which is principally engaged in
corporate service related business. Mr. Li is currently an
independent non-executive director of Tysan Holdings
(Stock Code: 687), a company which shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Immediately prior
to his appointment as an independent non-executive
Director in June 2014, Mr. Li was an independent non-
executive director of First Credit Finance Group Limited,
a company which shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 8215) until he resigned in May
2014. Mr. Li was an independent non-executive director
of Zhongchang International Holdings Group Limited
(Stock Code: 859), a company which shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, until he resigned
in February 2018. Mr. Li is currently a member of each
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Board.

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred, aged 62, holds a bachelor
degree of Law with honours from The University of Hong
Kong. He is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong, and a
consultant lawyer of WT Law Offices and Lam, Lee & Lai
Solicitors & Notaries. He is a Civil Celebrant of Marriages
and he also holds a professional qualification of Estate
Agent’s (Individual) License in Hong Kong. Mr. Lam is a
Justice of Peace of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region and was awarded the Queen’s Badge of Honour
in January 1997. He is also a Deputy Commissioner
(Administration) of the Civil Aid Service and the former
chairman and current Director of Kwai Tsing District
Community Development Fund.

Mr. Lam was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 13 May 2009 and re-designated as a non-
executive Director from 3 February 2010. He was then
appointed as the vice-chairman of the Company from
5 August 2010. Mr. Lam subsequently resigned as vice
chairman and non-executive Director with effect from
11 July 2014.
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Mr. Lam was appointed as an executive director of Hong
Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (“Hong Kong
Resources”) (Stock Code: 2882), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 17 August
2011. He was re-designated as a non-executive director
of Hong Kong Resources on 1 July 2015, and has been
re-designated as an executive director since 12 April
2017, and has been subsequently re-designated as a
consultant and ceased to be an executive director on
12 June 2019.

Mr. Lam was appointed as a non-executive director of
Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited (“Chinese Strategic”)
(Stock Code: 8089), a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 2 September 2013. He was re-
designated as an executive director and appointed as
the chairman of Chinese Strategic from 1 January 2014
and has been re-designated as a non-executive director
while remaining as its chairman from 1 December 2018
to 19 March 2021.

Mr. Lam was a chairman and an executive director of
Lamtex Holdings Limited (formerly known as China
New Energy Power Group Limited) (Stock Code: 1041),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from 15 June 2015 to 13 March 2016, and
then was appointed as a consultant of the company until
March 2017. Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive
director of CCIAM Future Energy Limited (Stock Code:
145), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from 1 December 2010 to 21 October 2011,
and was re-designated to a non-executive Director from
21 October 2011 to 21 October 2017. On 21 March
2019, Mr. Lam was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Lam is currently a member of each
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Board.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT — ABOUT
THE REPORT

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) are pleased to
present its Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) report (the “ESG Report”). This Report
summarizes the environmental and social impacts,
policies and initiatives of the Group during the
financial year of 2020 which began on 1 January
2020 and ended on 31 December 2020 to
demonstrate the Group’s long-term commitment in
ensuring that the Group’s business is economically,
socially and environmentally sustainable.

In preparing this ESG Report, the Group has
complied with the “Comply or Explain” provisions
in accordance with the Environment, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”)
as set out in Appendix 20 to the Rules (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and in accordance
with the practical circumstances of the Group.

The scope of the ESG Report covers the Group’s
travelling and entertainment business in Hong Kong
and the hotel and film shooting business in Foshan,
Guangdong province, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

The board of director of the Company (the “Board”)
acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
integrity of the ESG Report and to the best of its
knowledge, this ESG Report addresses all material
issues and fairly presents the ESG performance of
the Group and its impact. The Board confirms that
it has reviewed and approved the ESG Report.
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The Group’s ESG Approach

The Group’s ESG approach is to ensure that the
Group continues to create long-term value for its
stakeholders includes retaining the economic and
social advantages of its operations while taking
the necessary steps to protect and support the
local community, the natural, historic and cultural
heritage.

The Group understands that environmental
conservation and community engagement is
more than a moral imperative, it also makes good
business sense. By upholding its commitment
to corporate social responsibility, the Group
strives to forge itself into an environmentally
friendly enterprise that cares about its employees’
development and protects their rights and interests.
The Group adheres to the principle of equality
and integrity for its operation, and complies with
business regulations and ethic codes.

The Group is well aware of its impacts on the
environment as well as the society, and therefore
it insists on putting its ESG policies as set out
in the ESG Report into practice. By proactively
upgrading and optimizing its equipment, the Group
endeavours to meet the energy saving and emission
reduction targets. By strict implementation and
continued improvement of its employment policy,
the Group provides a safe and healthy working
environment and a fair development platform for its
employees. The Group believes that by offering an
outstanding service experience and creating long-
lasting memories for its guests, its travellers, its
audience, its artists and the film crew members, the
Group can achieve a sustainable development.

How we manage ESG

The Board is responsible for evaluating and
identifying the ESG risks of the Group and ensuring
that the Group sets up an appropriate and effective
ESG risk management and internal control system.

Therefore, the Group has established an ESG
executive committee to specify the responsibility of
implementing its ESG management and objectives.
The executive committee will drive and monitor the
initiatives taken in various aspects of the Group’s
ESG practices that are integrated with the Group’s
business operation.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group actively communicates with its
stakeholders, establishes multiple channels of
communication to understand the topics they cared
about, and regularly reviews the effectiveness
of relevant actions taken to improve the
communication channels in order for the opinions
of the stakeholders to be reflected fully. The topics
concerned by different stakeholder groups in the
reporting period are listed in the table below.

2.

R #HERERRE

Az AHBA TS R

AEEBGRIANERAETER B
LR HAERREIATBAPIAELERE
I E B BRATE MR L BEBER
BAERAANERESUEZERK - TXF
HEHATRER ABRPTRENERE-

Stakeholder Engagement Method Topics Action
FlE AR5 XmAR £ 18
Shareholders Investor relations - Financial performance The Group provides information
% communication B RA on strategies, policies, and
BEEBRF - Corporate governance performance through its quarterly
Shareholder meeting TEER reports, interim reports, annual
BEAE - Risk management reports and announcements.
[ & 52 REERBEERS PHRER
- Business transition FRIBRMHA B AR BUEANE
EisEn BHE R
Employees Meeting and staff interview - Career The Group provides diverse
BT SeMETE#K EE training programs, streamlines
- Health and safety the promotion process, provides
fRMELE decent wages and a safe and
- Workplaces condition respectful workplace.
THERE REBRMSZTEIN HERBE
ERBE RUEBEEIE 220
XEBEMIESGH-
Tourists Business relationship/feedback - Travel quality The Group provides quality travel
kS EEBENRE REEE package. The Group delivers what
- Price it has promised to its guests and
Bt ensures its service satisfaction.

Viewers/Audience

Box office ranking, feedback — Rich content

BR and comment EEMARA
EZEYE REZERMFTH - Quality
HE
— Responsible content
BEAHAR

[

HEREXCEEERA A

All tour guides employed by the
Group are registered and well
trained.
REERREBENRTEE K
SEMBRREHLARNRE W
BREANBREREE ZEEER
MM EEHRHERRMIIRER-

The Group selects screenplay
that have a purpose to the
society. The Group invites and
recruits wellknown directors
and artists to act in its films
and dramas.
AEFRERHTEEEENE
Ko REEFBMBEMNEZ
EAEBEENEEEXNE

BE -

—E_ZTFR
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Stakeholder Engagement Method Topics Action
FlE AR S RmAN E3 ] T8
Government Notice — Travel and hotel service  The Group works closely with
IEgiA) mE BRATFVE JE ¥ 7% the municipal government to
— Responsible content achieve turning Foshan into a
BETHNASR film culture center.
- Tax RNEE BT HAAEGHLT
BOE M TR AR AR L o
The Group is a member
of Travel Industry Council
of Hong Kong. The Group
ensures its travel and hotel
businesses comply with Travel
Agents Ordinance of Hong
Kong and the Travel Act of the
PRC.
TEBERBABREEXRENG
8 o REERRERITHLAE
EEBGE (BARTRIER
B> T R EE A R A B iR
FE) o
Suppliers Business relationship — Fairness The Group ensures its
HER EELRA NEFEH suppliers provide the service
- Long-term commitment  up to the standard it requires.
RHI&G The Group keeps its suppliers
— Trust regularly informed and up to
(= date on its plans so that they
know where they fit in and
how they can help.
REBERREHERERTS
REEERHFERE - A%
e FHmftEdRREEN
SHE] DU e A0E 1A e B
REHER-
Artists Business relationship — Protect the artist rights The Group ensures its artists’
2 A BEIEE HEB AR rights and production are fully
— Artist Privacy protected.
EUNCYR REEREREANER XIEm
BEIxEHRE-
Community Meeting/community — Community development The Group actively engages
T gathering HEER in the local communities and
g%/ teEg — Charity event work with them to promote

BRELY

community development.
REEBEHEE MRS E-
WEREETF RELTRERE-
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT 3. EERENM

The Group has identified 15 ESG issues pursuant to

the Group’s actual business situations and industry iﬁ BARSHE ngg; fq%i% Eﬁi;?%j*j fg AR E
characteristics. Based on the results of stakeholder iﬁﬁ” 71 5%2% ztﬁ gk Rk 1B & Z'F'J
engagement, the Group prepared the materiality ﬁﬁ*f BARAMER GREZEBE (F
matrix (see picture 1 for details). REN1) -
B
e
g Guest Safety EERE -
] Service Quality E R E & o
§ Regulatory Change B EER ~---e ervies Qually 77 Ethical Conduct B |
o S Intellectual Property @ Responsible Content
b A ERE EEERE o
d:J W Employee well-being & T K5 -e e Good Governance R #f7A
B -
3 |||||R Retaining Talent B{X A7 e Anti Corruption KBS e
c = Development and Training 3 fE£2155/|l.-¢  e-- Environmental & Resources 3RS E R
3 % ®-- Energy and Carbon AE3E FHix HE ik
§ i_ﬁ o Waste BEEY ®--- Community Investment { E % &
g =
=z
l/v
€
©
3
Q
o
5
z
Not Relevant T~1H#8 Crucial BRAEE

HWRIZZHERE S HIE2 Importance to stakeholders

Picture 1 The Group’s ESG Materiality Matrix
B1 AXEERE HEREREEMER
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group is committed to reducing its energy
consumption, greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions,
water consumption and waste footprint by high
efficiency and green development concept. The
awareness of environment protection is integrated
in the strategies and all the operation steps of the
Group.

The Group believes that what gets measured, gets
managed. The Group has therefore established
energy and emissions improvement goals. The
Group’s hotel, office and film studio have individual
short-term goals which are reviewed and adjusted
annually. In the future, the Group plans to continue
increasing its operational eco-efficiency, developing
continuous improvement plan that considers
science-based targets required to curb GHG
emissions.

During the reporting period, no penalties had
been imposed upon the Group for violation of any
environmental laws and regulations. The Group
did not receive any complaints in relation to
environment protection raised by the customers or
any other person.

4.1 Emissions

As the Company is an investment holding
company and its principal subsidiaries
in Hong Kong mainly participate in film
production and distribution, provision of
management service to artistes and provision
of travel related products and Cross-border
E-commerce business, it does not have
significant air emissions, discharge into water
or land in relation to its operations in Hong
Kong. No substantial hazardous waste was
produced by the Group during the reporting
period.

In relation to the operation of National Arts
Resort Hotel (the “Hotel”) and Xigiao National
Arts Film Studio (the “Studio”) in the PRC,
the air emissions from our hotel boilers and
company vehicles, waste-water discharge,
GHG and waste are the major emissions of
the Group.

The Hotel and the Studio have obtained the
official approval of environmental impact
assessment (the “ Environmental Impact
Assessment”) documents as required by
the legislation in the PRC. The Group’s
Environmental Impact Assessment documents
and official approval covers all activities in the
Hotel and Studio.
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The pollution prevention equipment and
procedure cited in the Environment Impact
Assessment documents are inspected by the
local environmental protection authority in the
PRC. The Group’s pollutant-discharge permit
is valid and effective and the Group has
declared the pollutants produced to the local
authority in a timely manner.

All of the Group’s transport vehicles bought
and used for company affairs have conformed
to national emission standards.

The Hotel has implemented appropriate
checks for air-pollutant leakage and has set
up targets to improve air-emission reduction.
The Hotel also has an appropriate emergency
plan for potential emergencies that may result
in negative environmental impact, which
include procedures to handle identified non-
compliance, with applicable corrective and
preventive action.

During the reporting period, the Group had
strictly complied with the emission standard
of air pollutants and the relevant laws and
regulations on environmental protection.

In 2020, the Group recorded increased
consumption of natural gas when compared
with last year, the reason for the increased
consumption of natural gas was due to the
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increased usage of hot water used by guests Rz BKEREE M-
stayed in the Hotel for quarantine purpose
and hot water used for sanitary purpose as a
result of outbreak of COVID-19.
2020 2019
k- ot -2 —Z-n%
Intensity Intensity
(Consumption/ (Consumption/
Fuel Type Amount Headcount) Amount Headcount)
vk BE ZE(HEE/AR) g8 HE(EE/AB)
Energy Consumed (MJ) 6.46 million MJ 15,795 MJ 6.29 million MJ 12,455 MJ
BRERE (KEE) EE LS KEE BEKER KEF
NOx emission (kg) 139.6 kg Fr 0.3kgAF 135.9 kgAfr 0.3kgAF
AR nER(RT)
SOx emission (kg) 17.36 kg Fr 0.04 kgAFF 16.9 kg AT 0.03 kgA T
RELDHER(AT)
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4.1.1 GHG Emissions 4.1.1 B EZmEHIL

The Group’s responses to the challenges
posed by climate change are based on the
Group’s ongoing efforts to reduce the GHG
emissions.

The consumption of electricity at the Hotel
is the primary source of the Group’s GHG
emission. The second primary source is the
consumption of natural gas for the boilers at
the Hotel.

AEBRYREELCIBNEHIRE
RIEEETHRIBREREBHERNEG

ot

BENAEERAEEAEREBHEK
MEZRR - REREBIMNE —FEE
BRI 5 R KA ROHRE o

During the reporting period, the Group’s GHG EMEHA ~EEHHNR ﬁ‘%%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ(%
emissions equated to a total of approximately HERK2215M — &bl BERE
2,215 tonnes of CO, equivalent (“tCO,e") and HRENFABENT:
the detailed summary of the GHG emission is
shown as below:
2020 2019
—%-%% ZI-NEF
Intensity Intensity
(Consumption/ (Consumption/
GHG Emissions Amount Headcount) Amount Headcount)
BECGHR/A B CEE/ A
BERE #R yE #) #s #)
Scope 1 Direct GHG emission 396 tCO,¢ 0.968 tCO,e 4181C0¢ 0.8281C0,¢
HEEMRZREAN (8]1) W-ELHKER WoELHEE W-sknEs w- g“ﬁﬁaﬁi
Scope 2 Indirect GHG emission from
the generation of purchased energy 1,819tCO,e 4.451C0,¢ 1,550 1CO¢ 3.071C0

Eéﬂ%“m EREENREN
REARHN (8E&2)
Scope 3 Other Indirect GHG emission

W-EitBER

W_ELHER W -S(REE

not included in Scope 2 N/A* N/A* 381C0, 0.081C0O
?R@Aﬁiuﬂ%mﬁ ki)
BERBHK (8E3) TER TERT B-ELREE BoalREE
Total GHG Emission 2,215tC0,¢ 5.411C0 2,006 tCO,e 3971C0
AERBHKGR W-ELHEE W-ELHER W-SiREs H-ElkEE

*

Scope 3 GHG emission is considered not
material.

The increased total amount and intensity
of GHG emission was attributable to the
increased consumption of natural gas and
electricity used by guests stayed in the Hotel
for quarantine purpose and for sanitary
purpose as a result of outbreak of COVID-19.

During the reporting period, the Group
strictly complied with the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to GHG emissions.

* BEREHR (#I53) HR/L K -

BEIARERNBERZELEN 8
EHRFESRBSEBENREEHR
lﬁf%%ﬁﬁ)\ﬁlﬁ)ﬁmz/\a’ﬂi%
REBELPAESENRIEHERS
MRAARFERENHEEEE M-

RIEHRE - NEBEERET
PR ARRRRRIER -

BERE




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

4.1.2 Waste

Waste is generated by many activities in the
Group’s travel, hotels and entertainment
business, including food preparation, guest
waste, events waste and cleaning. The Group
pro-actively seeks ways to reduce waste
which goes to landfill or incineration. The
waste reduction and management system
is one of the most important environmental
protection procedures followed during the
operation of the Group’s hotel business. The
Group educates its employees annually about
the procedure which should be followed
regarding the waste produced, the separation
of each waste and recycling. The Group
has rolled-out food waste reduction training
through its hotel chefs. The Group’s program
resulted in reduction of food waste. The
remaining food wastes were used for farm
feed.

For the Studio, the Group has mapped
out a few waste categories, including film
equipment, glass, aluminium, metal, wood,
paper, costume, landscaping waste, batteries,
used appliances and printer toners. For
each of these waste streams, the Studio
has identified disposal methods based on
local available options. These methods
include recycling, reuse, rental, donation and
composting. Approaches vary across waste
streams with significant strides made thus far
to reduce paper and waste.

For the Group’s Hong Kong head office, the
Group has implemented various programs to
encourage employees to participate in waste
reduction management, including:

° Encourage double-sided printing and
reuse of waste papers;

° Purchase green and environmental
printing paper;

. Encourage to use electronic channels
for internal correspondence and
communication;

o Waste papers are collected by recycling
collectors; and

o Used printing supplies boxes and
toners are returned to printing supplies
companies for recycling and reuse.

R #HERERRE

412 FEY
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Through the above mitigation measures,
the Group believes that it will change the
behaviour of the use of resources in its
workplaces and achieve the goal of waste
reduction in the coming years.

During the reporting period, the Group
has strictly complied with the Solid Waste
Pollution Prevention Law of the PRC,
the Urban City Space and Environmental
Sanitation Management Regulations and
other relevant laws and regulations on waste
handling in Hong Kong and the PRC.

4.1.3 Waste-water

4.2

The Group’s hotel waste-water is treated
and discharged in accordance with the local
Foshan municipal regulation “Wastewater
Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal
Sewers” (J5/KEE A T KEBEKEZE) .
The Group applies wastewater treatment
procedures including the activated sludge
process and the bio-film process to its
sewage before discharge. Throughout the
year under review, the Group strictly complied
with the given standards and relevant
laws and regulations and the results are
satisfactory.

Use of Resources

The Group strives to use resources effectively
and minimize the discharge of wastes. In
the ordinary course of business, the Group
has implemented various energy saving and
emission reduction measures. Apart from the
waste reduction actions mentioned above, the
other relevant examples are as follows:

Reduce

. Less print out for client communications
and corporate materials.

. Office supply purchase across
departments to avoid unnecessary
purchases and disposals.

o Installation of water filtration systems to
avoid use of bottled water.

Bl EUR R I AR BAREESK
EAKE TSN EREREE I
RAKRBFEERBEBR-

REBERRN AEEBERETHFEAR
SN B [E] §E BE 105 R BRIRR A E W
MAMREFHFLEER GO MEBD
MEBNERYEIENEMAERER
B

4.1.3 5K

A5 BB IR BEK IR IR G5 1L T E . O
MR KBERE K mERE) EITRIE
FIBEBR 75 /K HE AT - AN 5= B BR A BB UK
BRI B B IEIE ISR T A M A IR
TR K R EBEEE AL E
®BST T R E M BE R R AR REA R
ER G BRESAWME -
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Reuse

Donations of used items including
mattresses, linens and towels to the
communities, suppliers and business
partners.

Composting and donating food and
landscaping waste for farm feed.

Reuse of film shooting equipments.

Reuse of film shooting costumes.

Recycle

Waste stream segregation.

Staff training and behavioural change.
Engagement with local municipalities
and waste management partners.

Local partnerships to recycle e-wastes,
metals, lamps and batteries.

4.2.1 Energy Consumption

Electricity and natural gas consumption was
increased in 2020 when compared to 2019
due to the hot water and electricity used by
guests stayed in the Hotel for quarantine
purpose and for sanitary purpose as a result
of the outbreak of COVID-19.

RE HEREBHRE

EEER
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The Group has 9 small vehicles and 3 light
goods vehicles in Hong Kong and the PRC
used in its daily business operation. During
the reporting period, the vehicles consumed
approximately 11,408 litres of petrol and 192
litres of diesel.

The outbreak of COVID-19 seriously
decreased the business activities of the
Group and thus the need to travel, therefore,
the consumption of petrol and diesel was
significantly decreased in 2020.

The Group has implemented a fuel-efficient
action plan to trim petrol use. The plan
encourages drivers to plan the journey before
driving, adopt a gentle style of acceleration,
and conduct regular servicing of vehicles

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI HERERRE

AEBAEBRFE B/ NA TS
M A EE - AR BMEAETER
BEST -NREHM ZFTEHEE
11,4037 /308 K192 42 ) -

HUBRRSRBENEEEHAE
MEBEZBARERD EMEHLTH
S Bk Z S ZFEFEM AR RS
HOHFEA IR K

AEBECEREMTE S AR
L A8 o %At B ER) R B AT AR
BT TR EE IR N E B
WETRE BERSAETEHKRSE -
158 P AR 5 S 2 8 B iR T 4R = )0 e 152

including monthly tyres check. Tyres in poor 2o
condition will raise fuel consumption.
2020 2019
—F°%% ZT-NEF
Intensity Intensity
(Consumption/ (Consumption/
Amount Headcount) Amount Headcount)
HEE EE(EE/AR) EEE  BEER/AH)
The non-renewable energy
FUBLRER
~ Natural Gas 168,608 412.24 164,108 324,97
! AR cubic meter cubic meter cubic meter cubic meter
» LK L% TR TR
Petrol 11,403 litres 27.88 litres 24,716 48.94
b A A lires A7 lires A7
— Diesel 192 litres 0.47 litres 1,302 2.58
e A% A% litres A7 litres A7t
Electricity Purchased
RENEN
Electricity 6,679,000 16,330 5,700,000 11,287
g kWh T kWh ¥ kWh T1 kWh T1

~
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4.2.2 Water

Water is a serious issue to the Group’s
business. The availability of clean and
accessible water is essential to the services
it provides and critical to the health and
economic vitality of the communities where
the Group operates. As part of the operations
of the Hotel, there are bathroom in every
room and swimming pool in the premises.
Therefore, water forms an integral part
of every guest experience. Proper water
management is essential to ensure that
water is used efficiently and also eliminates
the possibility of water pollution. The Group
received consistent water supply during the
reporting period.

During the reporting period, the Group does
not have issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose.

To reduce its water footprint, the Group
executes a series of water conservation
strategies including investing in water
efficiency technologies, stimulating process
improvements and reusing and recycling
water. The Group’s Hotel is actively
identifying and implementing water efficiency
technologies and process improvements to
conserve water, in areas like kitchens, laundry
areas, gardens, toilet, swimming pool and
cooling systems. The Group also continues to
retrofit motion sensors and low flow fixtures
in common areas, install dual flush toilet to
reduce water consumption.

In 2020, the Group’s water consumption
including hotel swimming pools, guestrooms
water usage, Hong Kong head office, and
Foshan film shooting base, was 165,990
tonnes, a 27.43% increase compared to the
prior year. The increase is attributable to the
increased usage of water by guests stayed
in the Hotel for quarantine purpose and for
sanitary purpose as a result of the outbreak
of COVID-19.

R #HERERRE
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2020 2019
-k 32 ZE-NE
Intensity Intensity
(Consumption/ (Consumption/
Water Amount Headcount) Amount Headcount)
X HEE BE(HE/AN) BRE  BEOER/AB)
Water Consumed 165,990 406 130,253 258
fkE Tonnes Tonnes Tonnes Tonnes
[ ] I ]
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4.2.3 Packaging Materials

4.3

Due to the nature of the business, the Group
does not have any material use of packaging
materials. Therefore, the Group considered
the number of packaging materials used
insignificant.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is working on various sustainable
development activities to ensure the
resources are used effectively and responsibly
while providing its service. It is an important
responsibility for the Group to bring less
impact to the environment. The Group
is always considerate to the sustainable
development and it will keep focusing on
community environmental conservation.

The Group has also initiated to promote
tree planting activities around the studio,
which helps to build an eco-friendly working
environment and safeguard the ecosystems of
local communities.

Committed to mitigating the impact of
its business on the environmental and
other natural resources, the Group did not
cause any serious pollution or damage
to its surrounding environment during the
reporting period, including air, land, water
and ecological system. Policies and measures
on the use of resources and emissions
are already set out in details in the above
sections.

The Group is not aware of any material non-
compliance relating to use of resources and
the Group had complied with all relevant
environmental rules and regulations in Hong
Kong and the PRC during the reporting
period.

4.2.3

4.3
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5. EMPLOYMENT 5 1Ef&

5.1 Labour Practices 5.1 ZTI1EH

The Group has always considered talents as
its most valuable resource and asset. The
Group respects and protects the statutory
rights and interests of employees, provide a
fair career development platform, cares about
its employees’ physical and mental health,
and join hands with employees to realize
sustainable development.

The Group has developed sound employment
policies covering the requirements and
standards of recruitment, promotion,
remuneration, resignation, treatment and
so on, and regulates each requirement and
standard to ensure the efficient management
of human resources.

The human resource department of the
Group develops recruitment plans in
accordance with the recruitment needs
of various departments, and continuously
introduce talents to join the Group through
social recruitment, campus recruitment,
internal referral and other channels. The
human resource department of the Group
strictly implements the recruitment evaluation
program, adheres to the selection principle
of fairness and selection of high calibre,
and provides equal job opportunities in
accordance with their competence and
abilities. The Group enters into employment
contracts with the employees in accordance
with the requirements of the Labour Law,
covering matters such as wages, benefits
working hours, rest periods, safety and
sanitary conditions in the workplace, and
grounds for termination.

The Group is committed to implementing the
remuneration distribution principals based
on performance, efficiency and fairness. On
top of labor basic salary, the Group may pay
performance bonuses in accordance with
employees’ performance and the Group’s
business performance. In order to maintain
a competitive remuneration package, the
Group carries out evaluation and adjustment
on remuneration every year with reference to
the average wage, the consumption level and
the industry rate of the relevant city, so as to
attract and retain talents.
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The Group adheres to the principles of
fairness in the provision of employment
opportunities, compensation, training,
performance evaluation and promotion
without any forms of discrimination such as
gender, age, ethnicity, religion and culture.
The Group is committed to creating a fair and
harmonious working environment.

The Group has not discovered any
material non-compliance or any violation of
employment and labour related regulations
during the reporting period.

5.1.1 Employee Profile

The Group commitment is to support the
local community by hiring local employees.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group
employed a total of 409 employees. The vast
majority of the Group’s employees are local.
It is especially important in the travel and
hospitality industry to hire local employees. As
an employer in support of equal opportunity,
the Group efforts are leaning towards
hiring the most talented people. As per the
below table, more than half of the Group’s
employees are females and they account for
58%, whereas males account for 42%.

5.1.1
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Total

g
Total Employees BETHY 409
By Gender R R
Total Male Employees EBT 172
Total Female Employees ZET 237
By Age RER
Below 25 years old IINFA25 5%, 63
25-34 years old 25-3473% 2 & 155
35-44 years old 35-445% 2 8 94
45-54 years old 45-545% 2 & 72
Above 55 years old 555 A 25
By Employment Mode RERES
Full time 28 409
Part-time 0 0
By Level =R
Management EIRE 71
Non-management FEEE 338
By Location B i
PRC + 383
Hong Kong BB 26
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5.1.2 Employee Turnover Rate

Employee turnover rates can vary widely
across different sectors of business. The
Group’s employee turnover rate during the
reporting period is 49.89%.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, business
activities of the Group has been deceased
significantly and as a result led to a decease
in number of staff of the Group and an
increase of employee turnover rate.

In the future when normal operations are
resumed, the Group will invest more time
and money to develop measures to help in
retaining employees. Table below shows the
Group’s employee turnover rate by gender,
age group and geographical region.

R #HERERRE
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Employee Turnover Rate BTEHX 49.89%
Employee Turnover Rate by Gender BHREITHETEEE

Male Employee Turnover Rate EEIBEX 73.58%
Female Employee Turnover Rate ZEIBER 31.04%
Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group {EFEHAREI P METIEEE

Below 25 years old N 255%, 95.04%
25-34 years old 25-347% 2 A 43.27%
35-44 years old 35-441% 2 8 43.48%
45-54 years old 45-545% 2 8 40.00%
Above 55 years old 55B% VA £ 30.51%
Employee Turnover Rate by Location {F#EMBESMWETEEE

PRC I AR HAAE 50.83%
Hong Kong BE 33.33%
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5.2 Health and Safety

Health and safety in the workplace is part
of our duty of care for employees. As a
responsible employer, the Group is committed
to reducing accidents, illness, and risks in the
working area as far as possible, promoting
the health of its employees, and thus also
reducing the absence rate and employee
turnover rate. The Group focuses on three
major areas to minimise occupational hazards
and health and safety risks:

1. Fire Safety Inspection - testing and
maintenance of all fire safety related
installations in the Group’s film shooting
base, hotel and workplace. Fire drills
exercise for the Group’s employees
annually.

2. Occupational Health & Safety
— Health and safety classes in the
workplace, film shooting base, and the
Group’s artist performance venue.

3. Security - Security of guests, the
artists, film crew and property.

The guests of the Group spend a
considerable amount of time in the Studio
and the Hotel. They trust the Group to
provide an environment that is not only
comfortable and aesthetically beautiful, but
also safe during their visit. It is also critical
that the Group’s employees are provided with
a safe working environment. Hence, the Hotel
is audited annually to monitor its compliance
with relevant safety guidelines. The annual
audit process ensures that the management
teams of the Hotel and the Studio focus on
health and safety issues and are prepared to
manage crisis and business interruptions.

For the Group’s travel, film production and
artiste management business, the Group
ensures all employees, artists, crew members
and guests are given sufficient information
about safety. As the Group’s businesses are
mainly project or event based, before they
get started, they will be insured. As each
project or event carries different risks, the
types of insurance needed and the level of
premium will vary. The Group will insure all its
employees, artists, guests against the risks
of injury, accident, sickness, and damage to
equipment.
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During the reporting period, the Group
complied with the Work Safety Law and
Fire Prevention Law of the PRC and the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
of Hong Kong. The Group has achieved
zero work related fatalities and the lost days
due to work injury are 34 days during the
reporting period. The Group did not discover
any material non-compliance of occupational
health and safety related laws and regulations
during the reporting period.

Development and Training

The Group cares about the development
of its employees and expects to promote
its business growth by unleashing the
development potential of their talents. The
internal training policies of the Group has
been formulated with an aim to improve the
staff’s personal skills and bring out their best
value for the development of the Group.

The human resources department of the
Group provides the new recruits with a unified
induction training covering its corporate
culture and development direction, while
the relevant departments provide them
with trainings required for their respective
positions. The Group also organizes various
types of trainings for all staff throughout
the year to improve the interaction between
employees from different departments.
Regular trainings in sales skills, market
information and hospitality skills are provided
to frontline personnel to assist them to deliver
quality services to customers and motivate
them to work aggressively towards the annual
sales target. The Group also provides training
allowance for non-frontline staff to encourage
them to participate in job-related external
trainings so as to enhance their own value
and working skills.

Every newly appointed director of the
Company will be given a set of induction
materials to ensure that he/she will have an
appropriate understanding of the Group’s
business and the directors’ duties (in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules
and the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements). In addition, the Company
encourages all directors of the Company
to participate in continuous professional
development courses and seminars to
develop and update their knowledge and
skills.
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5.4

5.5

"N_(Hi’onal Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Li

During the reporting period, for the Group’s
hotel business, the Group’s employees have
an average of 12 training hours annually
and 100% of the employees undertook the
training. For the head office and the Studio,
its employees have an average of 3 training
hours annually and 100% of the employees
(including senior-level employees) undertook
the training. The training plan includes
the skills required for upcoming tasks and
company-wide management training.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by the relevant
employment and labour laws and regulations
and has never employed any child labour
under the age of 16 or forced labour. It
has formulated clear policies to prevent
compulsory labour and employment of child
labour, making sure that its employees enjoy
their fundamental rights related to labour and
has insisted on monitoring the recruitment
process frequently to prevent the occurrence
of illegal conduct. The Group’s code of
conduct and employment contract sets out
the Group’s general approach regarding
the labour standards. In addition to the
Group’s code of conduct, the Group’s human
resources policy also covers the labour
standard. The policy provides the framework
of rules applicable to all human resources
activities within the Group’s operations. The
Group did not discover any material non-
compliance of labour rights and labour related
laws and regulations during the reporting
period.

Supply Chain Management

The Group’s supplier code of conduct (the
“Supplier Code of Conduct”) provides a
framework for how the Group manages its
relationship with suppliers and contractors.
Critical areas include product quality,
warranty, corruption and compliance with
local laws and regulation. The Group is
currently strengthening this approach through
a dedicated program which will improve our
supplier management. The Supplier Code of
Conduct sets out the procurement policies,
processes, selection, and the minimum
standards. The Group expects its suppliers to
meet the standards prescribed in the Supplier
Code of Conduct and are working with them
to achieve this.
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For the Group’s hotel and travel business,
the Group implements stringent supplier
admission reviews to overcome any potential
challenges along the supply chain. The Hotel
prioritises suppliers that are recommended by
peers, have third-party certification and are of
good reputation. The Group has established
a qualified suppliers’ list in which the
performance of the suppliers are evaluated.

The Group has strict requirements for food
safety. Therefore, it is especially important
for it to make sure that all of the food
suppliers meet the food safety standard.
Suppliers are required to have the relevant
food safety system in place such as ISO
22000, HACCP certificate. The Group has
developed a supplier performance rating
system which covers quality of product, price,
packaging, and delivery time. Continuous
poor performance will lead to termination of
contract.

Product and Service Responsibility

In delivering the Group’s travel and hospitality
services it is very important to meet its
guests’ and travellers’ expectations in order
to ensure continuous improvement and
growth of its business. In a highly competitive
tourism market, understanding its guests’
and travellers’ needs and expectations
is imperative for sustainable growth. The
Group’s actions and commitments in order
to satisfy its guests and other stakeholders
include:

o Commitment to ensure its product
quality.

o Commitment to ensure its product
safety.

o Commitment to satisfy its customers’
needs, requirements and expectations.

o Commitment to satisfy its tour operator
partners.

° Managing service quality by following
international standards.

o Maintaining open communications with
its employees, customers and suppliers.

o Identifying, evaluating and monitoring
all food safety risks from production to
delivery through the implementation of
food quality standards in all the resorts
and hotels.
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In addition, the Group’s employees are
well trained and the Group’s equipment for
managing the health and safety of its guests
and travellers is comprehensive. Each of
the Group’s business units is committed to
continuous improvement and satisfaction of
the Group’s guests are assessed and ratings
thereby are used to identify specific areas for
further improvement.

The Group is devoted to putting its guests’
and travellers’ preferences and choices as
its first priority. Refunds of travel packages
is possible, subject to company policies.
The Group also values the feedback from its
guests and travellers as they act as catalyst
for advancement in its services. Guests
and travellers can give their comments
and reviews on the Group through different
channels such as through a designated phone
call where they will all be directed to and
handled by the Group’s dedicated customer
service team.

During the reporting period, the Group
complied with Trade Descriptions Ordinance
of Hong Kong, Food Hygiene Law of the PRC
and the relevant laws and regulations relating
to health and safety, advertising, labeling
and privacy matters relating to the Group’s
services. The Group continues to review and
enhance its communications to ensure that
the Group provides its guests and travellers
with the latest information. The Group takes
seriously its commitment to keep its guests
and travellers informed about the services it
offers. The Group avoids providing its guests
and travellers any false or misleading service
information especially on the tour package.
The Group’s employees are required to
maintain transparency in communication and
marketing.
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Protection of Customer Privacy

The Group attaches great importance to
customer information security, to maintain a
sound corporate reputation and establish a
cooperative and trusted business relationship
with customers. The Group is committed
to improving information confidentiality
management system, and limiting employees’
access to confidential information of
customers through the implementation of
a number of information security measures
and strict authority management in order
to guarantee that the information is for
authorized use only.

The Group has educated its employees the
following:

o Preserving the guests’ trust by
safeguarding and handling their
information in a private and confidential
manner.

o The importance of guest privacy.

o Exchanging confidential information is
prohibited.

During the reporting period, the Group
complied with Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance of Hong Kong and the relevant
laws and regulations of the PRC. The
Group did not discover any circumstances
of consumers’ personal data being stolen,
altered, damaged or leaked during the
reporting period.

Anti-Corruption

The Group maintains and effectively
implements a comprehensive system of
internal control and stringent policies for
anticorruption, and is committed to preventing
and monitoring any malpractices or unethical
practice.

The Group has strictly complied with ethical
requirements and there was no occurrence
of corruption, bribery, fraud and money
laundering throughout the reporting period.
The Group will adhere to its corporate
ethics and uphold its reputation to prevent
corruption.
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The Group anti-corruption awareness training
for employees ranges from on-boarding
and yearly reminder programs. The purpose
of the program is to help all employees
understand the Group’s values and the policy.
Integrity is vital part of the Group’s business.
The Group’s management is committed to
sending a clear and consistent message to
all employees and business partners that
corruption and bribery are unacceptable.

Employees can report to the management of
the Group with respect to any noncompliance
such as receiving bribes, abuse of power by
mail, electronic mail or phone. All business
units have the responsibility to conduct
regular risk assessment of their anticorruption
procedures and implement remedial measures
to mitigate risks.

During the reporting period, the Group had
complied with Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the other relevant laws and
regulations of relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a responsible corporates citizen, the Group
uses its expertise and resources to support the
communities in which it operated in various ways.
The Group continues to focus on the following
areas for community investment:

Provide helping hands for people in need;

Foster a healthy and green living environment
in the community;

Support local charitable events; and

Provide training opportunities for young
people.

During the reporting period, the Group maintained
its status as a Caring Company and participated in
various charitable events.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Board is pleased to present this corporate governance
report for the year ended 31 December 2020. This report
highlights the key corporate governance practices of the
Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year of 2020, the Company has
adopted and complied with all code provisions (the
“Code Provisions”, each a “Code Provision”), where
appropriate as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules (the “Corporate Governance Code”) then in
force with an aim of maximizing the shareholders’ interest
and enhancing the stakeholders’ transparency and
accountability.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with sound and
reasonable corporate governance practices and
procedures during the year ended 31 December 2020,
including below practices:

Board Meetings

° The Company held four regular Board meetings and
6 general Board meetings during the year under
review.

Re-election of non-executive directors

. Non-executive Directors were appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election. Two
Independent Non-executive Directors were re-
elected at the annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”) held in July 2020.
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Establish a nomination committee

° The Company has established a nomination
Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) with
specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties. During the
year under review, there were no changes in
the members of the Board. As at 31 December
2020 and the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprises two Independent Non-
executive Directors and one Executive Director, and
is chaired by the Chairman of the Board.

Present annual and interim reports

° The Group presented its unaudited interim report
and audited annual report of the financial year
2020. In addition, the Group also presented its
unaudited operational information for the first and
third quarters of the financial year 2020.

Risk management and internal control system
review

o The Group adopted a systematic and sustainable
risk management and internal control system during
the year under review. The Board reviews and
considers the nature and extent of the significant
risk in its business and the external environment,
and the scope and quality of the management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal
control system annually.

The other key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Group are also outlined in this corporate
governance report.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices within the Group and
devotes considerable efforts to identify and formalize best
practices. The Board believes that sound and effective
corporate practices are fundamental to the smooth,
effective and transparent operation of a company and
its ability to attract investment, protect the rights of its
shareholders and stakeholders, and enhance shareholder
value.

It is the Group’s mission to create and preserve the
cultural heritage, develop film and media industry by
telling purposeful story and cultivating entertainment
and travel community that is vibrant and relevant to
audiences.
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The Group’s Values

The Group has five core values, which are:
- Respect

= Innovation

- Teamwork

= Communication

- Challenge

The values express what the Group stands for and are
core to its business. As a values-led-organization, the
Group’s values shape its people’s decision and actions.
They guide how the Group’s employees work together.

The Group corporate governance framework plays an
integral role in supporting the business and helping the
Group to deliver its strategy. It provides the structure
upon which the Group’s strategies and business
objectives are set and the performance is monitored.
It includes a clear framework for decision making and
accountability across the Group’s business and provides
guidance on the standards of behavior the Group
expects of its management and employees. The Group
is committed to excellence in corporate governance,
transparency and accountability. This is essential for the
long term performance and sustainability of the Group,
and to protect and enhance the interests of the Group’s
shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Group regularly reviews its corporate governance
arrangements, to reflect developments in market practice,
expectations and regulation as appropriate.

This section provides an overview of some of the
important aspects of the Group’s corporate governance
framework.
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Set out below is the current corporate governance

framework of the Group.

Shareholders
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S T

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with sound and
reasonable corporate governance practices and
procedures with an aim of maximizing interests as well
as to enhancing the transparency and accountability to
the stakeholders. The Company had adopted a code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
on terms no less exacting than the required standard
of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company had also made specific
enquiry of all Directors, and the Directors have confirmed
they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive
and Non-executive Directors which represents a mixture
of experts specializing in management, law, accounts
and finance. All Directors possess comprehensive
qualifications and experience as well as exposure to
various different industries which are crucial to the growth
of the Group.

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, formulating and overseeing the Group’s business
strategies and monitoring the financial performance, risk
management and internal control of the Group’s business
and operations.

To oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs,
the Board has established three Board committees (the
“Board Committees”), namely the audit committee
(the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the Nomination
Committee. The Board has delegated to each of
the Board Committees responsibility for maintaining
an appropriate financial reporting, risk management
and internal control system, reviewing its directors’
remuneration policy and reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and accountable to Board.
The details of each Board Committees are set out in the
section headed “Board Committees” from page 68 to
page 73 of this annual report.
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The Board has delegated to the management the
responsibility for (i) the day-to-day management of the
Group’s businesses; (i) implementation of the strategies
approved by the Board; and (iii) providing all such
information to the Board as is necessary to enable the
Board to monitor the performance of the management.
The Board also gives clear directions to the management
team as to their powers of management, and
circumstances in which the management team should
report back. The management would report back to the
Board and obtain Board approval before making certain
decisions.

All Directors, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board to ensure its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services and
advice from the company secretary and the management
of the Company. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details
of other offices held by them and the Board regularly
reviews the contribution required from each Director to
perform his responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves its authority for making decision on
all major matters relating to policy matters, strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of
the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing
decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are
delegated to the management.
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Board Composition

The details of the executive Directors, the non-executive
Directors and the independent non-executive Directors,
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 and as at
the date of this annual report are set out below:

Name of Directors

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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EEMHEBEINOT:

Date of first appointment
to the Board

Date of last re-election as
Director

ESia BREZEZTEFENAY RE-REERESHEY
Executive Directors

HITEE

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman) 14 May 2019 28 June 2019

B4 (/) ZZ-NFRATMA “Z-AFRAZHNH

(Resigned on 22 July 2021)
(RZEZ—F+AZF+ZHFF)

Mr. Chow Kai Weng
FRR T &

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

(LERITBAH)

(was Associate Chairman until 22 July

25 March 2011
—E——%=f-+AH

2021 and was appointed as the Chairman

on 22 July 2021)

(RZF=——F+H -+ - HEETHE
TEIR - FE-—F+A-+-HEZT

BERE)

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun
LIEN: St

Mr. Ho Leung Ting
{5 & 5 &

Non-executive Director
FHTEE

Dr. Lam Lee G.
HREET

Independent Non-executive

Directors

BUFHTEE

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
Foy

Mr. Li Kit Chee
FHR7EE

Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred
LT

The biographical details of each of the Directors and
the relationships between them (if any) are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” from
page 28 to page 32 of this annual report.

4 May 2018
—Z-\fTANE

15 November 2018
—E-\#+—-A+AA

30 June 2017
—E—+FXA=TH

13 May 2009
—EENFRAT=H

1 June 2014
“E-mEXA—H

22 March 2019
—E-NF=ZRZ+=H

28 June 2019
ZE-NFERAZTNR

30 July 2020
“Z-ZFLA=TH

28 June 2019
—E-AFERAZTNR

28 June 2019
ZE-NERARZTNR

30 July 2020
—EZZF+tA=1H

30 July 2020
S s e =

28 June 2019
ZE-NERARZTNR
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As required by Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the role of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual to ensure a clear
division between their respective independence and
accountability and to maintain a balance of power
and authority. As at 31 December 2020, the Chairman
of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are Mr. Sin Kwok Lam and Mr. Chow Kai Weng
respectively. The Chairman of the Company, Mr. Sin
Kwok Lam, is responsible for formulating the long-term
strategies of the Company and overseeing its overall
business development. The Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, Mr. Chow Kai Weng, focuses on implementing
the Company’s business strategies and policies
approved and delegated by the Board and overseeing
the Company’s day-to-day operations. As Mr. Chow Kai
Weng was appointed as Chairman and has been serving
as both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
following the resignation of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam as the
Chairman on 22 July 2021, such practice deviates from
the Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in the
same person can facilitate the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and enhance effectiveness of its
operation. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code is appropriate in such circumstances.

Non-executive Directors

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, non-executive directors should be appointed for
a specific term and subject to re-election. The existing
Non-executive Director has been appointed by the
Company for a specific term of two years and is subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”).

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
complied with Rules 5.05 and 5.08 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Company appointed three
Independent Non-executive Directors and with at least
one of them having appropriate professional qualifications
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The Board is responsible for the appointment of new
Directors and the nomination of Directors for re-
election by shareholders of the Company at the AGM. In
accordance with the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have
the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on
the Board or as an addition to the existing Board, whom
is subject to retirement and re-election in accordance
with the Bye-laws.

All Executive Directors are engaged on service contracts
with the Company for a term of three years.

The Company has also entered into a letter of
appointment or re-appointment with the Non-executive
Director and each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors for a term of two years subject to retirement,
re-election and removal in accordance with the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
shareholders of the Company after his/her appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to the Bye-law 84(1) and 84(2) of the Bye-
laws, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Such retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the Directors.

Directors’ Continuing Professional
Development

The Directors’ ongoing training is very important to the
maintenance of high corporate governance standards
in the Company. The Company has adopted a policy
on induction and continuous professional development
to encourage all Directors to update themselves, on
a continuous basis, on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and changes in the business
and market environment in which the Group operates
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities and
obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.
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To assist the Directors in their continuing professional
development, the Company recommends that they
regularly attend relevant seminars and courses at the
expenses of the Company and the Directors are required
to provide the Company with his/her annual training
record to ensure the enhancement of their knowledge
and skill.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors
have participated in the continuous professional
developments in relation to regulatory updates, duties
and responsibilities of the Directors and the business of
the Group in the following manner:

AEDEENFEIXER ARAEEBREEH
SNERBERRE BERAARRXN MEE
ENEFFRARAREEFIICE NERTRE
B R R BE B TR IT -

HE_Z-_ZE+_A=+—RHILFE 28ES
ME2RFHEEFRE EFCRBEBRERAE
BEBIHEEXRRRLY FHEOT

Name of Directors Types of Training
ESHE EallEE
Executive Directors
HITEF
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman) A&B
KB E (%)
(Resigned on 22 July 2021)
(RZFZ—F+H =+ =HF)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Chief Executive Officer) AsB

ARSREE (178 4%

(was Associate Chairman until 22 July 2021
and was appointed as the Chairman on

22 July 2021)
(R—F=—
PR=-ZF=

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun
LGN

Mr. Ho Leung Ting
MRELE

Non-executive Director
FHTEE

Dr. Lam Lee G.
HREET

Independent Non-executive Directors
BUHHTEE
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
Rt
Mr. Li Kit Chee
FRIFE
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred
WRE B ST 4

E4H A = AR ELETE
—FE+ o AEEFEETE)

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

Remarks:

A Attending internal briefing session in relating to corporate
governance

B: Reading materials in relation to regulatory updates
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020, the Directors have consistently
selected and applied appropriate accounting policies
and standards, make judgments and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable, and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group incurred a net
current liabilities of HK$173.11 million.

The Group’s net current liabilities condition indicate
that there may exist a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Notwithstanding the existence of
these indicators, the Directors are of the opinion that it
is appropriate for the consolidated financial statements
to be prepared on the assumption that the Group will
continue to operate as a going concern. In order to
improve the Group’s financial position, immediate liquidity
and cash flows, and otherwise to sustain the Group as
a going concern, the Directors have adopted several
measures to resolve the debt condition. After assessing
the Group’s current and forecasted cash positions, the
Directors are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
in full the Group’s financial obligations as they fall due
for the period of twelve months from 31 December 2020.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared on the going concern basis.
For further details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Liquidity and Financial Resources” in “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report and note 1
to the consolidated financial statements.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company
regarding its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 147 to 154 of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance and
to enhance the function of the Board, the Company
has established three Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Each Board Committee was
established with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authority and duties and are reviewed
from time to time.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 2002 with
its written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the Audit Committee comprised three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
(Chairman), Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred and Mr. Li Kit
Chee.

The Company complied with Rule 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules that the Audit Committee must comprise
a minimum of 3 members, have at least one of whom is
an Independent Non-executive Director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise and be chaired by an
Independent Non-executive Director.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to: (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation
or dismissal; (i) review and monitor the Company’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems; and (iii) review the Company’s financial
information.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee held five meetings for the reviewing of
the Group’s annual, half-yearly and quarterly results,
assessing and evaluating of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management procedures and internal
control system. The Audit Committee has also made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
the external auditor after reviewing the scope of services
offered and the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor. The attendance record of these
meetings is set out in the section headed “Board and
Committees Meetings and Attendance” on page 72 of
this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005
with its written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the Remuneration Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui
Chi Yun Robert (Chairman), Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred
and Mr. Li Kit Chee. The Company has complied with
Rule 5.34 of GEM Listing Rules that a remuneration
committee should comprise a majority of independent
non-executive directors and should be chaired by an
independent non-executive director.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include: (i) making recommendations to the Board on
the Group’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (i) reviewing and determining the
remuneration packages of each individual Executive
Director and management including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments; and (iii)
ensuring that none of the Directors or their associates
will involve in deciding his own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee adopted the approach under
Code Provision B.1.2(c)(ii) to make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors
and the management of the Company.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
under review are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements contained in this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting in relation to
the overall remuneration policy and structure and making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of each individual Executive Director and the
management in assessing their performance and approval
of the relevant terms of service contracts; and reviewed
the proposed director’'s fee of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam,
Mr. Chow Kai Weng, Mr. Cheng Wang Chun and Mr. Ho
Leung Ting and recommended the same to the Board
for approval. The attendance record of the meetings is
set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings and Attendance” on page 72 of this annual
report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012
with its written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the Nomination Committee comprised one
Executive Director and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman),
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred and Mr. Li Kit Chee. From
22 July 2021, the Nomination Committee comprised one
Executive Director and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Chairman),
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred and Mr. Li Kit Chee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are
mainly (i) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations to the Board
regarding the identification of suitable, qualified
individuals for selection and appointment as Directors;
(i) to assess the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company; and (i) to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment or re-designation of, and succession
planning for the Directors (in particular the Chairman) and
the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in
September 2013 concerning diversity of the Board.
Under this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered
in terms of factors such as gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments are based on merit, and candidates
are considered against various objective criteria, with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The Nomination Committee discusses and determines
the measurable objectives for implementing diversity on
the Board and recommends the same to the Board for
adoption on an annual basis. The Nomination Committee
will review the policy on a regular basis and will discuss
any revision that may be required, and recommend any
proposed changes.to the Board for approval.
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Nomination Policy and Procedure

The Nomination Committee would use the criteria listed
below as reference for the selection, appointment and
reappointment of Directors:

Integrity and reputation;

- Professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

- Commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

- Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;
and

- Any other criteria as the Committee may deem fit to
consider in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders.

The above criteria are for reference only, and not
meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination
Committee has the discretion to nominate any person, as
it considers appropriate.

Candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information, including the information as
required by the Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules,
together with their written consent to be appointed as
a Director and to the public disclosure of their personal
data on any documents or the relevant websites for
the purpose of or in relation to their appointment as a
Director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates
to provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.
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Any Director may nominate a candidate for appointment,
election or re-election as a Director by the Board or at a
general meeting. Upon obtaining the required information
from the candidate, the Nomination Committee shall
evaluate whether such candidate is qualified to be
appointed, elected or re-elected into the Board based on
the criteria as set out above and the relevant GEM Listing
Rules and the policies of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall convene a meeting
to discuss and consider the recommendation of the
candidate to the Board for appointment, election or
reelection as a Director by the Board or at a general
meeting.

Board and Committees Meetings and
Attendance

The Board is scheduled to meet at least four times each
year on a quarterly basis to discuss the Group’s business
development, operations and financial performance.
Notices of not less than 14 days in advance together
with the formal agenda are addressed to all Directors for
all regular board meetings. For additional Board meetings
which require discussion and resolution of significant
issues arising from the operation of the Company, notice
is given in a reasonable time in advance. To enable the
Directors to make informed decisions, the Board papers
together with all appropriate and relevant materials and
information in relation to the matters to be discussed and
considered at the Board meeting are sent to all Directors.
Proper minutes of Board meetings and Committees
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary of the
Company. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
Directors for comments and records respectively within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version
is open for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Directors.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board
meetings, the Board Committees meetings and the
general meeting during the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out in the following table:
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Remuneration Audit  Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
FHESE BREE R&ZEE

Bl ESEER S bt - BEXE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman) EEMWEE (£E) 10/10 - - 11 1/2

(resigned on 22 July 2021 (R-ZFE-—%F

+tAZTZHEE)

Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Associate BRREE (HELTER 10/10 - - - 0/2

Chairman and Chief Executive TE#E)

Officer) (appointed on 22 July 2021) (R-ZFE-—%F

tHZFTZHEZHE)

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun BN e 10/10 - - - 0/2
Mr. Ho Leung Ting MRELE 10/10 - - = 0/2
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Dr. Lam Lee G. HxEEL 8/10 - - = 0/2
Independent Non-executive Directors B HHTEE
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert EECEE 8/10 i 4/4 - 2/2
Mr. Li Kit Chee THZRE 8/10 i 4/4 11 2/2
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred WEE LA 8/10 11 4/4 11 2/2
Total number of meeting(s) 2Ry 10 1 4 1 2
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE P EE R

FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions performed by
the Board include: (i) formulating and reviewing the
corporate governance policies and practices of the
Company; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors
and the management; (i) reviewing and monitoring the
policies and practices of the Company in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulatory requirements;
(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees
and Directors; and (v) reviewing the compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code by the Company and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Yick Him (“Mr. Pang”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company since 6 December
2019. Mr. Pang is not a full time employee of the
Company. The primary person at the Company with
whom Mr. Pang has been contacting in respect of
company secretarial matters is Mr. Cheng Wang Chun,
an executive director.

Mr. Pang has over 10 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, finance, treasury management and corporate
compliance. Mr. Pang holds a bachelor degree of
business administration from the Hong Kong Baptist
University and is a practising member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and &
Certified Financial Risk Manager admitted by the Global
Association of Risk Professionals. Mr. Pang is currently
also a director of a local audit firm in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has
access to the advice and services of Mr. Pang at all times
in accordance with Code Provision F.1.4 of Appendix 15
to the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Pang has taken no less
than 15 hours of professional training during the year
under review pursuant to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

THE AUDITORS

With the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Company engaged Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite
Partners”) as the external auditors for the financial year
ended 31 December 2020. Elite Partners is independent
and there are no relationships between Elite Partners and
the Company that are likely to impair its independence.
The roles and responsibilities of Elite Partners are stated
in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 147 to 154
of this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to Elite Partners, the independent
auditors, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out below:

Type of services provided by the independent auditors
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*ETFGEMLW%E Al Bﬁﬁ-wzﬁﬁu & EFA. 411;@
BERSEMZ A EMNER KRS - @Eﬁir‘m
%ia*ﬁ%ﬁewtm%ﬁﬁu%awﬂ Bx /J\5A15
ANETE-E$=H D

% BLEm
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BEAEHIRNAFEREV14TE154B 2 B LR BT

Lo

REBEE_Z_ZTF+_A=1+—RLFE #ABL
ZHMATEREE 2B RS MIEEAREM
XN/ RN EREIIMT

Fees paid/payable

BB AR ELE et EAER

HK$

BT

Audit services B R 1,100,000
Non-audit services IEEET AR TS

— Other —E -

TOTAL: A5t 1,100,000
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with effect
from 1 January 2019. In deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account, inter alia:

(i) the financial condition of the Group;

(i) the prevailing economic climate;

(i)  the Group’s earnings and cash flow;

(iv)  the Group’s expected capital requirements;

(v)  statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividends by the Company;

(vi) the retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the
Group; and

(vi) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is
also subject to the Bye-laws, the laws of Bermuda and
any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from
time to time by the Board and there can be no assurance
that any dividend will be proposed or declared in any
given period.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems and conducted annual review of
the effectiveness of such systems through the Audit
Committee. The Group’s risk management framework
sets out the process of identification, evaluation and
management of the principal risks affecting the business,
please refer to “Risk Management Report” of this annual
report for details. The Group’s system of internal control
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and
to manage and eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems and fulfilment of the business objectives. The
internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis
by the Board in order to make it practical and effective in
providing reasonable assurance in relation to protection
of material assets and shareholders’ interests.
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Internal Control Policies

The Group’s internal control has put in place by the
Board, management, and other personnel of the Group,
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
achievement of objectives in the following categories:

o Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
. Reliability of financial reporting
o Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

The internal control covers every activity and transaction
in the Group, while the Group emphasized that everyone
is an important part of internal control systems. The
internal control policies of the Group comprises five
aspects:

e  Separation of Duties

Separation of duties involves splitting responsibility
of particular experienced employees for personnel
administration, planning, performance monitoring,
marketing and accounting and requiring critical
tasks to be reviewed by the management of the
Group.

e  Access Control

Controlling access to different parts of data and/or
system via passwords, lockouts and electronic
access logs can keep unauthorized users out of the
data and/or system while access tracking can also
serve to deter attempts at fraudulent access in the
first place.

e Approval Authority

Requiring specific managers to authorize certain
types of transactions such as large amount orders,
significant transaction, etc and approval for
particular activities such as recruitment, marketing
plans, large payments and expenses, etc to
prevent unscrupulous employees from making large
fraudulent transactions.
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o Documentations

Standardizing documents used for particular
activities (e.g. Hotel room reservation form, petty
cash claim form, administration memo, etc) to
maintain consistency in record keeping over time.
Using standard document formats can make it
easier to review past records when searching for
the source of a discrepancy in the system.

o Internal Audit

Internal audits include test on the Group’s operating
procedures, documents examination, hand-
counting cash and any physical assets tracked, etc
to oversee the effectiveness of the internal controls.

The Board and the Audit Committee have conducted an
annual review on the need of setting up an internal audit
department and having considered that the corporate
and operation structure of the Group is not complex and
a separate internal audit department may divert resources
of the Group, the Board and the Audit Committee
consider that the Company currently is not necessary to
have an internal audit department.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee conducted a review on the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions, adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting, internal control and financial
reporting functions, and training programmes and
budget. The Audit Committee’s view on the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and
their effectiveness. The Board and the Audit Committee
considered the risk management and internal control of
the Group effective and adequate. No significant control
failings or weakness have been identified by the Audit
Committee during the review.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, no significant
areas of concern that might affect shareholders were
identified. It should be acknowledged that the Group's
risk management and Internal control system are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives at the reasonable
level, but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal control
for the handling and dissemination of price-sensitive
information, the Company is aware of its obligations
under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Law of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) and
the GEM Listing Rules and has established the inside
information/price sensitive information disclosure policy
(the “Disclosure Policy”) with close regard to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by
the Securities and Future Commission of Hong Kong.
The Disclosure Policy includes, among other things:

(i) only designated persons are authorised to
communicate the Company’s corporate matters
with investors, analysts, the media or other
members of the investment community;

(i)  Directors shall report to the Chief Executive Officer
any potential/suspected inside information as soon
as practicable for him to consult (if appropriate)
the Board thereafter for determining the nature of
developments, and if required, making appropriate
disclosure;

disclosure of inside information must be made in
a manner that can provide for equal, timely and
effective access by the public to the disclosed
inside information;

(il

(iv) inside information must be kept strictly confidential
until a public announcement is made and shall be
disseminated in accordance with the requirements
of the SFO and the GEM Listing Rules before it is

released via other channels.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2020.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders which
enables shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decision and to have better understanding
on the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Board also believes that it is vital for developing
and maintaining continuing investor relations with the
Company’s potential and existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.nationalarts.nk” as
a communication platform with its shareholders and investors,
where the Group’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are available for public access.

The Board considers general meetings of the Company
as an important channel for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board and will endeavour to be available
at the meetings to answer any questions raised by
shareholders of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure shareholders’
interest. To do so, the Company maintains on-going
dialogues with shareholders and encourage their
participation in the AGM or other general meetings.
Notice of meeting containing agenda, proposed
resolutions and proxy form are sent to registered
shareholders by post. All shareholders are entitled to
attend AGM and special general meetings (“SGM”),
provided that their names are registered in the register
of members of the Company on the record date which is
used to determine the entitlement to attend a meeting.

/
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According to the Bye-laws, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of
the Company, to require an SGM to be called by the
Board, provided that such requisition properly states the
object(s) and deposited at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the Company Secretary,
and be verified with and confirmed by the Company’s
share registrar that such requisition is proper and in
order.

The SGM shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more than
one-half of their total voting rights may do so, but any
SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of 83 months from the date of deposit of the requisition.
A meeting convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be
convened in the same manner as if the meeting was
convened by the Board.

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either
any number of registered shareholders holding not
less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (the “Requisitionists”), or not
less than 100 registered shareholders, can request the
Company in writing to (i) provide shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next general meeting with notice
of any resolution(s) which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting; and (ii) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meetings any statement(s) in not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolutions or other businesses to be dealt with at that
meeting. A requisition signed by all the requisitionist(s)
with a sum sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses shall be deposited at the registered office
of the Company not less than six weeks in case of a
requisition requiring a notice of resolution(s) or before the
meeting. If an AGM is called for on a date six weeks or
less after the deposit of such requisition, such requisition,
through not deposited within the required time period,
shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the
purpose thereof.
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Enquiries from shareholders

Shareholders’ enquiries regarding their shareholdings
should be directed to the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited. Other enquiries from shareholders
can be directed to the Board whose contact details are
shown on page 4 of this annual report.

To ensure the long-term growth and achieve the Group’s
strategic objectives, an effective risk management takes
an essential and important role. Since 2017, the Group
adopted a systematic and sustainable approach in
order to provide a clear responsibility and accountability
structure for risk management.

The Group’s risk management framework clearly stated
the role of the Board, Audit Committee, managerial
officers of the Company (the “Management”) and
business unit and their own responsibilities to risk
management. The aim is to identify risks and then
manage them so that they can be understood, reduced,
mitigated or avoided. The Group’s Risk Management
Report was presented to the Board for review.
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THE GROUP’S RISK MANAGEMENT AEENRREERE

FRAMEWORK

The Group’s risk management framework and its own AEBNRBREEEREREASMNEF !

responsibilities:

The Group’s risk management framework FEEMEGEEREE

The Board
e Board Oversight
e Goal Formulation

EEE
e EEEER
o & E B iZ

The Audit Committee
¢ |Independent Assurance
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Risk escalation and
assurance
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¢ Risk Reporting and
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Business unit/individuals
e Risk and Control Ownership
* Mitigating Plans
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Top-down approach:
Evaluate and monitor the strategic
risk to achieve the Group’s goals
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Guidelines, role and
responsibilities
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Bottom-up approach:

Identification and prioritization of all material risks by cross-functional workshop
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The Group’s Risk Management
Responsibilities

1. The Board is responsible to:

Formulate the annual business objectives,
planning and decision making at the strategic
level;

Oversee management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management framework and approve risk
appetite. Meeting with Audit Committee
and the Management to ensure the risk
management framework is maintained
appropriately and effectively.

2. The Audit Committee is responsible to:

Oversee the Group’s overall risk assessment
along with the effectiveness of the risk
controls and mitigation process and
identify all material risks that may impact
the achievement of the Group’s business
objectives;

Review the risk reports and breaches of risk
tolerances and policies, and discuss with
the Management in relation to the selected
risks for more detailed review. Summarise the
material risks and circulate to the Board.

3. The Management is responsible to:

Review the risk management process
regularly, and report on the key risks and
consider common risks across the Group.
The Group Risk Management Report shall
be prepared and submitted to the Audit
Committee;

Identify the Group’s financial risks and non-
financial risks, including strategic reputational,
regulatory, operational risk and rank the
risks with reference to their own materiality
and circumstances. Risk register shall be
established;

Establish various policies, procedures and
guidelines with defined authority for effective
segregation in relation to the risk management
and established an effective communication
channel to report on any malpractice and
unethical conduct. The training programme is
arranged for the Group’s employees regularly
to ensure their understanding of the Group’s
business objectives and their own duties.
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT
R EERE

4. The business units and each individual are
responsible to:

Carry out risk management activities
in day-to-day operation in their areas
of responsibility, making effective risk
management processes and mitigating plans
in accordance with good practices and
guidelines established by the Management;

Report any malpractice and unethical
conduct within the Group without fear of
reprisal and victimization, and discuss with
the Management on any difficulties in relation
to the risk management on a timely basis.
Business Unit risk management reports
shall be prepared and submitted to the
Management.
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The Group’s Risk Management Process

The Group’s risk management process consists of
1) Establishing the risk context; 2)
Identifying risks; 3) Risk assessment and evaluation; 4) EarEl 5’
Developing control and mitigation plans; 5) Risk reporting
and monitoring, covering the business and decision-

five major phases:

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT
Bl EEIRE

FREMEKREERF

$E@mﬂﬂaﬁﬁ§ﬁﬁﬁkﬁaiﬂ*iﬂ
ﬁ%%i)ﬁﬁﬂa:) B R4 4)HIE B R AT

frmE RER MEXEBIREREF
BREAERE XBEREAE E20k RE
RERBAFEE !

making processes including strategy formulation,
business development and planning, capital allocation,

investment decisions and day-to-day operation:

1). Establishing the risk context
HERBE R

2). Identifying risks
EERlll

3). Risk assessment and evaluation

BB F

Risk reference tables for the Group were established and
updated by the business units and reviewed by the Management
regularly.

EBBUAREERYRENARSER YHEEETHEHN -

The Management sets a common risk language to avoid any
conflicting terminology or confusion.
ERERT —MREABREE BREAEAEHRAEIES-

In annual business planning process, divisions and departments
are required to identify all material risks that may impact their
achievement of business objectives.
EEFEBREB/EF 9B LIMPIEBRIFT
BRI A ERER-

EFEEBERER

Divisions and departments identify the risks at the business unit
level and the Management identifies the risks including financial
and non-financial risk at the Group level.
DEELBPABEBELEEMNRER EREZNEEEEN Y
% N IER 15 [ B o

Divisions and departments assess and score the risk identified
along with their impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

53 &b Ko #B PIRT 14 K BF 18 P a8k Bl 69 L B
BRI R -

AREBEBNTERE

The Management shall ensure project risk for each investment
project is assessed in details and properly documented
EREERERESEREEETFANIAL ARG T
FLERFEER ©

The risks identified in the annual business planning process
and/or in each investment planning process are evaluated based
on the same set of risk profiling criteria as the quarterly risk
review process.

E2FEBREBREPR /RESEREREBRED BN

R REAFERREHARNRF —ERMB D ITERFE-
BEREX(EBARD 7 —F_FFR
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R R E TR R
4). Developing control and

mitigation plans
il 7 BR 1T R AT R AT

5). Risk reporting and monitoring
[\ e ¥ 5 % B 5%

The Management reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management process and approves the mitigation plans.
ERERNRERERERFOERIE RIS EFESE -

Divisions and departments identify risk and then processes
the mitigating plans in accordance with good practices and
guidelines established by the Management.

DE R B FBRE IR EPNGIE R R E AR MRS B ER A
& EIE AT R T8

Emerging risks and/or overarching strategic risks, which may
have a material impact on the Group over a longer time frame,
are monitored and discussed on a quarterly basis by the Audit
Committee and the Board.

HERHRERE, HEEZNRBEERARREM S EHAEE
EREATE AASEECZERERETGERNETETH

A
Afd ©

The Board established a communication channel including
bottom-up and top-down review process across the Group.
EFSHTRRRE BREUAEERBETATM ERALM
THERH -

Business units prepared the quarterly Business Unit Risk
Management Report and submitted to the Management. The
Management reviews the Business Unit Risk Management
Report and highlights the material risk in the Group Risk
Management Report and submits to the Audit Committee on a
quarterly basis.
EBENGRETEEBEVAREEREVERTERE - B8
EEFENEBELRARERRS MERELEERAREE®R
ERNERER TEXTEREZES-

Material Risks of the Group AEEEXE K

Since 2016, the Group has adopted the an enterprise BT —AFR AEBERACERRERSE
risk management system (the “ERM System”) in the (EE£RBEEHE]) LRI KT AEEH
identification and analysis of existing and emerging ¥BRBRIANESEENRERITEXRAR -
risks to the business strategy planning and business PIEER RBREERR  UBERLEERR -
development of the Group including: business, strategic IR ERRERHNENREENERE .
and regulatory risks, financial risks and operational risks. NASEERERFEEBROERRR  k2)§
The ERM System adopted was compiled to cover: 1) EFEEEED LHEXRRRNBEITEEI X
the material risks of the Group in both existing and new |

business; and 2) associated action plans and controls
designed to mitigate the material risks, where applicable,

at appropriate levels:
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Risk Description Risk Mitigations
[ I 8 3 [ I8 4F 4B HE B

Business, strategic and regulatory risks: They are the risks in relation to the impact from the market environments,
changes of corporate structure, non-compliance of regulatory, rules or laws and the strategy planning of the
Group. These risks included longer-term risks for the upcoming 3-5 year and are reviewed by Audit Committee
quarterly and documented in the Group’s Risk Management Report.

X% EMREERR MEDETISZRIR AFALABEY BEREEAT RAUSEEREAEERBREMES
TERENRR ZEERAERRIESFHNRBER HEXZECEZTEHRESERRERBRERLHEASR-

Failure to React to Rapid Growth of Online In the film production segment, the Group plans
Activities (Online Threat) to introduce various elements e.g. Computer
Graphics Technologies, Virtual Reality, etc. and
invest in online TV programme, micro movies, etc.
to cope with the high demands in online market.
RELEEST NEEFESIATRENTE  F
MEKEEREN ERESS UTREM LSRG
B WMEXE UEHE LM EEREK-

The continuous and rapid growth of online activities
including digital media and online marketing further
drives changes in business behavior while altering the
entire competitive landscape, especially in the PRC.

Furthermore, online rating platforms are increasingly
popular which allow customers to give comments on
the Group’s products and services and thus reputational
risks for the Group become higher and higher.

° The Group uses variety of online media
e.g. Facebook, Instagram etc. to establish
communication channel with existing and new
customers. In the meantime, the Group cooperates
with other online media to put more focus on

RERMHERERROALED (HLRE) marketing efforts to attract target customers.
AEBFMATEMGE LES  flAFacebook:
PBETEFERRMWIZRE  BI15 SUSEHEE LA EEHE Instagram% - @V BB E RN T PN EBRBE M
E—PREEFTANE ARKEREARFRE R AEBEEMPEEEAE AEERF
B EIEET o BHEZEHER-
WO EERTFTBIFEHXBIINEN EFEESEZF AU The Group from time to time reviews comments
HAEBNEREREHMETE Bt AEEHEE on online rating platforms and made adjustments
R E SRS - to its products and services to improve customer
experiences.

AEETHBEERAETFE LOFE ARYE
EmRREELAEARETZFEER-

Possible Non-compliance with Corporate e The Group has continuously improved and

Governance Code enhanced its enterprise risk management
framework and strengthened a range of guideline,
With effect from 1 January 2016, the Stock Exchange procedures and policies for employees across the

Group to comply with the amendments and further
adjustments are being made to relevant processes
to facilitate timely compliance.
REBEBERNSRESECERMBERERE WM
W—RIES BERBEEK EXFAEELERS
By T HEBMEFELETME —FRHE U
fREFERFETHEAMRAA -

has amended its Corporate Governance Code relating
to risk management. With the rapid development
of the Group, employee’s risk awareness and risk
management technique may not be sufficient to ensure
full compliance of the relevant requirements.

TREEREEEETA

B2 R"F-A—BR8 BIXMAETERARARERE
MEEERTA BEARBENREHR BTHRBK
BERLEARERRGE N RARREZEETHEBBRE -

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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Risk Description

i 4 3t

Risk Mitigations
[ 1% 4F 4B HE B

Product Competitiveness

The Group is well known for operating the Xigiao
National Arts Studio Project including film shooting
areas, theme parks, etc. in Foshan City. However, some
of the tourists may raise their attention to the theme
park with similar nature nearby which got the national
AAAA level tourist attractions identity since August
2016. The establishment of nearby competitor increased
the importance of products and services diversity for
the Group in order to retain the attention of tourists.

ERBREN

$%EE%MW%@ME$ME%%@W RE® &
TRABENES TERES A B TIRE AL
EM%&Mﬁ@M&EmI%QH ReZErEB —
T—NF/\AREFELSBERIARIRE T[S - FERE
T EB S E AR T M — o A

BEMMRESHEUENEE L -

° To enhance the competitiveness of Xigiao National
Arts Studio Project, the Group has continuously
enriched the festival events and entertainment
programs, cooperated with resourceful companies
to jointly organize and develop a series of unique
projects such as Summer Sea, Land, Sky Carnival,
Fresh Start Temple Fair and Halloween Event etc.
ﬁ SEEILBEEZRRIEBENRE N NEET

EEXESREHFIRLIBANAR  WEHER

HE\QHQW SERIAEA R — ?ﬂ%ﬁﬁa

BEERFE BREVPERUFNEE

° Given the rapid development of Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the “Greater
Bay Area”), the tourism industry of the Greater
Bay Area is excepted to become the focal point
of development. As the Studio is located at
the boundary line of the Greater Bay Area, it is
expected to benefit from the strong momentum
of the development in the Greater Bay Area. The
Group planned construction project to expand
both indoor and outdoor shooting bases and
enhance the filming ancillary facilities. The Group is
of the view that the development of Studio would
help the Group to capture potential growth and
business opportunltles
RN EBRAER Ui%EDWﬂ%%E*K@
&mm&%%%%ﬁ%%%%% AR ﬁmu%
RNERH @‘%%HiﬁﬁkmEM¥@ A 5E o R
%IEH%%@iW%m%W RAMBEERE -
RAEERBEZHEMNERKE B AL EIEIE IR
BB R R ERSE-

° The Group is the first nominated corporation
to assist the State Administration of Press,
Publication, Radio, Film and Television of Foshan
City in the operation and expansion of digital
studios and shooting bases establishment and
movie prop equipment leasing service etc.
after Foshan Municipal People’s Government
announced its “Foshan City Support Policies for
Film and Television Industry Development” on
1 August 2017. As such, the Group will benefit
from the supportive policies and actively invite
different film and television companies to settle
in Foshan with the provision of the Group’s film
and television services so as to effectively expand
the Group’s customer base in different areas
and increase the reputation of the Group in the
industry.
AEBEEHRILTARBER-_ZT—tFNA—
HEMKFRILT R REXERNSE THBE) N
T BRCEXIIBRBAMBE LT S EEHE
bR BEE R hERSEBRE N ERESHEER
FAR 8 B2 Mﬁg 7% o B BRI IFBUR

ITHHBEFIRANCEINFBILTEPREREE
/EWFZ%EhfégE%E%@$HEE%
= AA R o

=)
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EFE AEEIRE
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Risk Description

i i 3t

Risk Mitigations
[ I8 4F 4B HE B

Financial risks: There are multiple types of risk associated with financing, including financial transactions. Financial
risks is one of the major concerns of the Group across different fields and geographies. The Group reviewed the
financial performance and assessed these risks before and after making each investment decision. The Group’s

risk management report in relation to these risks was prepared and reviewed on quarterly basis.

MEER: BRE (BREBRXZ)HENEBRERES -

AEBRGSPBRALRMELBEKREREMRFEZETRR -

EITRELER-
Highly Dependent on Debt Financing

The repayment of the debts and the payment of the
relevant interest as a result of the financing by issuing
bonds, convertible bonds, shareholder’s loan with an
regular interest payment put pressure on the Group’s
cash flow.

BEREEEMA

ﬁ@% %% AMEESR RREKERE B
E ﬁﬁiﬁ%&iﬁ$wﬂ%%$%gmﬁﬁ

Wrm}

o

=,
=
H’>%

Foreign Currency Risk Associated with the Group’s
Investments

The Group’s foreign currency risk remains low through
currency matching practices of revenue, cost and debt.

R AR E 1% & A 69 b E E g

FEREHER RARBEREENERE T NEEH
SN L B A 5 BE K

%%Hkﬁ$E@FTHEW&mEWI%ﬁ%Z*°

=
AEERZERRZEAREERSZEFTE KX

The Group commenced a debt restructuring
exercise during the year ended 31 December
2019. The debt restructuring exercise was
completed during the year ended 31 December
2020 by way of issuing new shares and convertible
bonds. Upon the completion of the debt
restructuring exercise, the principle and interests
for the Group’s debts was significantly decreased
and thus the short term pressure on the Group’s
cash flows was eased.
AEERHEE _T—

R T 1%§@a%%§mama§,7f$¢
T_AZT - BLEFEEBFITHRN KA AR
BHEK - -REBEATKE AEBREKNAS
&ﬂ%ﬁfﬁ¢ B b 7 52 830 & i 75 T A R B

The Group from time to time exploring potential
possible fund-raising activities that would benefit
the Group as a whole so that the Group would
have adequate financial resources to settle its
liabilities.

AEEIERRHAEEERBEMN 2 BEAES
A M@$%E%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéf% EHAE-

Maintain current currency matching practices of
revenue, cost and debt.

MR B AT H A AN KBTS G BB HOE

Project level debts to be denominated in and/or
swapped into functional currency where possible.
Ut EMEstER /B BRATEER (HER)
WIBEBER-

Adopt hedging transaction in line with the Group
Treasury Policy, where applicable, at appropriate
levels.
EMNAAKRBEETRRNEEKFHHRS (H
HA) -

Operational risks: There are the risks of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events. The Group considered that these risks are closely related to good and quality
management. In view of that, the Group has set up an effective internal control system. Details of the Internal
Control are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 57 to 81 of this annual report.

gE2Ek: AANETF BEIMAGTIRARBIINKREEMEL - AEERRREARERITRSE %%E%
TR BENI AEBER i*ﬁ‘xﬁ(lﬁq‘@*i‘ Ko MMEE R E RN A E REST R AN L ET AR -
B2REXEEEFRA —ETER
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Risk Description

i 4 3t

Risk Mitigations
[ B & 4R 48 7

Recruitment, Staff Retention and Training

Film and service industries in the PRC are developing
rapidly, and demand for talent has increased
substantially. New technologies emerged yet there is
a lack of relevant external training. The Group may
face shortages and losses in human resources and
technology.

B REs T Rl

PREEYRRBITEELRER HASFX £18
o ﬁi&%ﬁﬁ@ﬂzﬁ%%%iﬂhﬁﬁgiﬁﬁ
ANEREZMZERIER -

;N_(}ﬁ’onal Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limi

. By ¥

The Group recognizes that young people play
an important role in its future success, and it is
essential to attract them to join the Group and
encourage them to develop their career with the
Group. The Group enhanced its human resources
structure and shifted its focus towards recruiting
fresh graduates and develop a range of training
programmes to cultivate home grown talents for
the future management pipeline.

EEERBFEAHBEMORKKNEREE - H
(LIRS PN bAﬁ%l&ﬁ@E%$%E%

REEX -AKERAELANEREBILIHELE
BEREREES % REE— ?WM@EEM%
BARMATERREEMHK -

Tailored training programmes covering
management, customers service, financial, etc are
offered with support from Hong Kong head office
to enhance employees’ capability and to improve
personal performance.

EREBAR AR RESHEMAEIIES
NiRmEEE N REARE -

Management of Hong Kong head office will travel
to the PRC office for experience sharing and an
effective communication channel was established
between Hong Kong head office and the PRC
office for reporting and enquiry.

BHEHER TZE@F%%&#I %Eﬁunxﬁ'
ERBRARTEBRERIHAEIBEREAERE

AEREREH -

The Group held a series of activities for employees
(e.g. Chinese New Year Celebration, Annual Dinner,
etc) and provides Employee Discount Program with
an aim to enhance the staff’'s sense of belonging
to the Group and to establish a good working
relationship with the management.

ALEREERIT—RIEE (WERTEREN
F-FERE )&hﬁ@a%ﬂﬁ\ﬁﬂ e =
BINEAEH m%%m&ﬁaﬁﬁgiiﬂ@%°
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Risk Mitigations
B B3 47 4% 18 e

Inadequate Infrastructure

With the rapid development of the Group (including
hotel, film shooting base, cinema) etc., local
infrastructure such as network and electricity may not
be able to support the Group’s new projects.

EREBRTRE

BEASENRIER (BHEEEE EXHEEL &
FhEHE) W ERRE (EKREN) ATREEZX
mEARBEMAEER -

The Group understands that to be a successful business,
risk management is very important. In 2021, the Group
will continue to (including but not limited to):

- Improve and enhance the risk management
framework and its implementation to ensure
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and other applicable regulations.

S Offer risk awareness training programme to the
PRC existing and new business and continue to
review the effectiveness of the Internal Control
System in the PRC.

- Seek opportunities to provide both internal and/or
external training for its employees to enhance their
risk awareness and risk management technique.

It should be acknowledged that the Group’s risk
management focuses on the risk detection, mitigation,
and avoidance to provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

On behalf of the Board

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited

(Provisional Liquidators Appointed)

(For Restructuring Purposes)

Chow Kai Weng

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 October 2021

o The Group continuously devote resources to
upgrade its facilities and will perform detailed
planning to make sure infrastructure are sufficient
for coming projects before their commencement.
REBEBABARERBZEMIEAER  WAFNITEF
MOt B ARERARIEE LS T2 AT HEAETER
e AT LA E R L 4K o

BH KBRS & QR
AEBEBEE(BEETR

> D
HE XA
il
g
<}
sl
et
=
(et
H
N
R

- RAFERERFAFRREHRREEEEL
R@gBEmRNPEANEERRNBERL -

- BUBBREESRHEMNIR HINEI -
iR mE R B & E R E e

BEALR AKENERREEZENEARRA R
ERBEEBOHRERRERERBRELEGEM
JEBERIRTE

RREFS

EERELRERRAT

(B EEA)

(tEEM %)

TE BITEERITHAAH

) ES

B —E-—F+A=-+_-H

BEREXCEEERA A

[

—E_ZTFR

91



92

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHREE

The Board has pleasure in presenting the directors’
report together with the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment
holding. The principal activities of the Group include film
production and distribution, the provision of management
services to artistes, event coordination, provision of travel
related products and operations of film studio and hotel.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group are set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities
(including an indication of likely future developments in
the Group’s business) and a review of the performance of
the Group for the year under review can be found in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report. These discussions form part of this
Directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The operation of the Group’s business may be affected
by major risks and uncertainties which are set out in the
“Risk Management Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group is dedicated in promoting an environmentally-
friendly corporate environment and incorporating green
philosophy into the development of the Group. Details
of the Group’s environmental policies and performance
during the year under review as well as its compliance
record of laws and regulations which have a material
implication or impact on its operation are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.

EEEMAREAKEBE_FT _ZTHF+_A
ST HLEFEZEFEREEERKLERYH
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 155
to 156.

No dividend was paid during the year under review. The
Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the financial results and the assets,
liabilities and equity of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 304.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year under review are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year under review are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
during the year under review are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 39
to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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WINDING UP PETITION AND
APPOINTMENT OF JOINT
PROVISIONAL LIQUIDATORS

To facilitate the Company’s financial restructuring, on
14 June 2019, a winding up petition together with
the application for the appointment of Mr. Osman
Mohammed Arab and Mr. Lai Wing Lun, both of RSM
Corporate Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited, and Mr. Roy
Bailey c/o EY Bermuda Ltd as joint provisional liquidators
(the “JPLs”) of the Company on a light touch approach
for restructuring purposes (the “JPL Application”) was
presented and filed with the Supreme Court of Bermuda
(the “Bermuda Court”’) by the Company’s Bermuda
Counsel, Conyers Dill & Pearman at the request of the
Company.

The JPL Application was heard before the Bermuda
Court on the same date at 2:30 p.m. Bermuda time.
The Bermuda Court made the orders as sought by the
Company under the JPL Application, inter alia, the JPLs
have been appointed with immediate effect.

Pursuant to the order made by the Bermuda Court (the
“‘Bermuda Order”), the JPLs are granted a wide range of
powers, including but not limited to the powers to review
the financial position of the Company, to monitor, consult
with, oversee and otherwise liaise with the existing Board
and the creditors and shareholders of the Company in
determining the most appropriate manner of effecting
a reorganisation and/or refinancing of the Company, to
seek assistance of or recognition in any other courts
as may be considered appropriate, and to do all things
necessary and incidental to the exercise of the foregoing
powers, etc.

By an order of the Honourable Mr. Justice Wilson Chan
dated 15 August 2019, (i) the appointment of the JPLs
pursuant to the order of the Bermuda Court dated
14 June 2019 was recognized by the High Court of
Hong Kong with the powers conferred therein and (ii)
the Company shall be permitted to register the transfer
of fully paid up shares in the Company. As such, a court
order has been in place to allow the transfer of fully paid
up shares of the Company.

EREBREALREEEBRA

BTREARAMNMBER RZFT—LEFEAX
A+HMB EBARARIER ARAMBRERZM
Conyers Dill & Pearman(l & % iE f&x =40t ([ B 5
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RESTRUCTURING TRANSACTION

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
30 July 2019, on 10 July 2019, as part of the Company’s
financial restructuring plans, the Company invited all
known creditors of the Company (the “Creditors”) to
make an offer to the Company to subscribe for:

1

1% annual coupon rate convertible bonds
due 2024 to be issued by the Company (the
“Convertible Bonds”) in the principal amount
equal to 60% of the outstanding principal amount
of debts due and owing by the Company to each
of the Creditors (where applicable, together with
interests accrued thereon and calculated up to
14 June 2019 at the respective annual interest
rate of the relevant debt(s)) and convertible into
fully-paid ordinary shares of the Company listed
and traded on GEM at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.55 per conversion share (the
“Conversion Shares”) (the “CB Subscription”);
and

new shares of the Company at the issue price of
HK$0.38 per share (the “New Shares”) the total
value of which equals to the remaining 40% of the
outstanding principal amount of debts due and
owing by the Company to each of the Creditors
(where applicable, together with interests accrued
thereon and calculated up to 14 June 2019 at
the respective annual interest rate of the relevant
debt(s)) (the “Share Subscription”) (the CB
Subscription and the Share Subscription together
referred to as the “Restructuring Transaction”),
as full and final settlement of all outstanding debts
(where applicable, together with interests accrued
thereon and calculated up to 14 June 2019 at
the respective annual interest rate of the debt(s))
due and owing by the Company to the Creditors,
subject to the execution, and the final terms and
conditions, of the subscription agreement, the
bond instrument, any scheme of arrangement
proposed by the Company and/or other
agreements the execution of which is desirable
for the implementation and consummation of the
Restructuring Transaction, as the case maybe.

__
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The offer by the Creditors to participate in the
Restructuring Transaction also includes an agreement
that the Creditors will participate in, support and vote
in favour of a scheme(s) of arrangement proposed by
the Company, where such scheme(s) is/are deemed
necessary and appropriate by the Company and the JPLs
of the Company appointed pursuant to the Order of the
Bermuda Court dated 14 June 2019.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
12 August 2019, the Company has received substantial
support from its creditors regarding the Restructuring
Transaction. In this respect, the Company proposed
to put forward a scheme of arrangement pursuant to
Section 99 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and Section 670 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) of Hong Kong with substantially similar terms
under the Restructuring Transaction as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 July 2019,
further details of which are set out in the paragraph
headed “Scheme of Arrangement” below.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

As announced on 19 August 2019, the Company
proposed to implement, subject to the approval by the
Bermuda Court and the Hong Kong Court, the scheme
of arrangement (the “Scheme”). Under the Scheme, the
Company will issue the New Shares and the Convertible
Bonds to the creditors of the Company (the “Creditors”)
to discharge and release the debt owing by the Company
to the Creditors in full (the “Claims”).

Up to 14 June 2019 (the “Restructuring Order
Date”), based on the available books and records of
the Company, the estimated total amount of Claims
against the Company is approximately HK$2.13 billion.
This figure is indicative only and will be subject to final
determination by the scheme administrators and (if
applicable) adjudication under the Scheme.

On 4 October 2019, the Company obtained the directions
of the Bermuda Court and the Hong Kong Court in the
hearing before the Hong Kong Court and the Bermuda
Court of the applications for leave to convene the
meeting of the Creditors for the purpose of considering
and approving, if thought fit, the Scheme by the Creditors
(the “Scheme Meeting”) on 8 November 2019. At such
Scheme Meeting, the Scheme was approved by the
requisite statutory majorities of the Creditors.
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On 10 October 2019, the Company convened the special
general meeting (“SGM”) to consider and approve, if
thought fit, the resolutions in relation to the Scheme, all
of which were duly passed by way of poll, including the
specific mandate granted to the Directors to allot and
issue the New Issues and Convertible Bonds and the
increase the authorised share capital of the Company
from HK$600,000,000 divided into 6,000,000,000 Shares
to HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000
Shares by the creation of additional 14,000,000,000 New
Shares. On 27 November 2019, the Company obtained
the conditional approval from the Stock Exchange for the
listing of, and permission to deal in, the New Shares and
Conversion Shares.

With the applications to the Bermuda Court and Hong
Kong Court to sanction the Scheme subsequently, the
Scheme was sanctioned by the Bermuda Court and
Hong Kong Court on 13 December 2019 and 6 January
2020 respectively. The orders sanctioning the Scheme
by the Bermuda Court and the Hong Kong Court were
respectively registered with the Registrar of Companies in
Bermuda on 26 February 2020 and Companies Registry
in Hong Kong on 6 March 2020. As all conditions
precedent to the Scheme have been fulfilled on 6 March
2020, the Scheme became effective on 6 March 2020.

As announced in the Company’s announcement
dated 20 March 2020, the Creditors were required
to submit their respective notices of Claims together
with other documents or other evidence necessary for
substantiating their Claims to the scheme administrators
on or before 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 14 April 2020 (the
“Cut-Off Date”). The notice to Creditors of the Cut-
Off Date was given to all Creditors by letter and by
advertisement published in “The Standard” (in English)
and “Sing Tao Daily” (in Chinese) circulated in Hong
Kong, in “Ta Kung Pao” (in Chinese) circulated in the
PRC, and in “The Royal Gazette” (in English) circulated in
Bermuda on 20 March 2020.

Based on the final amounts of Claims of each Creditor,
on 29 June 2020, 2,155,114,938 New Shares were
allotted and issued and Convertible Bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$1,244,876,198 were
issued to the Creditors.

Upon the issue of the New Shares and Convertible
Bonds, all the Claims of the Creditors have been
discharged and extinguished and the Creditors are not
allowed to make any claim against the Company in
respect of their Claims.
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Issue of New Shares and Convertible Bonds
under Specific Mandate

On 29 June 2020, completion of the Share Subscription
and the CB Subscription took place, under which
the Company (i) allotted and issued, in aggregate,
2,115,114,938 New Shares at the issue price of HK$0.38
per New Share for settlement of 40% of the Claims
held by the Creditors against the Company as at the
Restructuring Order Date which have been admitted by
the scheme administrators (the “Admitted Claims”) of
the Creditors; and (ii) issued the Convertible Bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$1,244,876,198.

Details of the Share Subscription

The New Shares allotted have an aggregate nominal value
of up to HK$211,511,493.8. The issue price of HK$0.38
per New Share represents a premium of approximately
84.47% over the closing price of HK$0.206 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 19 August 2019. The
New Shares are subject to a lock-up period of 12 months
from the date of completion of the Share Subscription.

Details of the CB Subscription

The value of the Convertible Bonds issued to the
Creditors was approximately HK$1,244,876,198, being
the sum of (i) up to approximately HK$1,228,415,625 for
the aggregation of 60% of the Claims of the Creditors
and (i) HK$16,460,573 for the consent bonus (the
“Consent Bonus”) (being an extra one (1) per cent of
the outstanding principal amount of an eligible Creditor’s
debt (where applicable, together with interests accrued
thereon and calculated up to the Restructuring Order
Date at the respective annual interest rate of the relevant
debt(s)) to be awarded to the eligible Creditors in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme). Assuming the
exercise in full of the conversion rights (the “Conversion
Rights”) attached to the Convertible Bonds at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.55 per Conversion
Share, an aggregate of 2,263,411,269 Shares (with
an aggregate nominal value of HK$226,341,126.9) will
be issued. The maturity date of the Convertible Bonds
falls on the day being the fifth (5th) anniversary of the
issue date of the Convertible Bonds (‘“Maturity Date”).
Subject to the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds, the conversion price will initially be HK$0.55 per
share, but subject to customary adjustments including
but not limited to (i) consolidation or subdivision; (ii)
rights issue of shares or rights to acquire shares; (iii)
issues of convertible securities; (iv) modification of
rights of conversion; (v) other offers to shareholders;
and (vi) other events. The initial conversion price of
HK$0.55 per Conversion Shares represents a premium
of approximately 166.99% over the closing price of
HK$0.206 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 19 August 2019.
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The Convertible Bonds bear interest at 1% annual
coupon rate payable annually from the issue date of
the Convertible Bonds. The conversion period of the
Convertible Bonds is from 29 June 2023 to 28 June
2025 during which period the holders of the Convertible
Bonds can convert the Convertible Bonds into shares of
the Company, provided that no holder of the Convertible
Bonds shall exercise any conversion rights attached to
the Convertible Bonds to the extent that immediately after
such conversion (i) the holder of the Convertible Bonds
together with parties acting in concert with it, taken
together, will, directly or indirectly, control or be interested
in 30% or more of the voting rights of the Company (or
such percentage as may from time to time be specified
in the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers as
being the level for triggering a mandatory general offer)
or otherwise being obliged to make a general offer for
Shares in accordance with the requirement of the Hong
Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers or (ii) there will not
be sufficient public float of the Shares as required under
the GEM Listing Rules.

Unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased or
cancelled, the Company will redeem all of the Convertible
Bonds on the Maturity Date at such amount equivalent
to the principal amount of the outstanding Convertible
Bonds (inclusive of interests received up to the Maturity
Date).

The New Shares were and the Conversion Shares will be
allotted and issued under the specific mandate sought
from the Shareholders (other than Mr. Sin Kwok Lam
(“Mr. Sin”), Ms. Law Po Yee (“Ms Law”), Mr. Chow Kai
Weng (“Mr. Chow”), Mr. Tse Young Lai (‘Mr. Tse”) and
Mr. Yiu Kin Kong and any Shareholder with a material
interest in the Scheme) at the SGM held on 10 October
2019.

The Company obtained the conditional approval from the
Stock Exchange for the listing of, and permission to deal
in, the New Shares and the Conversion Shares.
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Dilutive impact of the conversion of the
Convertible Bonds

Assuming that there is no change in share capital of the
Company since 31 December 2020 and the Conversion
Rights are exercised in full, the number of issued shares
of the Company will be increased by 2,263,411,269,
representing approximately 30.49% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2020 (i.e.
7,423,868,369 Shares) and approximately 23.36% of
the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by
the allotment and issue of the conversion shares. Such
allotment and issue of the conversion shares will result in
the respective shareholdings of the shareholders being
diluted by approximately 23.36%.

Assuming there is no change in the shareholding of the
substantial shareholder (within the meaning of the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Company since 31 December 2020,
the shareholding of the substantial shareholder of the
Company as at 31 December 2020 immediately before
and after the exercise of the Conversion Rights is set out
below for illustration purposes:
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Shareholding immediately
before the exercise of
the Conversion Rights
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Approximate

Shareholding immediately
after the exercise of
the Conversion Rights
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Approximate

Number of percentage of Number of percentage of

Name of Shareholder Shares held shareholding Shares held shareholding

16 B #E 15 R HE

REREZ HERHBEHE BHEst BHEROGHE BMHESL

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Note) 1,5684,147,296 21.34% 2,334,562,548 24.10%

HBIARSE & (HEE) 1,584,147,296 21.34%  2,334,562,548 24.10%

Ms. Law Po Yee (Note) 1,5684,147,296 21.34% 2,334,562,548 24.10%

‘wEZ L (M) 1,584,147,296 21.34%  2,334,562,548 24.10%
Note: M3 -

By virtue of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, each of
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam and Ms. Law Po Yee, being spouses, was
deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which the other was
interested.
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Diluted earnings per share for the profit attributable to the
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
was the same as basic earnings per share as the impact of the
exercise of the Convertible Bonds is anti-dilutive.

Taking into account the measures taken by the Group to improve
its financial and liquidity positions and the financial and liquidity
positions of the Group and to the best knowledge and belief of
the Company, the Company expects that it will be able to meet
its redemption obligations under the Convertible Bonds.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EFEREE

Y48 1 - DA B b R X A AR A0 K R
BEEIBITRATRERESRETZE
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The Convertible Bonds bear interest at 1% annual
coupon rate payable annually from the issue date of
the Convertible Bonds. The conversion period of the
Convertible Bonds is from 29 June 2023 to 28 June
2025 during which period the holders of the Convertible
Bonds can convert the Convertible Bonds into shares of
the Company, provided that no holder of the Convertible
Bonds shall exercise any conversion rights attached to
the Convertible Bonds to the extent that immediately after
such conversion (i) the holder of the Convertible Bonds
together with parties acting in concert with it, taken
together, will, directly or indirectly, control or be interested
in 30% or more of the voting rights of the Company (or
such percentage as may from time to time be specified
in the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers as
being the level for triggering a mandatory general offer)
or otherwise being obliged to make a general offer for
Shares in accordance with the requirement of the Hong
Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers or (ii) there will not
be sufficient public float of the Shares as required under
the GEM Listing Rules.

Unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased or
cancelled, the Company will redeem all of the Convertible
Bonds on the Maturity Date at such amount equivalent
to the principal amount of the outstanding Convertible
Bonds (inclusive of interests received up to the Maturity
Date).

The New Shares were and the Conversion Shares will be
allotted and issued under the specific mandate sought
from the Shareholders (other than Mr. Sin Kwok Lam
(“Mr. Sin”), Ms. Law Po Yee (“Ms Law”), Mr. Chow Kai
Weng (“Mr. Chow”), Mr. Tse Young Lai (“Mr. Tse”) and
Mr. Yiu Kin Kong and any Shareholder with a material
interest in the Scheme) at the SGM held on 10 October
2019.

The Company obtained the conditional approval from the
Stock Exchange for the listing of, and permission to deal
in, the New Shares and the Conversion Shares.

Connected Transactions in relation to the
Issue of New Shares and Convertible Bonds

Among all Creditors, Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and
Mr. Tse have loaned to the Company.
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At the relevant time, Mr. Sin was then an executive
Director, the chairman of the Board, a member of the
nomination committee of the Board and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Ms. Law, being the spouse
of Mr. Sin, is an associate of Mr. Sin. Immediately
before the issue of the New Shares and the Convertible
Bonds, Mr. Sin, together with his associate, Ms. Law,
was interested in 871,932,623 Shares, representing
approximately 17.62% of the total issued share capital
of the Company immediately before the issue of the New
Shares and the Convertible Bonds.

At the relevant time, Mr. Chow was an executive Director,
the associate chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer of the Company. Immediately before the issue of
the New Shares and the Convertible Bonds, Mr. Chow
was interested in 1,000,000 Shares, representing
approximately 0.02% of the total issued share capital of
the Company immediately before the issue of the New
Shares and the Convertible Bonds.

At the relevant time, Mr. Tse was then a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Immediately before the
issue of the New Shares and the Convertible Bonds,
Mr. Tse was interested in 563,547,600 Shares,
representing approximately 11.39% of the total issued
share capital of the Company immediately before the
issue of the New Shares and the Convertible Bonds.

Up to the Restructuring Order Date, the total amounts
respectively due to Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and
Mr. Tse (including the interests accrued thereon and
calculated up to the Restructuring Order Date at the
respective interest rate of the relevant Claim(s)) are
illustrated as follows:
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Under the Scheme, Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and
Mr. Tse shall have the same entitlement as the other
Creditors. Pursuant to the terms of Scheme and based
on the available books and records of the Company, the
entitlement of Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and Mr. Tse
under the Scheme respectively were as follows:

RIBZETE ERE BrLt BEERHLELER
HipE#AZBHRAE - RIBZT BRI RER
ARBAIESKRE Rk gt Bt Ak
ERHHAEEEERZTERTHERES BT

Mr. Sin Ms. Law Mr. Chow Mr. Tse
B Bot As s
Share Subscription
i3y Bl
Value of New Shares issued HK$258,933,278 HK$11,708,299 HK$14,536,573 HK$757,033
BERTNFRHEE 258,933,278 7T 11,708,299/ 7T 14,536,573/ 7T 757,033 7T
Issue price HK$0.38 HK$0.38 HK$0.38 HK$0.38
BB 0.38% T 0.38% 7T 0.38% T 0.38% T
Number of New Shares issued 681,403,362 30,811,311 38,254,139 1,992,193
New Shares New Shares New Shares New Shares
BEITNFROEE 681,403,362 30,811,311 38,254,139 1,992,193
&iinen) P&ty BRI BhEitian)
CB Subscription
RRESIE
Principal amount (including Consent Bonus) HK$394,873,248.65  HK$17,855,155.26  HK$22,168,274.04 HK$1,154,476.00
Ae® (AEREEL) 304,873,248.65%85 7T  17,855,155.26/B70  22,168,274.0475 T 1,154,476.007% 7T
Maximum Conversion Shares upon full conversion 717,951,361 32,463,918 40,305,952 2,099,047

TRELNSEBARN KA

All of Claims of Mr. Sin, Ms. Law, Mr. Chow and Mr. Tse
have been discharged pursuant to the Scheme and the
treatment to be received by them under the Scheme is
the same as those to other Creditors.

Immediately upon completion of the connected
transactions, Mr. Sin (together with his associate,
Ms. Law), Mr. Chow and Mr. Tse were respectively
interested in 1,584,147,296 Shares, 39,254,139 Shares
and 565,539,793 Shares, representing approximately
21.54%, 0.53% and 7.69% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and
issuance of the New Shares and the OPAL Fee Shares (as
defined below).

Adjustments in relation to the Convertible
Bonds

As a result of the Capital Reorganisation as set out in
the paragraph headed “Capital Reorganisation” below,
with effect from 16 September 2021, the number of
Conversion Shares that will be allotted and issued upon
the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the
2020 Convertible Bonds and the conversion price have
been adjusted from 2,263,411,269 Conversion Shares
to 226,341,126 Conversion Shares and from HK$0.55 to
HK$5.5.
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Issue of Shares under Specific Mandate
in relation to Advisory Service of Financial
Adviser

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
26 August 2019 and the circular of the Company dated
20 September 2019, the Company has appointed
Oriental Patron Asia Limited (“OPAL”), a licensed
corporation to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities),
type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the
SFO, as the financial adviser to the Company (the
“Appointment of Financial Adviser”) to advise on
and assist in formulating and overseeing a potential
financial restructuring as to improving the Company’s
financial position. Regarding the payment of advisory fee
(the “Advisory Fee”), after arm’s length negotiations,
OPAL agreed to receive the newly issued shares of the
Company to settle the Advisory Fee. On 26 August 2019,
the supplemental mandate letter (as to supplement the
original mandate letter signed in May 2019) has been
entered into between the Company and OPAL, pursuant
to which the Advisory Fee was agreed to be paid by the
Company to OPAL in the form of issuing and allotting
250,000,000 newly issued and fully paid-up Shares
(the “OPAL Fee Shares”) which is subject to subject
to a lock-up period of 12 months from the date of the
issuance and such OPAL Fee Shares were issued and
allotted to OPAL simultaneously with the New Shares
issued to the Creditors under the Scheme on 29 June
2020.

The issue of OPAL Fee Shares was subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the SGM and the Stock
Exchange granting the listing of, and permission to
deal in, the OPAL Fee Shares. The Company obtained
the conditional approval from the Stock Exchange for
the listing of, and permission to deal in, the OPAL Fee
Shares. The Directors obtained the specific mandate
granted to allot and issue the OPAL Fee Shares at the
SGM held on 10 October 2019.

The 250,000,000 OPAL Fee Shares were allotted and
issued to OPAL on 3 August 2020.

Further details of the Scheme are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 19 August 2019,
8 October 2019, 14 October 2019, 8 November 2019,
19 November 2019, 27 November 2019, 15 December
2019, 7 January 2020, 25 February 2020, 6 March 2020,
20 March 2020, the circular of the Company dated
20 September 2019, the poll results announcement of
the Company dated 10 October 2019 and the next day
disclosure returns of the Company dated 30 June 2020
and 3 August 2020.
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PROPOSED GRANT OF SHARE
SUBSCRIPTION FACILITY TO THE
COMPANY AND PROPOSED ISSUE
OF NEW SHARES AND WARRANTS
UNDER SPECIFIC MANDATE

On 13 March 2020, the Company entered into an
agreement (the “SSF Agreement”) with, among others,
GEM Global Yield LLC SCS (the “Investor”) (as amended
and supplemented by the supplemental agreements
dated 27 July 2020 and 29 August 2020 respectively),
pursuant to which:

M

the Investor has agreed to grant the Company,
the share subscription facility (the “Share
Subscription Facility”) and an option (the
“Option”) to require the Investor to subscribe
for Shares (the “Option Shares”) of up to
HK$2,350,000,000 (the “Total Commitment”) in
value at the Subscription Price (as defined below)
during the period commencing on the date of the
SSF Agreement and expiring on the earlier of:
(a) the third anniversary of the date of the SSF
Agreement (the “Commitment Period”); and (b)
the date on which the Investor has subscribed
for shares in the Company with an aggregate
subscription price of HK$2,350,000,000
(excluding shares to be issued upon exercise of
the Warrants (as defined below) pursuant to the
SSF Agreement; and

the Company has agreed to issue to the Investor
the warrants (the “Warrants”) to subscribe for
Shares (the “Warrant Shares”) by the Investor
Agreement which entitle the Investor to purchase
up to 383,000,000 Shares at Warrant Exercise
Price (as defined below) during the Warrant
Exercise Period (as defined below).

ZROADAREBREHBES
kEZRBFRERZTHRSD
KR RER

RZBE-TF=RA+=H F2a8E (AP BIE)

GEM Global Yield LLC SCS ([$&&&|) 5] 1%
# ([SSFifs ] KBH AN A T _ZTF+ A
“t+tHtHERER-ZZE-_EFENA -+t NBHEEE

BRI M) Bt

(1) KREERBMARABRHBERNBEE (K
EHEE ) RERE ([BRE]) U2
KB ENSSFinE BHRE I TEBP
BEE FHIME : (2)SSFiE A M E = E8
FE A ([RIEH]) RO EHEIRIKSSF
175 355 LA 48 52 B8 (B 2,350,000,00058 7T R B8 2
RERD (TERERREERE (E&E R TX)
ETESBEITHRM)NBE  URBE (F
ERTX)REEER% £2,350,000,000
;‘%fg ([FEEE )R D ([ERER
B &

2) ARRIRAEMEEBEEITRIRERE (
BRES ) AN IRREEHERBERHG (
BREDBRGR]) BREEHEB TRESE
MR RBBREBTER(EER T
RREBTFEFE(TERTX)EAER
383,000,0000% f& 17 -

5 9 B
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It is also provided in the SSF Agreement (as
supplemented and amended) that:

(1) the maximum shareholding of the Investor (or
its associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules)) in the Company shall in any event be
less than 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company such that the Investor will not become
a substantial shareholder (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) and a connected person (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules);

2) in the event that the Determined Price (as defined
below) is higher than the Floor Price (as defined
below) and the Minimum Threshold Price (as
defined below), the Investor shall be obliged to
subscribe for a number of Shares which is not
less than 50% and not more than 200% of the
Pricing Period Obligation (as defined in the SSF
Agreement) at the Determined Price; and

3) in the event that the Determined Price is lower
than the Floor Price or the Minimum Threshold
Price, no Option Shares will be issued to the
Investor by the Company.

Warrant Exercise Period shall mean the period
commencing from the date on which the conditions
precedent to the SSF Agreement are fulfilled (the
“Warrant Delivery Date”) to the third (3rd) anniversary
of the Warrant Delivery Date or, if such day is not a
business Day, the immediately following business day.

Warrant Exercise Price shall mean the subscription
price of each Warrant Share, initially being HK$0.23 per
Warrant Share (subject to adjustment) or if on the first
anniversary of the Warrant Delivery Date, the market
price of a Share is less than a sum equal to 90 per cent.
of the Warrant Exercise Price on such date, the relevant
Warrant Exercise Price shall be a sum equal to 105 per
cent, of such market price.
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The initial Warrant Exercise Price of HK$0.23
represented:

(i) a premium of approximately 24.32% to the closing
price per share of the Company of HK$0.185
as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 13 March
2020, being the date of the SSF Agreement;

(if) a premium of approximately 23.79% to the
average of the closing prices of the shares of the
Company as quoted on the Stock Exchange in
the five (5) trading days immediately preceding the
date of the SSF Agreement, being HK$0.1858 per
share; and

(iff) a premium of approximately 23.32% to the
average of the closing prices of the shares of the
Company as quoted on the Stock Exchange in
the ten (10) trading days immediately preceding
the date of the SSF Agreement, being HK$0.1865
per share.

Subscription Price shall mean the higher of (i) the
Determined Price; (ii) the Floor Price; and (iii) the
Minimum Threshold Price.

Determined Price shall mean 90% of the average of the
closing bid prices during the pricing period, ignoring for
the purposes of such calculation any Knockout Day.

Floor Price shall mean the price fixed at a discount of
20% to the benchmarked price (as referred and defined
in Rule 17.42B of the GEM Listing Rules) of the Share.

Minimum Threshold Price shall mean HK$0.19 per
Share (subject to adjustment in case of subdivision or
combination of Shares).

Knockout Day shall mean any trading day during a pricing
period: (a) on which the Shares are not traded on GEM
or trading of the Shares thereon is suspended for more
than one hour; or (b) in respect of which the Investor has
made an election to treat such trading day as a Knockout
Day.
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Conditions Precedent to the SSF Agreement

The Option of the Company to require the Investor to
subscribe the Shares and the obligation of the Company
to issue the Warrants to the Investor are conditional upon
the following conditions precedent:

(@) compliance by the Company of all applicable laws,
rules and regulations in Hong Kong and Bermuda,
including but not limited to, the GEM Listing Rules
for the entering into of the Agreement, the issue
of the Option Shares and the Warrant Shares,
the Warrants and all the other transactions
contemplated thereunder; and

(b) the Stock Exchange having granted the listing of,
and permission to deal in, the Option Shares and
the Warrant Shares.

If the above conditions precedent are not satisfied or
fulfilled within six (6) months from the date of the SSF
Agreement (or such later date as the Investor and the
Company may agree in writing), the SSF Agreement shall
be terminated and shall cease to have any further effect
and no party to the Agreement shall have any claim
under the SSF Agreement against the other party save
in respect of any antecedent breach, provided that the
Company shall pay the Investor’'s fees and expenses in
accordance with the terms of the SSF Agreement.

Option Shares and Warrant Shares

Assuming that the Option Shares will be issued at the
closing price of the share as at the date of the SSF
Agreement of HK$0.185 per Option Share and based
on the total commitment of HK$2,350 million, a total
of 10,217,391,304 Option Shares will be allotted and
issued upon the full exercise of the Option, representing
approximately 206.49% of the then existing issued
Shares of 4,948,170,452 as at the date of the SSF
Agreement or 67.37% of the issued share capital of the
Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of such
10,217,391,304 Option Shares.
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The 383,000,000 Warrant Shares represent
approximately 7.74% of the then existing issued Shares
as at the date of the SSF Agreement or approximately
7.18% of the issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged by the allotment and issue of such 383,000,000
Warrant Shares.

The Warrant Shares would be issued under the specific
mandate sought at SGM held on 5 October 2020 for the
Shareholders to consider the approve the SSF Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder and the
issue of the Warrant Shares.

Application has been made by the Company to the Stock
Exchange for the grant of the listing of, and permission
to deal in the Warrant Shares.

The Company proposes to utilise the general mandate
granted pursuant to a resolution passed by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 30 July 2020 (or any other general
mandates to allot and issue Shares approved by
the Shareholders on a later date, collectively, the
“General Mandate”) to the Directors to allot, issue and
otherwise deal with new Shares not exceeding 20% of
the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company in issue as at the date of passing such
resolution to allot and issue the Option Shares which may
be issued under the SSF Agreement.

If the existing General Mandate is fully utilised or is about
to fully utilised or the General Mandate is insufficient for
the allotment and issuance of the Option Shares which
may be issued in the next tranche(s) of subscription
of the Option Shares, the Company will convene a
special general meeting of the Company to obtain the
Shareholders’ approval to refresh the General Mandate
for the subsequent issuance of the remaining Option
Shares. If the refreshment of the existing General
Mandate is made pursuant to Rule 17.42A(1) of the GEM
Listing Rules, a circular will be issued and the Company
will seek approval of the refreshment of the General
Mandate by the independent shareholders by way of
an ordinary resolution at the special general meeting.
The refreshment of general mandate of the Company is
expected to continue until the Share Subscription Facility
of HK$2,350 million is fully utilised.
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For each tranche of subscription of the Option Shares,
an application will be made by the Company to the Stock
Exchange for the grant of the listing of, and permission
to deal in the Option Shares.

Reason for entering into the SSF Agreement

The Board is of the view that issue of the Option Shares
and the Warrant Shares offers a good opportunity to raise
additional capital for the Company and to strengthen
the financial position of the Company. Given that the
Company shall have the right but not an obligation to
deliver notice to the Investor to subscribe for the Option
Shares during the Commitment Period and exercise the
Option at its discretion, the Directors consider that the
Group will have flexibility in raising funds by exercising the
Option during the Commitment Period. The arrangement
under the SSF Agreement effectively gives the Group
access to a readily available source of financing and the
right to raise funds by the delivery of at any time during
the Commitment Period when the Board considers such
delivery is favourable to the Company. By comparison,
the Board considers that with current sluggish market
sentiment and recent interest rate hike, the Company
would be difficult to secure any debt financing of
comparable size from banks or financial institutions.
The Board is further of the view that the high gearing
ratio of the Group would result in the Group having less
favourable financing terms offered by banks and other
financial institutions.

The Company has been exploring opportunities to
diversify into new businesses to mitigate the risks
of being in the lines of business in film and hotel
industries and to deliver long-term and stable cash
flow and creating favourable investment returns for the
Shareholders.

Accordingly, the Directors consider that the SSF
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
are in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole, and the terms of the SSF Agreement, among
others, the mechanism to fix the Minimum Threshold
Price and the Warrant Exercise Price, are fair and
reasonable.

For each tranche of the subscription of the Option
Shares, the Company will issue an announcement setting
out the Subscription Price, the number of Option Shares
to be subscribed by the Investor, the intended use of
proceeds, the aggregate issued Shares and the balance
of the General Mandate (as defined below) to keep the
Shareholders and the potential investors informed.
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Proposed use of net proceeds of the Option
Shares and the Warrant Shares

Assuming the Total Commitment is received in full from
issuance of the Option Shares, the gross proceeds
(before expenses) and the estimated net proceeds will be
HK$2,350 million and HK$2,278.5 million respectively.
The net issue price of the Option Share will be HK$0.223.
The Company intends to apply the net proceeds from the
issuance of the Option Shares as follows:

(a)

up to HK$250 million for repayment of the
liabilities of the Group, including borrowings of
HK$64 million, trade payables of HK$36 million,
tax payable of HK$20 million, rental payable of
HK$18 million, loan interests payable of HK$16
million, payables to studio event business partners
of HK$27 million, construction cost payable of
HK$65 million and other payables of HK$4 million;

up to HK$200 million for general working capital
of the Group, including restructuring cost of
HK$60 million, salaries of HK$50 million, repair
and maintenance of HK$35 million, purchase of
hotel materials of HK$20 million, rental of HK$10
million and other expenses of HK$25 million;

up to HK$328.5 million for expansion and
upgrading of the Studio and the Hotel. The
Company plans to construct six new film
studios and two 3-star hotels with 800 rooms in
aggregate adjacent to the existing facilities of the
Group in Foshan City, Guangdong Province; and

up to HK$1,500 million for investment in potential
projects. Currently, the Company is exploring
investment opportunities in business segments
of promising prospect, including but not limited
to virtual banking business, online e-commerce
business and consumer finance business. As
at the date of this report, the Company has not
entered into any informal or formal agreement
in respect of any acquisition targets. Further
announcement will be made by the Company
in respect of its acquisition(s) as and when
appropriate in compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules.
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The SSF Agreement and all actions taken or to be taken
by the Company pursuant to the SSF Agreement were
generally and unconditionally approved, ratified and
confirmed and the specific mandates was granted to
the Directors to allot and issue 383,000,000 Warrant
Shares at the exercise price of HK$0.23 each (subject to
adjustment) in the SGM held on 5 October 2020.

The Warrants were issued by the Company in January
2021.

Adjustments in relation to the Warrants

As a result of the Capital Reorganisation as set out in
the paragraph headed “Capital Reorganisation” below,
with effect from 16 September 2021, the Warrant Shares
which will be allotted and issued upon the exercise of
the subscription rights of the Warrants and the Warrant
Exercise Price have been adjusted from 383,000,000
Warrant Shares to 38,300,000 Warrant Shares and from
HK$0.23 to HK$2.3.

Assuming full issuance of the Warrant Shares, the
estimated net proceeds will be approximately HK$88
million, which is intended to be applied as to () HK$70.4
million for early redemption of the Convertible Bonds;
(i) HK$10 million for restructuring cost; and (i) HK$7.6
million for operating expenses relating to hotel and studio
business in China. The net issue price of the Warrant
Share will be HK$2.3.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
11 May 2021, as under the Share Subscription Facilities,
the number of Shares that could be subscribed is based
on the trade volume of the Shares, and the subscription
price is based on the 10 per cent discount to the closing
price of the Shares. As the trade volume of the Shares
is not sufficient to meet the funding requirement and the
current market price of the Shares is below par value
(the Company cannot issue the Shares below par under
the Bermuda law). Therefore, the Company is unable to
utilize the facilities under the Share Subscription Facilities
at the moment, and the Company proceeded to issue
the 2021 Convertible Bonds instead of using the Share
Subscription Facilities.

Details of the SSF Agreement, the issue of the Option
Shares and the Warrants are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 March 2020, 27 July 2020,
31 August 2020 and 11 May 2021, the Company’s
circular dated 11 September 2020 and the Company’s
poll results announcement dated 5 October 2020.
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PROPOSED CHANGE OF COMPANY
NAME

The Board proposes to change the name of the
Company from “National Arts Entertainment and Culture
Group Limited” to “National Arts Group Holdings Limited”
and adopt the Chinese name “ BIZEE B R AR A
7]” as its official Chinese name (“Change of Company
Name”). The Board will propose special resolution at
the forthcoming SGM for considering, and if thought
fit, approving the Change of Company. The reason for
changing the Company’s name is precisely to reflect the
direction of the diversification of business in order to
reduce the risk of single business segments. The Board
believes that the proposed new English and Chinese
names of the Company will provide the Company
with better identification of the principal business of
the Group. As such, the Board is of the view that the
proposed Change of Company Name is in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
The proposed Change of Company Name is subject to
the following conditions: (i) the passing of the special
resolution by the Shareholders at the SGM approving
the Change of Company Name; and (i) the Registrar
of Companies in Bermuda approving the Change of
Company Name and entering the proposed new English
and Chinese name of the Company into the register of
companies.

The special resolution approving the Change of Company
Name was passed at the SGM held on 5 October 2020
by the Shareholders.

Subsequent to the passing of the special resolution
in respect of the Change of Company Name by the
Shareholders at the SGM, the Change of Company
Name is still subject to the approval by the Registrar
of Companies in Bermuda, which will take effect upon
the date of the issue of a Certificate of Incorporation
on the Change of Company Name by the Registrar of
Companies in Bermuda. The Company will then carry
out all necessary registration and filing procedures
with the Companies Registry in Hong Kong. Further
announcement(s) will be issued by the Company to
inform the Shareholders of the effective date of the
Change of Company Name, the new stock short names
for trading of the securities of the Company on the Stock
Exchange, the new logo and the new website of the
Company as and when appropriate.
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Further details of the proposed Change of Company
Name are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 23 March 2020, the Company’s circular dated
11 September 2020 and the Company’s poll results
announcement dated 5 October 2020.

POSSIBLE OFFER FOR CONVOY
GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
26 March 2020, the Board is discussing with certain
shareholders of Convoy Global Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1019) (“Convoy”) in relation to a possible
acquisition of the issued shares of Convoy (the “Convoy
Shares”) by the Company in the consideration of the
Company’s new shares (the “Possible Share Exchange
Transaction”). The Possible Share Exchange Transaction
did not proceed further.

Possible Offer

On 22 June 2020, the Board approached the board
of directors of Convoy (the “Convoy Board”) about
a conditional voluntary share exchange offer by the
Company to acquire all of the issued shares in the
share capital of Convoy, subject to fulfilment of certain
conditions (the “Possible Offer”).

Following the approach, the Board discussed with the
Convoy Board further details of the Possible Offer,
including how and when the Possible Offer could be
made, bearing in mind the financial and other information
which would be required to be included in documentation
to be sent to shareholders of the Company and Convoy
in relation to the Possible Offer.

Based on the latest published audited accounts of
Convoy for the financial year ended 31 December 2016,
the Board expected that the Possible Offer, if it were to
proceed, would constitute either a major transaction or
a very substantial acquisition for the Company under
Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules. This would involve
consent from shareholders of the Company and require
publication of extensive financial information about
Convoy and its subsidiaries which was then not available.
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On 14 August 2020, the Company received a letter from
the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange informing
the Company its decision that the Possible Offer will
constitute a reverse takeover of the Company under Rule
19.06B of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company will
be treated as a new listing applicant under Rule 19.54
of the GEM Listing Rules if the Possible Offer were to
proceed (the “Decision”).

The Board disagreed with the Decision and had
submitted a formal request to the Stock Exchange for a
review of the Decision by the GEM Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 4.06(1) of the GEM
Listing Rules (the “Review”).

The hearing for Review by the GEM Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange (the “Review Hearing”) took place
on 4 November 2020. On 23 November 2020 the GEM
Listing Committee informed National Arts that it upheld
the Decision on 23 November 2020 citing the same
reason for the Decision by the Listing Division (the “GEM
Listing Committee Decision”).

The Company disagreed with the GEM Listing Committee
Decision, and had submitted a formal request to the
secretary of the GEM Listing Review Committee of the
Stock Exchange on 2 December 2020 for a review of
the GEM Listing Committee Decision by the GEM Listing
Review Committee of the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rule 4.06(2) of the GEM Listing Rules (the “GEM Listing
Review Committee Review”).

Nonetheless, given the GEM Listing Committee Decision
and foreseeable obstacles, on 24 November 2020,
the Company approached the Convoy Board about a
pre-conditional voluntary partial share exchange offer
(the “Proposed Partial Share Exchange Offer”).
Completion of the Proposed Partial Share Exchange Offer
is subject to fulfilment or waiver of certain conditions.

Following the approach, the Board discussed with the
Convoy Board further details of the Proposed Partial
Share Exchange Offer, including how and when it can be
made, bearing in mind the financial and other information
which would be required to be included in documentation
to be sent to shareholders of the Company and Convoy
in relation to the Proposed Partial Share Exchange Offer.
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As certain applicable percentage ratios (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) for the Company in respect
of the transactions in connection with the Proposed
Partial Share Exchange Offer exceed 25% but all of the
percentage ratios are less than 100%, the Proposed
Partial Share Exchange Offer, if it were to proceed, would
constitute a major transaction for the Company under
the GEM Listing Rules, and the Proposed Partial Share
Exchange Offer together with the allotment and issue of
new Shares by way of specific mandate are therefore
conditional upon, among other things, the approval of
the shareholders of the Company at a special general
meeting.

As disclosed in the joint announcement of the Company
and Convoy dated 15 March 2021, the Board has come
to a decision to discontinue pursuing the Proposed
Partial Share Exchange Offer given it has taken longer
than the Board has originally anticipated.

In place of the withdrawal of the Proposed Partial Share
Exchange Offer, the Company and Convoy are currently
exploring other avenues of cooperation but no concrete
plan has been formed as at the date of this report.

Further announcements will be made by Convoy and
the Company pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”) as and when
required. Convoy and the Company consider that the
withdrawal of the Proposed Partial Share Exchange Offer
will not have any material adverse effect on the existing
financial position or business operations of Convoy or the
Company.

For the purposes of the Takeovers Code, the offer period
of the Company commenced on 29 July 2020 and ended
on 15 March 2021.

On 11 August 2021, the Board has decided to withdraw
the Request for the GEM Listing Review Committee
Review.
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Shares of the Company issued to its financial
adviser

The Company had appointed Yu Ming Investment
Management Limited (“Yu Ming”), a licensed corporation
to carry out types 1 (dealing in securities), 4 (advising
on securities), 6 (advising on corporate finance) and
9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571), as financial
adviser to advise the Company on the Possible Offer
and transactions contemplated thereunder. Yu Ming
is wholly-owned by Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1073). Based on the best knowledge and
belief of Yu Ming and the Company, Yu Ming’s ultimate
substantial shareholders are third parties independent of
the Company and its connected persons. To preserve
cash resources of the Company, the Company proposed
to pay Yu Ming its financial advisory fees for the Possible
Offer by way of issuing new shares of the Company (the
“Yu Ming Fee Shares”) at the issue price of HK$0.185,
equivalent to the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the last trading date prior to suspension of trading on
23 June 2020.

The number of Yu Ming Fee Shares issued to Yu Ming
is fixed and is not subject to any further changes. Yu
Ming’s advisory fee is non-refundable and not contingent
upon the status or development of the Possible Offer
and transactions contemplated thereunder. The Yu Ming
Fee Shares would rank pari passu in all respects with the
Company’s shares in issue as at the date of issuance.
The issue and listing of, and permission to deal in, the
Yu Ming Fee Shares are subject to approval from relevant
regulators. The Company obtained the approval from
Stock Exchange for the listing of, and permission to deal
in, the Yu Ming Fee Shares.

A total of 54,054,054 Yu Ming Fee Shares were allotted
and issued to Yu Ming on 13 August 2020.

The Company also appointed Yu Ming to act as its
financial adviser in respect of the Review and would pay
Yu Ming’s financial advisory fees of HK$2,000,000 by
way of issuing new shares of the Company at the issue
price of HK$0.121 per share (the “Yu Ming Review Fee
Shares”).
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The number of Yu Ming Review Fee Shares issued to Yu
Ming is fixed and is not subject to any further changes.
Yu Ming’s advisory fee is non-refundable and not
contingent upon the outcome of the Review.

The Yu Ming Review Fee Shares would rank pari passu
in all respects with the shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of issuance and was allotted and issued
under the general mandate granted to the Board on
30 July 2020. The issue and listing of, and permission
to deal in, the Yu Ming Review Fee Shares are subject to
approval from relevant regulators. The Company obtained
the approval from Stock Exchange for the listing of, and
permission to deal in, the Yu Ming Review Fee Shares.

A total of 16,528,925 Yu Ming Review Fee Shares were
allotted and issued to Yu Ming on 20 November 2020.

Details of the Possible Offer are set out in the joint
announcements of the Company and Convoy dated
29 July 2020, 28 August 2020, 28 September 2020,
28 October 2020, 27 November 2020, 24 December
2020, 25 January 2021, 25 February 2021 and 15 March
2021, the announcements of the Company dated 30 July
2020, 17 August 2020, 21 August 2020, 3 September
2020, 30 October 2020, 2 December 2020 and
11 August 2021 and the next day disclosure returns of
the Company dated 13 August 2020 and 20 November
2020.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Discloseable Transaction — Acquisition of the
Target Company

On 29 January 2021, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with
Advanced Oasis International Holding Limited (the
“Seller”) and Chu Hin Ming, Alfonso (the “Guarantor”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to acquire from the Seller the entire issued
share capital of Majestic Bravo Limited (the “Target
Company”’, together with its subsidiaries, the “Target
Group”) at the consideration of HK$90,000,000 (the
“Consideration”) (the “Acquisition”), which shall be
settled by the allotment and issue of 900,000,000 shares
of the Company (the “Consideration Shares”) by the
Company to the Seller upon completion of the Acquisition
(“Completion”).

Upon completion of the proposed restructuring to be
taken by the Target Company prior to Completion (the
“Restructuring”), the Target Company will through its
subsidiaries hold 100% ownership of the 26 units service
apartment of Golden Straits Morib, situated at Kawasan
Kanchong Laut Mukim Morib Banting State of Selangor,
Malaysia (the “Target Apartments”).

Each of the Seller and the Guarantor agreed and
undertook with the Company that unless with the prior
written consent of the Company, the Seller shall not,
whether directly or indirectly, (1) at any time during the
period of 6 months following the date of Completion (the
“Completion Date”), dispose of, or agree or contract
to dispose of, either directly or indirectly, conditionally or
unconditionally, any of the 900,000,000 Consideration
Shares issued and allotted by the Company to the
Seller at Completion pursuant to the Agreement or any
interest therein or any voting right or any other right
attaching thereto; and (2) at any time during the period
of 12 months following the Completion Date, dispose
of, or agree or contract to dispose of, either directly
or indirectly, conditionally or unconditionally, any of the
450,000,000 New Shares issued and allotted by the
Company to the Seller at Completion pursuant to the
Agreement or any interest therein or any voting right or
any other right attaching thereto.
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Conditions precedent

Completion is subject to the fulfilment or (if applicable)
waiver of the following conditions precedent:

a. the Company being satisfied with the results of
the due diligence exercise (whether on legal,
accounting, financial, operational, properties or
other aspects that the Company may consider
necessary) on the Target Group and its assets,
liabilities, activities, operations, prospects and
other status which the Company, its agents or
professional advisers think reasonably necessary
and appropriate to conduct;

b. the receipt by the Company of a legal opinion(s)
on the Target Group and the Target Apartments
(in the form and substance to the satisfaction of
the Company) issued by qualified legal adviser(s)
acceptable to the Company and the Company’s
lawyer;

(o, the receipt by the Company of a valuation report
issued by an independent professional valuer
acceptable to the Company showing the value of
the Target Apartments as at a date not more than
3 months before the Completion Date being not
less than HK$90,000,000;

d. the receipt by the Company of the management
account of the Target Group up to the date which
is not more than 1 week before the Completion
Date;

e. the receipt of all such waivers, consents or
approvals by the Company in relation to the
completion of the transactions contemplated
under the Agreement, including but not limited to
the approvals from the Stock Exchange and/or
the Securities and Futures Commission;

f. the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
granting listing of and permission to deal in the
Consideration Shares;

g. completion of the Restructuring; and

h. the representations, warranties and undertakings
by the Seller and the Guarantor in the Agreement
remaining true and accurate and not misleading at
Completion as if repeated at Completion and at all
times between the date of the Agreement and the
Completion Date.

Conditions (b), (c), (e), () and (g) are not capable of
being waived by any Parties. The Company may waive
conditions (a), (d) and (h).
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If all the conditions above shall not be fulfilled or (if
applicable) waived at or before 5 p.m. on 30 April
2021 (or such later day as the Seller and the Company
may agree in writing), then the Agreement shall cease
and determine and none of the parties shall have any
obligations and liabilities under the Agreement save for
any antecedent breaches.

Guarantee by the Seller and the Guarantor

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Seller will lease the Target
Apartments from the Company for its operations, and the
Seller, together with the Guarantor, irrevocably warrant to
and guarantee with the Company that the Company shall
generate and receive from the Target Apartments the
following minimum return for the five years commencing
on 1 January 2023, failing which, each of the Guarantor
and the Seller shall forthwith indemnify the Company
such shortfall on a dollar-to-dollar basis in full:

1st year (i.e. 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023) —
3.5% of the Consideration;

2nd year (i.e. 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024) —
4.25% of the Consideration;

3rd year (i.e. 1 January 2025 to 31 December 2025) —
4.75% of the Consideration;

4th year (i.e. 1 January 2026 to 31 December 2026) —
5.25% of the Consideration; and

5th year (i.e. 1 January 2027 to 31 December 2027) -
5.75% of the Consideration.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 29 January 2021 in relation to the Agreement
entered into for the acquisition of Majestic Bravo Limited.
As at 24 March 2021, all conditions precedent of both
parties have been fulfilled and 900,000,000 Consideration
Shares have been allotted and issued to the Seller.

Implications under the GEM Listing Rules

Given that the applicable percentage ratios (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules) in respect of the
Acquisition are more than 5% but less than 25%, the
Acquisition constitute a discloseable transaction for the
Company under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules
and are subject to the notification and announcement
requirements under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Completion took place on 24 March 2021. The
Consideration has been settled by the allotment and
issue of 900,000,000 Consideration Shares to the Seller.
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Further details of the Acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 29 January 2021 and
24 March 2021 and the next day disclosure return of the
Company dated 24 March 2021.

Letter of Intent for Subscription of L’officiel
Inc.

On 17 April 2021, the Company and L’Officiel Inc SAS
(“L’Officiel”) (the Company together with L’Officiel being
the “Parties”, and individually, a “Party”) entered into
a binding letter of intent (the “Subscription LOI"), in
relation to the subscription of new shares of L’Officiel (the
“L’Officiel Subscription”), which is subject to approval
by the shareholders of L’Officiel at a general meeting
of the shareholders of L’Officiel to be convened on or
before 15 May 2021.

Pursuant to the Subscription LOI, the Company
conditionally agrees to subscribe for, and L’Officiel
conditionally agrees to allot and issue such number of
ordinary shares equivalent to ten percent (10%) of the
equity of L’Officiel, credited as fully paid up, out of the
unissued authorised capital stock of L'Officiel (together,
the “Target Shares”). In consideration of the agreement
for L’Officiel to issue the Target Shares to the Company,
the Company undertakes to settle the subscription
monies for the Target Shares by the allotment and
issue of 500,000,000 ordinary shares at HK$0.10 each,
credited as fully paid up, out of the unissued authorised
capital stock of the Company (the “Consideration
Shares”) to L' Officiel.

The Parties agree that the Parties shall negotiate and
finalise the details of the L’Officiel Subscription and
incorporate the terms and conditions of the Subscription
LOI into the definitive agreement (the “Definitive
Agreement”) and enter into such definitive agreement
prior to 15 May 2021, or such other date as may be
mutually agreed in writing by the Parties.

The Definitive Agreement will contemplate a separate
license agreement granting to the Company certain
mutually agreed rights to the content of L’'Officiel and its
subsidiaries. These rights will enhance the Company’s
film, television, documentary and short video production
capabilities, by allowing for increased engagement
with L’Officiel’s and its subsidiaries’ extensive archive
database of several hundred thousand media items.

Further details of the Subscription LOI are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 18 April 2021.
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Issue of Convertible Bonds under General
Mandate

On 17 April 2021, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with the Investor, pursuant to
which the Investor has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue,
the 2021 Convertible Bonds on the terms and subject to
conditions set out therein (the “2021 CB Subscription”).

Upon full conversion of the 2021 Convertible Bonds at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.10 per conversion
share (the “2021 Conversion Share”) (subject to
adjustments), a total of 250,000,000 2021 Conversion
Shares will be issued. The 2021 Conversion Shares will
be allotted and issued pursuant to the General Mandate.

The initial conversion price of the 2021 Convertible
Bonds of HK$0.1 represented:

(i) a premium of approximately 66.67% to the closing
price of the shares of the Company of HK$0.06
per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 16 April 2021 (being the last trading date
immediately before the date of the Subscription
Agreement); and

(if) a premium of approximately 68.35% to the
average closing price of the shares of the
Company of approximately HK$0.0594 per share
as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five
consecutive trading days immediately preceding
16 April 2021.

As a result of the Capital Reorganisation as set out in
the paragraph headed “Capital Reorganisation” below,
with effect from 16 September 2021, the number of 2021
Conversion Shares that will be allotted and issued upon
the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the 2021
Convertible Bonds and the conversion price have been
adjusted from 250,000,000 2021 Conversion Shares
to 25,000,000 2021 Conversion Shares (representing
approximately 3% of the existing issued capital of the
Company as at the date of this report and approximately
2.92% of the issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged the issue of the 2021 Conversion Shares) and
from HK$0.10 to HK$1.0.
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The gross proceeds and net proceeds from the issue
of the 2021 Convertible Bonds is HK$25,000,000 and
approximately HK$25,000,000 respectively. The net
conversion price (based on initial conversion price of
HK$0.1) is approximately HK$0.1. The Group intended to
use all the net proceeds as follows:

(i) approximately HK$5 million for repayment of other
accrued expenses of the Group;

(if) approximately HK$5 million for payment of rental
& office expenses of the Group;

(ii) approximately HK$5 million for payment of salary
of the staff of the Group;

(iv) approximately HK$1 million for payment of general
office expenses of the Group;

(v) approximately HK$5 million for settlement of the
PRC tax; and

(vi) the balance for settlement of the professional
fees.

As at the date of this report, the Group has utilized all
the net proceeds from the issue of the 2021 Convertible
Bonds in the manner set out above.

The 2021 CB Subscription and the issue of 2021
Conversion Shares under the General Mandate are
not subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company. No application will be made for the listing of
the 2021 Convertible Bonds on the Stock Exchange or
any other stock exchange. An application has been made
by the Company to the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the
2021 Conversion Shares. The 2021 Convertible Bonds
were issued by the Company in May 2021.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
11 May 2021, as under the Share Subscription Facilities,
the number of Shares that could be subscribed is based
on the trade volume of the Shares, and the subscription
price is based on the 10 per cent discount to the closing
price of the Shares. As the trade volume of the Shares
is not sufficient to meet the funding requirement and the
current market price of the Shares is below par value (the
Company cannot issue the Shares below par under the
Bermuda law). Therefore, the Company was unable to
utilize the facilities under the Share Subscription Facilities
at the relevant time, and the Company proceeded to
issue the 2021 Convertible Bonds.
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Further details of the 2021 CB Subscription are set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 18 April 2021 and
11 May 2021.

Capital Reorganisation

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
19 July 2021, the Board proposed to implement the
capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”)
which comprised the following:

(1) Share Consolidation

The share consolidation (the “Share
Consolidation”) was on the basis that every
ten (10) issued and unissued existing shares of
par value HK$0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company (the “Existing Shares”) shall be
consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of
par value of HK$1.00 each (the “Consolidated
Shares”). The total number of Consolidated
Shares in the issued share capital of the Company
immediately following the Share Consolidation
is 832,386,836 Consolidated Shares after
cancelling any fraction in the issued share capital
of the Company which may arise from the Share
Consolidation.

(2)  Capital Reduction

Immediately upon the Share Consolidation
becoming effective, the share capital of the
Company has been reduced (the “Capital
Reduction”) whereby:

(i) any fractional Consolidated Share in the
issued share capital of the Company
arising from the Share Consolidation shall
be cancelled;

(if) the issued share capital of the Company
of HK$832,386,836 divided into
832,386,836 Consolidated Shares shall be
reduced to HK$8,323,868.36 divided into
832,386,836 new shares of the Company
by cancelling the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.99 on
each of the issued Consolidated Shares
such that the par value of each issued
Consolidated Share will be reduced from
HK$1.00 to HK$0.01;
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(iff) the credit arising from the Capital
Reduction in the amount of approximately
HK$824,062,967.64 shall be credited to
the contributed surplus account of the
Company up to the Effective Date within
the meaning of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Companies Act”) for use
by the Directors in any manner permitted
by the Companies Act and the bye-laws of
the Company; and

(iv) the authorised share capital of the
Company of HK$2,000,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 Consolidated Shares
shall be reduced to HK$20,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 new shares of
the Company by reducing the par value
of all unissued Consolidated Shares from
HK$1.00 each to HKO0.01 each.

The SGM was convened and held on 14 September
2021 for the Shareholders to consider and, if thought
fit, approve the necessary resolution(s) in respect of
the Capital Reorganisation. The resolutions approving
the Capital Reorganisation were duly passed by the
Shareholders at the SGM, and the Capital Reorganisation
has become effective with effect from 16 September
2021.

Further details of the Capital Reorganisation are set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 11 May
2021 and 19 July 2021, the circular of the Company
dated 20 August 2021 and the poll results announcement
of the Company dated 14 September 2021.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not have
reserves available for distribution to shareholders (2019:
nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this report were:

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer

Mr. Chow Kai Weng (appointed as the Chairman
and ceased to be the Associate Chairman
on 22 July 2021)

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (resigned on 22 July 2021)

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Wang Chun
Mr. Ho Leung Ting

Non-executive Director

Dr. Lam Lee G.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
Mr. Li Kit Chee
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred

In accordance with Bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws,
Mr. Chow Kai Weng, Mr. Ho Leung Ting and Dr. Lam Lee
G. shall retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
reelection at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. All other Directors continue in office.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years. The
service contract is terminable by either party by serving a
written notice of not less than one calendar month to the
other.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors has been appointed for a term
of two years with specific terms as stated in the letter of
appointment or reappointment. The letter of appointment
or reappointment is terminable from either party by
serving a written notice not less than one calendar month
to the other.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic
salary and a discretionary bonus, and each of the non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors is entitled to a director’s fee, subject to an
annual revision by the remuneration committee of the
Board.

Details of the directors’ fees or emolument payable to
Directors are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Board considers all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.
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EFERES

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

EENRETETHAEREKD 1
EROREE2EZRAE

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short RZEZZEFF+A=+—H ESFSKARAETE
positions of the Directors and chief executive of TBRABRARAASEAMBEREIE (ERRE
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and BECIESEZFZRBAERKMN ([EHERAE R
debentures of the Company or any of its associated Bl 1) EEXVER) 2 & h - MR REHHEE 2RI
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the BHERBPEKRPIEXVIFETRESD P 2R EAA
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the SARARBRBERAZERRARE (BEL@RLAL
laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) which were required BIEZEBSRAEROIGXEEERRAES
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange 2w MKR)  HIBIEE S kB E G H E3521K
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO ZHTERBRRE R 2 B MRz s kK
(including interests and short positions which they were 2 IR IEGEM_E TR A 5£5.4616 £5.6716& 2 3 €
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the AMEARRNRINBRAZEERABIAT
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
1. Long Positions in the ordinary shares of 1. REXATSEEEIAETZEEK
HK$0.1 each of the Company (“Shares”) (Tl 2.
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held of the Company
HEAT
EETREZ
EEKA B Eauy iR EE muEatt
(Note 1)
(P5E1)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Note 3) Beneficial Owner 1,629,983,985 20.61%
B A (HIEE3) ERBEAA
Interest of Spouse (Note 2) 54,163,311 0.73%
feEREs= (Mis2)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 39,254,139 0.53%
AR RE EnEAA
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 3,000,000 0.04%
EECRE EnEAA
Mr. Li Kit Chee Beneficial Owner 4,480,000 0.06%
T2 RE EnEAA
Notes: B E -
1. This is based on the total issued Shares as at 1. WHERZZE-_EF+_A=+—HZ2

31 December 2020 (i.e. 7,423,868,369 Shares). B2 17 (B17,423,868,369 %) °

2. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, being the 2. BEESFRBAEGD ABENKEELE(BER
spouse of Ms. Law Po Yee, was deemed to be T 2RB)ERARBEER LT HEEER
interested in all the Shares in which Ms. Law Po Yee NEBROPHEEEE -

was interested.
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3. Mr. Sin Kwok Lam resigned as the Chairman and an 3.

executive Director on 22 July 2021.

HEEMEER T —FLtA-+-HE
EFXRERMTES-

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual Report 2020



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EFEREE

Long positions in the underlying Shares REERBZEFE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held of the Company
EEAT
EEITREAZ
EEMa S EaMY iR B8E BHESL
(Note 1)
(PigzE1)
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Note 5) Beneficial Owner 717,951,361 9.67%
B ARG A (BEES) EmlEaA (Note 3) (Ff&ES)
Interest of Spouse (Note 2) 32,463,918 0.44%
BB e (MiEE2)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 40,305,952 0.54%
JERR &R S 4 EnEEA (Note 4) (Ff{zE4)
Notes: Bt 5
1, This is based on the total issued Shares as at 1. WHER-ZZ-ZZEF+_A=+—HHE

31 December 2020 (i.e. 7,423,868,369 Shares).

2. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, the spouse
of Ms. Law Po Yee, was deemed to be interested in
all the underlying Shares in which Ms. Law Po Yee
was interested.

3. These underlying Shares represent 717,951,361
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
convertible bonds issued to Mr. Sin Kwok Lam on
29 June 2020 under which Mr. Sin may exercise
the conversion right from 29 June 2023 to 28 June
2025 at an exercise price of HK$0.55 per Share.

4. These underlying Shares represent 40,305,952
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
convertible bonds issued to Mr. Chow Kai Weng on
29 June 2020 under which Mr. Chow may exercise
the conversion right from 29 June 2023 to 28 June
2025 at an exercise price of HK$0.55 per Share.

58 Mr. Sin Kwok Lam resigned as the Chairman and an
executive Director on 22 July 2021.

BT 4 8 (B17,423,868,3690X AR 17 ) °

2. REFHFRBEGO ABEMEE(EE
Tt EB)IBREANERRL L HE#ES
BT EARRE R PR R

3. ZERERNDER-_ZE_ZTFA=+IH
BOTABMEENTRBRESEITFER
#F 2 1TR717,951,361 XA 1D« 48 1t - %
EERR-_TE-_=ZFNA=-ZtNLBE=Z
“HREANAZ T\ BEMTERRKRE 1TE
B A ER0.558 T

4, ZERBROER-_ZE_ZFA=TAN
H%ﬁ%H@MiimTﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ
% #& F 8 17 140,305,952/ & 15 - B ik - B
HEATR-_E-_=ZFA=-t+NALBE=-Z
ZREXNAZ+HNBERETERRE T
BAERRKH0.55% T -

5. HEEMREER —_E-_—F+tA -+ -H#
FEERWDITES -

=

[ BREMLEBBERA 7



DIRECTORS' REPORT

EEEREE
3. Long positions in the debentures of the 3. MREFATEHZRE
Company
Denomination
Currency of or unit size of Amount of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest debentures the debentures debentures
i St R RHkEE BHEEENEMRE BEHLE
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Note 5) Beneficial owner HKD 500,000 394,873,249 (Note 1)
= A Q) ExlAA BT 500,000 394,873,249 MizE1)
Interest of spouse (Note 2) HKD 500,000 17,855,155 (Note 3)
BB (ME2) BT 500,000 17,855,155( Hi5E3)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial owner HKD 500,000 22,168,274 (Note 4)
[R5 EREBA BT 500,000 22,168,274 (HizE4)
Notes: Bt 5
1. These debentures are convertible bonds issued to 1. ZEBFAR_E_TEF AT HLBET
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam on 29 June 2020 under which TABMEERATRRES B KL E
Mr. Sin may exercise the conversion right from AARZEZ=f~"A=Z+NLBE=T=-Hh
29 June 2023 to 28 June 2025 at an exercise price FRNAZ+T N \BHETERRE 1TEER
of HK$0.55 per Share. FIRAH0.55% T ©
2. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, the spouse 2. BEEHFRBEGD TBEMREE(RER
of Ms. Law Po Yee, was deemed to be interested Tt Z2EB)ERAREER LT HEESR
in all the debentures in which Ms. Law Po Yee was WeHESFPHEAER -
interested.
3. These debentures are convertible bonds issued 3. ZEBFAR_E_EF AT HLBET
to Ms. Law Po Yee on 29 June 2020 under which F@# a?ﬂﬁiﬁ’]‘f?ﬂﬁfﬁ% Bt Bt
Ms. Law may exercise the conversion right from AARZEZ=f~"A=Z+NLBE=T=-H
29 June 2023 to 28 June 2025 at an exercise price FRNAZ+ N \BHETERRE 1TEER
of HK$0.55 per Share. FIRAH0.55% T ©
4. These debentures are convertible bonds issued to 4, ZEBFAR T _TEF AT BT
Mr. Chow Kai Weng on 29 June 2020 under which TRBKEEMNATRRES B B4
Mr. Chow may exercise the conversion right from AR T =F"AZ+hBEZ-ZZT-Hh
29 June 2023 to 28 June 2025 at an exercise price FRAZ+HNBHMETERRE 1TEER
of HK$0.55 per Share. FREARD0.55F T °
5. Mr. Sin Kwok Lam resigned as the Chairman and an 5. GEMEER T Z—F+tA=Z+-HE
executive Director on 22 July 2021. FEERBITES -
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors Br ESCRT IR AN R : ST F+= R
or chief executive of the Company had, as at =+—H" X§$‘}Z$ BEITBABER
31 December 2020, any interests or short positions RN AN B Bk H ] AR B /fl (EBERESH
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of K HAE A EXVED) 2 E a5 - A8 R G5
the Company or any of its associated corporations S EHFEETAREESRPEERGIEXV
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which HETRESD H 2R EAEME AR N E R
would have to be notified to the Company and the FrzEms AR (BELAATREZERE
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of HERBAEEIMECH SRR RER 2=
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short FRR) - MIRIRE 75 K I K R G 352 1% M
positions which they were taken or deemed to have EAZLEREFRMELMA s EmAR -
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were ‘ME?J%GEMJ:FH A E5. 46162 E5.67I82
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to EEAMERNTNRB I ZERIKRE

be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND
OTHER PERSONS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the persons or corporations,
other than a director or chief executive of the Company,
who had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO or had otherwise been notified to the
Company were as follows:

A. Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

1. Substantial shareholders’ long position
in the Shares

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRES

FTERRRHEMALTRERG RE
RN zER KK

RZBZEBF+-_A=+—H REFARTAER
&5 LB RGIEXVAEE336IRRERFE 2 B
MATREE: HARRDEMNE - THALIOEE (B
ARAREFREIBITHRABINREARR 2R K
HEROTEEREIAA

A EERRZHER

1. ZERERBOHIHE

Approximate
percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares held of the Company

EXAT

EEITHREZ

ESns S EEME FiRG8E BHESL

(Note 1)

(Pg5E1)

Ms. Law Po Yee (“Ms. Law”) Beneficial Owner 54,163,311 0.73%
BERut ([B&x]) EREAA

Interest of Spouse (Note 2) 1,529,983,985 20.61%

feBEs (M2)
Notes:
1. This is based on the total issued Shares as
at 31 December 2020 (i.e. 7,423,868,369
Shares).

2. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law, being the
spouse of Mr. Sin, was deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Sin
was interested.

GEE

1. WhHERZZE-_TF+-_A=1+—H
B2 EE TR, (BN7,423,868,369
BERR R ) °

2. BEZHFRBAEGN Bt (k%

EZEBIBEASRAELLEHE#ER
BB DR EEER-

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR 133
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FEREREBRG 4B

2. Substantial shareholders’ long position 2.
in the underlying Shares

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held the Company
ERATEBT
BREREE S EEMY RO #E BAZBHE T
(Note 1)
CE
Ms. Law Po Yee Beneficial owner 32,463,918 (Note 3) 0.44%
Interest of spouse (Note 2) 717,951,361 9.67%
BERLL EnfEAA 32,463,918( Fi7E3) 0.44%
Fis s (M e2) 717,951,361 9.67%

Notes: B3 -

This is based on the total issued Shares as
at 31 December 2020 (i.e. 7,423,868,369
Shares).

By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law Po Yee, the
spouse of Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, was deemed to
be interested in all the underlying Shares in
which Mr. Sin Kwok Lam was interested.

These underlying Shares represent
32,463,918 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the convertible bonds issued to
Ms. Law Po Yee on 29 June 2020 under
which Ms. Law may exercise the conversion
right from 29 June 2023 to 28 June 2025 at
an exercise price of HK$0.55 per Share.

B. Other Persons’ Interests

1. Other persons’ long position in the
Shares

1. WHERZZE_ZEF+_A=1+—H
KB B 1T AR 1) 42 2k (BN7,423,868,369
RRA% R ) -

2. RESFEHPBEGEY BBERLLE OF
BIM L £ 2 BB WAR B EBI Mk
EHEERGN DB N T ERE

¢
2K o

3. ZEHBARMDIER=_Z=_ZF A
ZHARABTTREER L LHABR
BHETEEK TEITHI32,463,918
BlRG B BTt R ==
ERXAZ+ABE-ZE-_AF~A
T+ N\ BHEHETERRE TEEA
FRA0.558 7T °

Hip N T2
1. BAMALTRRGZHE

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of

Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held the Company

ERATEBIT

PR E VR 3513 iRz E BRAZBHE T

(Note 1)

(PgsE1)

Mr. Tse Young Lai Beneficial owner 563,547,600 7.59%
IR ERERA

. ]34,:; ;N_(}ﬁ’onal Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limi
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Note:

1. This is based on the total issued Shares as
at 31 December 2020 (i.e. 7,423,868,369
Shares).

2. Other persons’ long position in the
underlying Shares

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EFEREE

GEE

1. WHER-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—H
KB B 1Tk 1) 42 8k (BN7,423,868,369
FRR% 1R ) o

HEMA LRIEER D 4B

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held the Company
ERATE BT
R E B Aty ke BEZBOE S
(Note 1)
(BI&ET)
Mr. Tse Young Lai Beneficial owner 2,099,047 (Note 2) 0.03%
R AE 5 ERBEBA 2,099,047 0.03%
(HMt3E2)
Notes: B 5
1. This is based on the total issued Shares as 1. WHER-ZZTE-_TEF+=-_A=+—H
at 31 December 2020 (i.e. 7,423,868,369 BB BT AR ) 48 2t (BN7,423,868,369
Shares). FRAR 17 ) °
2. To the best knowledge of the Directors, 2. BESZMA HRELERBBRMD

Mr. Tse Young Lai is interested in the
underlying Shares representing 2,099,047
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
convertible bonds issued to Mr. Tse Young Lai
on 29 June 2020 under which Mr. Tse may
exercise the conversion right from 29 June
2023 to 28 June 2025 at an exercise price of
HK$0.55 per Share.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December
2020, the Company has not been notified of any
persons, other than a director or chief executive of
the Company, who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

PHAEG ZEHEBEARNER=ZZ
ZEFERNRAZTABEITTHREL
ERTRREFEITEEAE TETH
2,099,047 R & 0 - R UL - L £ TR
ZEZ=FRNAZt+ABE=ZET=H
FARNAZ+N\BHETEBRRE 17
B AFRARMN0.558TT -

BENFEN BE_T _FBF+
A=+—B XRRETMBEERMAL
(ARRIEFHERTRABRINR
AR B R AR B A 19 o BE R IR 1R
B & B A GBI EXVEL 33615 TR T 17
EvECMARENARARRRRKE
HREE SR o

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder
of the Company dated 22 July 2002, the Company
conditionally adopted and approved Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of which are set out
in Appendix IV to the prospectus of the Company dated
9 October 2002.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company dated 29 September
2010, the New Share Option Scheme was adopted and
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was terminated. The
principal terms of New Share Option Scheme are set out
in the circular of the Company dated 6 September 2010.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2020, no share options to subscribe
for shares of the Company granted pursuant to the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme were outstanding. The details
of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out as follows:

Besra

BEARAME-—RER-_ZT_F+A=-+=H
ZEMRBR  ARBHGMRARIETRD
FRARRBRETS -EHENIZRREAXEHR
—ERHETANBZARRBEREREWMEZRIA-

BRERRBAR_ZF-ZTFAA_TAHRTZR
RESFRIAE LB RER - #TRE AR 81— R -
B R A F A BR B AR AT BI04 1L - $h R B AT
B2 FEBRRARARAR -_ZE—TFAARA
BHZBEA -

BHRAFB &R T 2

R-B-BFE+-_A=+—H HERBEERLH
BREBREFIROMARBARA RN 2B
RERRTE - RBEE_T_TF+_-_A=1+—H
EFE BRAREREBREFSFENT:

Outstanding
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled as at
Category of price 1 January during during during during 31 December
participants per Share  Date of grant Exercise period the year the year the year the year 2020
R’
-3
+=A
B ) RZF=%% ) =t-H
SENER ﬁﬁ? RiEH friEs ERRH ENfTRE ERKH EREH DEIH
(HKS)
(A7)
Directors 366 13 May2010 13 May 2010 - - - (33,292) - -
12 May 2020
B3 —Z2-TFRA+=A —F-TEREA+=A-
ZZZRFRATCH
Directors 2.89 3 September 2010 29 September 2010 - - - (24,888) - -
2 September 2020
Bz “T-TEAA=R  ZT-FEAA-thA-
“E-EFAACH
Total - - (68,180) - -
2y

Note: All share options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme are vested immediately.
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New Share Option Scheme

In accordance with the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) held on 29 June 2017,
the scheme limit on the grant of options under the
New Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company has been refreshed to up to
449,848,122 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the AGM date based on 4,498,481,222 Shares in issue
(excluding share options previously granted, outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised under the New Share
Option Scheme) (the “Refreshed Scheme Limit’); and
the Directors are authorised, at their absolute discretion,
to grant share options to subscribe for Shares within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit in accordance with the rules of
the New Share Option Scheme; to allot, issue and deal
with the Shares pursuant to the exercise of share options
granted under the New Share Option Scheme within
the Refreshed Scheme Limit; and to do such acts and
execute such documents for or incidental to implement
the New Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed
Scheme Limit.

As at 31 December 2020, the share options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 92,411 Shares granted pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme were outstanding. The
details of the share options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2020 are set out as follows:

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRES

i AE Bz T B

BER-_E—+EXNA-TNABRTZREESE
A ((BEBEXE|) FRB2AZE BEF
EREFE AR EMEMBRETSRHEE
fEiE 2 5T EIRBEE B E &% 449,848,122/ J& 15 -
Bl bA4,498,481,222k BB TR D AEXE BRK
RRAFASEABETRG Z210% REFHEBER
R B Z AR MARITE S R ITE
AR ERRSN) ([EHMETEIRE])  kEEEES
BERBERIEFTERETS ZRANFLIRERS
ZHERRE BBENEMEIREAR  RIRIE B
PRIERT BT IR H 2 BB TR BO8 BT R
BRIEG  BEBEAEFMEIRELAR  RREH
EIREEEANARATTERESEIELEERTE
N 3837 BT -

RIE-_ZTHE+-_AF=+—8 BEFERETS
BETREAS L2, 411 ) = BE RS #E 15 R T
F-REBEE-ZT-_TF+_A=+—HILEFE 'R
BHERESEIREOBREFBOT

Number of share options
BRiEsE

Outstanding
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled as at
Category of price 1 January during during during during 31 December
participants per Share  Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period 2020 the year the year the year the year 2020
|t Juk 23
+ZA
1 | Sk k24 =t+-8
2EAER ﬁﬁg BeH GEH s -A-H ERRLH R EREY ERiEE WA
(HKS)
(&%)
Directors 7.62 28 March 2011 28 March 2011 - 28 March 2012 - 9411 - - - - 9,411
27 March 2012 27 March 2021
g2 3--F “2——4£ZA-tN\AE -B--£ZA-tN\AZE
ZAZtNB ZE-ZEZACHHE ZEC-£ZAC14A
Directors 0.2456 16 May 2017 - 16 May 2017 - 46,460,000 - - (46,460,000) - -
15 May 2020
EZ “T-rE - ZE-+ERRT5EE
BAtAA “E-2ERA1RA
Other participants 0.2456 16 May 2017 - 16 May 2017 - 207,920,000 - - (207,920,000) - -
15 May 2020
EhSEAL “E-tE - ZE2-tERATRAE
RAtTAA “3-2%RATAA
Total 254,472,411 S - (254,380,000) > 92,411
o8

Note: The weighted average closing price of shares of the
Company immediately before the date on which the
options were exercised is HK$0.335.

M BEBREETEZA 2N RABRM K NET
U T B £0.8358 T ©

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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(1)

(1)

(i)

New Share Option Scheme’s purpose

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is
to attract and retain the best available personnel,
to provide additional incentive to selected person
and to promote the success of the business of the
Group.

Qualifying participants

The participants of the New Share Option
Scheme include any employee of the Company
or any subsidiary of the Company, a director,
a shareholder, a supplier, a customer or any
subsidiary of the Company; an agent, adviser,
consultant, strategist, contractor, subcontractor,
expert or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any valuable
services to Company or any of its subsidiary; and a
holder of any securities issued.

Maximum number of shares

In accordance with the resolution passed at the
AGM held on 29 June 2017, the scheme limit on
the grant of options under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company was refreshed to up to the Refreshed
Scheme Limit, i.e. 449,848,122 Shares, being
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the
AGM (i.e. 4,498,481,222 Shares) (excluding share
options previously granted, outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme) and, after taking into account the effect of
share consolidation of the Company which became
effective on 16 September 2021, representing
approximately 5.40% of the issued Shares as at the
date of this annual report (i.e. 832,386,836 Shares);
and the Directors are authorized, at their absolute
discretion, to grant share options to subscribe
for Shares within the Refreshed Scheme Limit in
accordance with the rules of the New Share Option
Scheme; to allot, issue and deal with the Shares
pursuant to the exercise of share options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit; and to do such acts
and execute such documents for or incidental to
implement the New Share Option Scheme within
the Refreshed Scheme Limit.
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(i)

(i)

B E &2 B 2y

MAABEERSI RREREFHAS AL
BEATRHUEINER URESHAEEE
B -
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EEK2HEE

\

BRSNS REREARR R EEAEM
MEBARMWEIMER EF KRR HEX:
EFHIARBEAMBAR  AARARE
EATH 8 R B B2 R A 3 S L i BT ST iR sl AE
MEEEREHRIE BR ZHRA KB
B AR DAERE BRIER REM
BEETEFNFTAAC

REREHE

BERAR-_E—+FENA-THLBERITHR
RBEFARE LBBZRAZR RIEFNBRE
FFEIRARREMEMBRETTSELE
EZEIRBEEFTEE F:TEIREE B
449,848 1228 - ERFRBFARAEEHLE
1T IR 1 (BN4,498,481,222M A% 15 ) 2 10%
(REBEFBERENE ZARE  WARTE
R ITEZBRERIN) RRFTRA
ARBEHAEH (R -—FAR+ B4
MO EE HRAFRABBEETRG
(B1832,386,836/% X170 ) #95.40% : M IXKE=E
ERRWNIBREFNBRET S Z AR E A
RERMD 2 BIRE  SENEHAERES
R R IREFEBRETS A EL 2 B EE
IR M8 BT REERG  BEANEHN

STEIRBAR RN E # &t 8RB E Q5L
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Maximum entitlernent of each qualifying
participant

No qualifying participant shall be granted any
options which, if exercised in full, would result in
such person’s maximum entitlement exceeding 1%
of the aggregate number of Shares for the time
being issued and issuable under the New Share
Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to and
including the proposed grant date unless such
grant is approved in advance by the Shareholders
in general meeting. No qualifying participant who
is a substantial Shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates shall be granted any options, which, if
exercised in full, would result in the shares issued
and issuable to such person under the New Share
Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to and
including the proposed grant date for such options,
unless such grant of options is approved in advance
by the Shareholders of the Company in general
meeting: (a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the number of Shares then in issue; and (b) having
an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on each relevant date on which
the grant of such options is made to such person
under the relevant scheme, in excess of HK$5
million.

Option period

The share options may be exercised in whole or
in part by the participant at any time during the
exercise period, i.e. not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant of the relevant new share options
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, by
delivering to the Company a notice duly signed
in a form approved by the Board (together with
payment of the exercise price in full in respect of
each new share to be subscribed for) and delivery
of the new share option certificate for amendment
or cancellation.

Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

No offer of a new share option which is capable
of or open for acceptance shall be made after the
expiry of the exercise period pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme.

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Payment on acceptance of the option

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the Company
on acceptance of the share option offer. The share
option offer will be offered for acceptance for a
period of 14 days from the date on which the offer
is granted.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price for the share under the New
Share Option Scheme will be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of
making the offer of grant of a new share option but
in any case the subscription price must be at least
the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must
be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business day
immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (i) the nominal value of the shares.

Remaining life of the New Share Option
Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme was in force for
a period of 10 years commencing on the date on
which the New Share Option Scheme becomes
unconditional. As at the date of this annual report,
the New Share Option Scheme has expired.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below, no Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance during or
subsisting or at the end of the year under review:

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual Report 20

The entitlement of Mr. Sin and Mr. Chow Kai Weng
of the New Shares and the Conversion Shares
under the Scheme, details of which are set out in
the section headed “Scheme of Arrangement” of
this Directors’ Report.

The Directors’ interests in the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme, details of which are set out
under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this
Directors’ report;
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The Directors’ interests in the New Share Option
Scheme, details of which are set out under the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” of this Directors’ report;

The Directors’ interests in the Shareholders’ loan,
other loan agreement advanced by the Directors
to the Company and convertible bonds as set out
below:
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Outstanding

Asat  Drawdown Repaid as at

Name of Interest Principal 1 January during during 31 December

the Director Date Nature of rate amount 2020 the year the year 2020

Sk a4

gk Jak: - +ZR=+-8

£ BY g ik ¥ ] -A-B ERER EhfRE A

HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS

BT BT B AT BT

Mr. Sin 12 May 2015 Term Loan 13% 7,500,000 7,500,000 - (7,500,000) -
pik “E-n§RA+ZA EHEX

02 June 2015 Term Loan 13% 5,000,000 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) -
“E-1%5~AZH EHEX

11 August 2015 Term Loan 1% 3,000,000 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) -
ZZ-RENAT-H BEHEX

25 August 2015 Revolving Loan 12% 20,000,000 16,000,000 - (16,000,000) -
ZZ-RENAZTEA EREX

09 October 2015 Revolving Loan 10% 50,000,000 40,000,000 - (40,000,000) -
ZZ-REHANA EREX

03 November 2015 Term Loan 10% 62,000,000 62,000,000 - (62,000,000) -
ZZ-nft-A=H BEHEX

29 January 2016 Revolving Loan 1% 150,000,000 105,000,000 - (105,000,000) -
ZE-RE-AZTAA EREX

19 February 2016 Term Loan - 40,000,000 40,000,000 - (40,000,000) -
ZE-REZATAA EHEX

19 February 2016 Revolving Loan 6% 100,000,000 59,900,000 - (59,900,000) -
ZE-REZATAB EREX

30 June 2016 Revolving Loan 15% 150,000,000 97,847,324 - (97,847,324) -
ZE-RERAZTH EREX

14 April 2018 Term Loan 8% 84,200,000 84,200,000 - (84,200,000) -
ZZ-\EBATEA EHEX

31 December 2019 Revolving Loan 8.0% 50,000,000.00 5,577,720.00 13,208,941.93 (9,919,976.17) 8,861,685.76
ZZ-AETZAZt-B EBRER

29 June 2020 Convertible Bonds 1% 394,973,249 - - - 394,973,249

ZECZERAZTAA TakER
1,511,646,498 526,025,044 13,203941.93  (530,367,300.17)  403,834,934.76

[

BEEREVILERBERA 71 ZT_TFH
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EEEHEE
Outstanding
Asat  Drawdown Repaid as at
Name of Interest Principal 1 January during during 31 December
the Director Date Nature of rate amount 2020 the year the year 2020
RZB-%E
gt ok - +ZR=+-8
Esits BY g HE 328 -A-8 ERER EmfRE AR
HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
L B A AL B
Mr. Chow Kai Weng 01 October 2016 Term Loan 5% 48,048,000 20,660,200 - (20,660,200) -
BRREE “E-751+A-8 EHEX
30 September 2017 Revolving loan 10% 50,000,000 15,134,532 - (15,134,632) -
ZE-+ENAZTH BREX
14 June 2020 Revolving Loan 8.0% 50,000,000.00 - 21,220,085.18 - 21,220,085.18
“E-EFARTEA BRER
1 August 2020 Revolving Loan 0.1% 80,000,000.00 - 59,704,235.45 (34,934,039.61) 24,770,195.84
ZEITENA-A BRER
21 September 2020 Revolving Loan 9.0% 10,000,000.00 - 5,000,000.00 (2,994,791.69) 2,005,208.31
ZEITEAAZT-R EREX
25 September 2020 Revolving Loan 0.5% 50,000,000.00 - 15,309,271.83 (3,487,725.18) 11,821,546.65
ZECTEAAZTEA BRER
26 October 2020 Revolving Loan 0.3% 10,000,000.00 - 1,300,000.34 - 1,300,000.34
ZECTETAZTAA BRER
28 October 2020 Revolving Loan 0.8% 10,000,000.00 - 1,500,000.00 (38,000.26) 1,461,999.74
ZECTETAZTAA BRER
2 November 2020 Revolving Loan 10.0% 10,000,000.00 - 3,024,999.96 - 3,024,999.96
ZFITET-AZH EREH
5 November 2020 Revolving Loan 3.5% 10,000,000.00 - 1,162,500.00 (90,218.97) 1,072,281.03
ZFCTET-AEA EREH
25 November 2020 Revolving Loan 3.0% 10,000,000.00 - 7,739,000.00 (1,543,660.84) 6,195,339.16
ZEIRE+-AZTRER RREX
2 December 2020 Revolving Loan 4.0% 10,000,000.00 - 2,000,000.00 (1,810,000.00) 190,000.00
ZEITETZACH FRER
24 December 2020 Revolving Loan 2.0% 10,000,000.00 - 2,100,000.00 - 2,100,000.00
“ECRELCACTEA RRER
30 December 2020 Revolving Loan 12.0% 10,000,000.00 - 1,000,000.00 - 1,000,000.00
ZEZ3E+ZR=1H FRER
29 June 2020 Convertible Bonds 1% 20,168,274 - - - 22,168,274
ZEZERAZTNA hkES
241,276,346.76 35,794,732 121,060,072.76 (80,693,168.55) 98,329,910.21
1,752,922,844.76 561,819,776 134,264,01469  (611,060468.72)  502,164,844.95
Note: B o
(1) Mr. Sin resigned as the Chairman and an executive (1) AEER-_Z-_—FtA-+-HEIT=E

Director an 22 July 2021. FERATESE-

2 FREEENEHERRBRERKCDIHAE
B e

(2) The term loans and revolving loans from the
Directors is included in the restructuring transaction.




D

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the share option scheme of the Company, the
scheme of arrangement put forward by the Company,
the SSF Agreement and the Possible Offer, being equity-
linked agreements of the Company subsisted during
the year ended 31 December 2020 or were subsisting
as at 31 December 2020, are disclosed under the
paragraphs headed “Share Option Schemes”, “Scheme
of Arrangement”, “Proposed Grant of Share Subscription
Facility to the Company and Proposed issue of New
Shares and Warrants under Specific Mandate and
“Possible Offer for Convoy Global Holdings Limited”
respectively in this “Directors’ Report” of this annual
report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Before 30 November 2000, the Group did not contribute
to any retirement benefit scheme for either its employees
or the Directors in Hong Kong. With effect from
1 December 2000, the Group had joined the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme under the rules and regulations
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. The
Group’s employees in Hong Kong are required to join the
scheme. The Group has followed the minimum statutory
contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregate income.

The Group’s subsidiary in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in
social insurance schemes (including retirement benefit
scheme, medical insurance scheme and unemployment
benefit scheme) operated by the relevant local
government authorities. The Group is required to make
contribution to the social insurance schemes on behalf
of employees who are registered permanent residents in
the PRC. The insurance premium is borne by the Group
and the employees on a specified proportion of the
employees’ salaries laid down under the relevant PRC
law.

During the year, the employer’s contributions to the
retirement benefit scheme charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income amounted to
approximately HK$4,073,000 (2019: HK$10,832,000).
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2020.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective close associates had any interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout
the year under review. The Company has arranged for
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors
and the management arising out of corporate activities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as
at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, the Company maintained a sufficient public
float as at the date of this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions
undertaken by the Group during the year in the ordinary
course of business are set out in Note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of such related
party transactions falls under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 17% of the Group’s revenue for the year
under review. The Group’s largest customer accounted
for approximately 14% of its revenue.

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 5% of the Group’s purchases for the year
under review. The Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 2% of its purchases.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates
nor shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers at any time during the
year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with sound and
reasonable corporate governance practices and
procedures with an aim of maximizing the shareholders’
interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’
transparency and accountability. In this respect, to the
best knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied
with all of the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules (“Corporate Governance Code”) then in
force during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 57 to 81 of this annual report for details.

REQUIRED STANDARD OF DEALINGS
FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the
Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

/
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in
2002. As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert (Chairman), Mr. Li Kit
Chee Mr. Lam Kwok Hing Wilfred.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee
reviewed the Company’s annual reports and financial
statements, interim reports and quarterly reports and
discuss with the management over issues relating to
auditing, internal control and financial reporting. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the audited financial results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
this report.

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 57 to 81 for details.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 were audited by Elite Partners
CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”) who will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for reappointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Elite Partners
as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS” AND
DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

(1) Mr. Sin Kwok Lam resigned as the Chairman and
an executive Director on 22 July 2021. Upon his
resignation, Mr. Sin ceased to act as a member and
the chairman of the Nomination Committee;

(2)  Mr. Chow Kai Weng was appointed as the
Chairman and ceased to be associate Chairman
and was appointed as a member and the chairman
of the Nomination Committee on 22 July 2021.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE MEMBERS OF

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited

(Provisional Liquidators Appointed)

(For Restructuring Purpose)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 155 to 303,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 1 in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that as at 31 December
2020, the Group had net current liabilities and net
liabilities by approximately HK$173,116,000 and
HK$317,738,000 respectively. As stated in note 1, these
events or conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in note 1, indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYREAMKRES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continved) FARERTEIE (7

Key audit matter

= EE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB EH N REEAREEE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment

Y - B 5 R R 09k HEF 15

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

FLHERAMIBRRM T8 -

The impairment of property, plant
and equipment is identified as a
key audit matter because of the
significant judgement involved in
assessing the amounts of impairment
of property, plant and equipment.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$545,148,000.

HRTEYE BELEREBEORESHE
B REKNHE B E- -BERRER
BHERIREREFTEFE- R_T_ZF
+TZA=+—HB EBEEENME B
B & 3% 4 40 /545,148,000 7T

The carrying amount of the property,
plant and equipment is written down
to their recoverable amount when
the carrying amount exceeded their
estimated recoverable amount.

fied 49 3~ R Bo T2 RR 1 A PR TED B 38 L 1k
A E &5 AEmERBRZ AT KD

TH-e

Management determined that the
property, plant and equipment is cash
generating units and monitors their
financial performance for the existence
of impairment indicators.

EREEEEVE BEAREBEREASEL

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment process for
identifying impairment indications on property, plant and equipment
include:
BFREIREZINDE BB RREHREDR T (G2 FARERNRE
Fr et

° Understanding management’s process for identifying impairment
indicators;
. THRERRBZIRETROIERF

° Obtaining the cash flow forecasts prepared by management,
understanding the major assumptions adopted in the cash flow
forecasts for each cash-generating units and checking arithmetic
accuracy of the forecast calculation;

. BREEEEGRENKReRERA THRRAeRE|AIFHEZRS
EEBUMEANTERE  UREFFANFTENEMERML:

o Assessing the discount rates adopted by management in the
impairment assessments by comparison with available financial
information of other similar companies taking into account regional
and industry specific risk premiums;

. FREAESHEMBURRNMEERETLER U EEE
RITERFERBRE - M b SRR AN EPRANERE

° Comparing the major assumptions such as growth rates,
budgeted sales and gross margins to historical results and
evaluating their reasonableness in light of current and expected
future market conditions; and

J EERE HEHEEREN RS I EMRBEBABTNETHER
WRIEE AT R FEBAR KT R EESEE: &

B WEREMBRBEUBRE ST L Evaluating the sufficiency of the disclosure of the impairment
WEP R © assessment by management in the consolidated financial

statements.

e FHAEEERGAVBHRRABRERENHERNTED -

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB E S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continved)

Key audit matter

BT EE

FAEELTSEIE (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

A EH A REEAREEE

Recognition of gain on financial restructuring

M EE A a0 B R

Refer to notes 13, 30, 31, 32, 34, 35 and 36
32 34 - 3536 °

E2EMWE1330 31

During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group completed a financial
restructuring scheme by offering its
creditors to subscribe convertible bonds
and new shares of the Company and
a gain on financial restructuring of
approximately HK$805,664,000 was
recognised.

ﬁi*$ §¢+fﬂ*+ IE&F
: mﬁ*ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬂ
ﬁﬁﬁ%%AﬁmEﬁuwﬁ = /A
7] 2 A AR {5 55 Ko ¥ A% 40 - 30 5 bt A SR
7% B 48 Y 2% £805,664,0007%8 T °

& ol ot vy B

~

As disclosed in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements, the
gain on financial restructuring was
mainly derived from the difference
among the fair value of convertible
bonds, the fair value of new shares
issued and the carrying amount of
liabilities settled and relevant transaction
costs.

ERUETES
E@Wéi%%@%%?ﬂ@%%%%
DRE-FROMNAABEREEERE
ZEEERBBR KA ERE-

In determining the fair value of the
convertible bonds, management
engaged an independent valuer (the
“Valuer”) to perform the valuation of
convertible bonds. In estimating the
value of convertible bonds, key inputs
used by the valuer and agreed by
management include the discount rate
and share price.

?#ET%%%%Z@f

Ht
i
>
s
5
@
B
&

In determining the fair value of the new
shares, management referenced to the
quoted market price of the Company’s

Share
EREDS

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the appropriateness of valuation
of convertible bonds included:

BAFEATRRES 2 HENES

METIRIEF 8

Understanding and discussing with the management on the
financial restru;cturing/plan; .
THREBEETE WEEBEN®R

Evaluating the Valuer’'s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

A ERMEERE O REFEE:

Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology and
the reasonableness on the key inputs used by the Valuer and
agreed by management, including the discount rate and share

price;
AEEEFENEEERGEEMAERATAEEERTNETER
ASE (BEMBERRRE)HEEMNE:

Evaluating the sensitivity analysis performed by the Valuer in
relation to the fluctuation on the discount rate and share price of

the Company’s shares;
FHEHEMMAEIRER BEARKRERESETHHRRE DN

Comparing the quoted market price of the Company’s share
adopted in determining the fair value of the new shares issued;
%ﬁ%ia%ﬁ%%ﬁ ARBEMEAE ERAKRGE TSR
=

Checking on a sample basis on the notice of claim and accession
deed signed by the creditors; and
HERESEEEAFENRRBNEREBNRERXE &

Testing on a sample basis on the transaction costs in respective
of contracts and shares issuance records.
MRS BN MRDEITREFMINNORBHA -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYREAMKRES

Hib &8

BERFERAHEMENERE HMWEHNBEFR
AHE R BT BREES P RR kB FIR &= 2ED

o

BMBEAMBERRNBEELNREELMER
BT AR TEEZEHEMERBEREATER
HYEERE S ©

BERMUGAMBBRRRNEBL RANTER
ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬂrﬁﬂﬂ&¢ %fﬁ@ﬁﬂ%éﬁ
mA %Wﬁ%%&ﬁ&%ﬁLﬁ@%T%m
FHEBAEBREUFFEERERRANE
EREMEHITH TR W%ﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬂéﬂf
EEARERBL BMFEREZEE-EEHE
BB EMRE -

EERAERR
£

BB RARENS

BERNRERAAERBELGHMASEMN (F
B BREER) REE (REEH) WIRERE
%%Eaﬁ¢ﬁm@Aﬁﬁﬁﬁ WHERRRE
REMBHREANEBRIFERRKFLERME
HERERRAMFOAIEGAE -

EREGAMBRRE EFARNE ZSRERF
BREME S TEBRBER TRERBEGES
MOER ARERBELERSTER RIFE

ERER Exlﬁ£&1 ERE HBIEELME
BREBERTR
ERZEGARER EEEZUMBHRBRESF-

B2REXEEEFRA

151



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAZBMBRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Ildentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYREAMKRES
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYREAMRES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Lock Kwong Hang, Simon
with Practising Certificate number PO6735.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 22 October 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBEmkHEtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
k. Jemt 3 —NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 2 THERT FBT
(restated)
(=)
Revenue WA
- Goods and services -ERER® 8 30,346 135,919
- Rental —-He 8 8,837 41,565
— Interest —FE 8 - 4,608
Total revenue UL 39,183 182,092
Other income and other net gain H A R E At M e 9 11,625 14,658
Cost of film production B BERCAR = (1,210)
Staff costs BTIMA 13 (53,372) (58,020)
Other operating expenses HinZERE 13 (55,656) (126,015)
Operating (loss)/profit K (F18) (58,220) 11,505
Depreciation of property, plant and mME BERRERE
equipment 13 (59,613) (63,240)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 13 (15,918) (15,927)
Bad debt written off AR (271) =
Impairment loss on property, ME BFERZEREBE
plant and equipment 13 (372,110) (93,627)
Impairment loss on financial assets CRVEERER R 10 (141,934) (134,496)
Impairment loss on investment in B REREREERE
film production 9 - (986)
Provision for restructuring cost SN AR - (43,776)
Gain on financial restructuring B EA W 13 805,664 =
Equity-settled share-based payment INEREE 2 RN TR 13 (12,000) =
Net exchange gain/(losses) [E 5 ket (E518) %58 13 50,564 (17,791)
Share of loss of a joint venture DME—HAELEEE (2,390) (2,479)
Finance costs wER AR 12 (150,281) (244,425)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BrRETSHAFE, (EE) 13 43,491 (605,242)
Income tax expense FEHAX 14 - =
Profit/(loss) for the year XEEFB(HE) 43,491 (605,242)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) HitZ TR, (FX)
Item that may be reclassified RETGEESBEHIESR
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation BE BN ER I B K
of financial statements of foreign EEMENLEZR
operations 19,379 (14,428)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FEHMG2ERAN(FX)
for the year, net of tax NRRHIE 19,379 (14,428)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) AEEZEIAN  (BX)
for the year FbE] 62,870 (619,670)
BB#RE{IEEBFRA —E-_ZTFR
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CONSOLDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FeBakAEMEEmRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

2020 2019
k- e 33 —Z-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 2 TF#T FHBT
(restated)
(E=ED)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEMEAREENRE (EBE) :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KABEB A 44,662 (604,467)
Non-controlling interests IR (1,171) (775)
43,491 (605,242)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) MEME2EUAN, (B ) 4855 :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KABEB A 64,041 (618,895)
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR (1,171) (775)
62,870 (619,670)
(restated)
(REY))
Earnings/(loss) per share BREHN(EBE)
Basic N HK7.24 cents (HK124.33 cents
15 &l )
Diluted g HK5.52 cents  (HK124.33 cents

15 &l Al




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BB R

At 31 December 2020 R=—ZE=-ZF+=-F=+—H

n‘/-ﬁ

2020 2019 2018
—E-TH§ —hEF —\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
gz TFHET FAT FAT
(restated) (restated)
(&7)) (&%)
Non-current assets ¥RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- HER&E 18 545,148 908,268 1,048,637
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20 348,861 360,218 371,074
Interest in associates EAH%%’R RlZ 21 - - -
Investment in a joint venture BREZRE 22 459 2,849 5,328
Long-term receivables and investment Eﬂﬂ}ﬁiﬂﬁl RBERKE
deposits " 27 108,744 129,115 92,555
Pledged bank deposits BEABITER 2,377 2,229 2,278
1,005,589 1,402,679 1,519,872
Current assets RBEE
Film products and film production BYEMREREY
in progress Em 23 4,936 4,344 1,210
Investments in films/dramas production &5,/ BB 2 EH R E 24 325 325 1,311
Trade receivables fEWE 5 A 25 5,556 75,184 128,177
Inventories FE 26 831 2,514 2,928
Prepayments, deposits and other BB ke RkE M
receivables E U Fh A 27 76,103 42,265 54,492
Amount due from a joint venture EEH&(’\%ﬁi HIE 22 2,414 2,414 2,414
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITHE 28 12,601 3,667 13,474
102,766 130,713 204,006
Current liabilities REERE
Trade payables B SHIA 29 38,604 36,072 19,979
Other payables and accruals Ho A e A R B A B A 30 129,678 197,393 83,771
Loans from shareholders R E 31 20,301 589,457 4,090
Borrowings BER 32 67,522 217,145 138,400
Bank overdrafts RITEX 28 - 5,778 =
Lease liabilities HEEE 33 2,256 13,502 9,738
Bonds &% 34 - 769,105 660,424
Promissory note S S 36 14,570 115,197 =
Tax payables FETiE 2,951 2,951 2,951
275,882 1,946,600 919,353
Net current liabilities mEBEEFE (173,116)  (1,815,887) (715,347)
Total assets less current liabilities AEBEARDHAR 832,473 (413,208) 804,525
BEEREVILERBERA 71 ZT_TFH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A AR

At 31 December 2020 R=—ZE-ZEF+_-_A=+—H

2020 2019 2018
bt 2 — T F T N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(i TERT FHET FET
(restated) (restated)

(&575) (& E5))

Non-current liabilities ¥RHEE
Other payables and accruals HEMNFIBERETER 30 60,382 = =
Loans from shareholders BREER 31 69,722 = 596,941
Borrowings CEA 32 87,038 9,895 54,659
Bonds &% 34 - 384,178 362,895
Promissory note EHEE 36 33,893 = 106,477
Lease liabilities HEERE 33 33,160 16,261 14,461
Convertible bonds AR E 5 35 866,016 - -
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 37 - - -
1,150,211 410,334 1,135,433
Net liabilities FEE (317,738) (823,542) (330,908)
Capital and reserves EXRG#E
Share capital P& 38 742,387 494,817 451,716
Reserves 1 (1,057,675)  (1,317,816) (782,856)
Equity attributable to owners of RARGEA ARG ER
the Company (315,288) (822,999) (831,140)
Non-controlling interests JEFERR RS (2,450) (543) 232
Total equity T 4R E (317,738) (823,542) (330,908)
The consolidated financial statements were approved BAEVBHREREBRESTERNR T _—F1+ A
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 T HiEREETE YR TINESREES
October 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: gHEE:
Chow Kai Weng Cheng Wang Chun
ARz - IETN:
Director Director

BEF BE




w

%

9

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REREmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EYSE 29N
Convertible Attributable
Share Special  Contributed  Properties Share bonds equity to non-
capital Share reserve surplus  revaluation  Translation option reserve  Accumulated controlling
(note 36) premium (note 39) (note 39) reserve reserve reserve (note 35) losses Subtotal interests Total
TRRES
[ GhlE  EAER B R
(Bit3s) RGER (Wi (W) HREGEE  REEE  BRERE (W) RitHR gt REEE  RG9E
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000
Tt Tt Tkt Tkt TFhT Fhn FEn TEn T Tk Tt Tkt
At 1 January 2019, ZE-NE
as previously stated (58 23) 51716 804495 6,302 78,791 3008 (181671) 41,912 S (A 14494 252 145175
Change in accounting policy SHAREELHE - - - - (335,01) - - - (141,000 (476,083 - (476,083)
As at 1 January 2019 as restated
451,716 804,495 6,302 78791 o (131,671) 41,912 - (1,582,685 (331,140) 232 (330,908)
Share issued upon exercise fiRRERETRE
of share options (note 42) 2) 224 583 = = S S (257) S - 550 - 550
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - - - - (13973) - 13,973 - - -
Issug of Shares under placing BERERTRG 42817 61914 - - - - - - - 104,791 - 104,791
Equity settled share-based payment bAEZ£E 2RI fHE - - - - - - 21,695 - - 21,695 - 21,695
Transaction with owners HEEAETNRS 43101 62,497 - - - - 7,465 - 13,973 127,036 S 127,036
Loss for the year RERER - - - - - - - - (6046 (B04467) (173 (605,242)
Exchange differences on translation #8850 ¥ HEBHRx R
of financial statements of EEMENZR
foreign operations = S S = = (14,428) = = = (14,428) S (14,428)
Total comprehensive expense FEERERREE
for the year - - - - - (14,428) - - (604,467) (618,895) (775) (619,670)
At 31 December 2019 NE+=R=t-R 494,817 866,992 6,302 78791 o (146,099) 49377 - 178179 (822,999) (543) (823,542)
Asat 1 January 2020, R-2-2%-A-A
as previously stated (k823 a9817 866,092 6,302 I 158104 (146299 49377 - (1938824  (430,740) (543) (431,289
Change in accounting policy SHAREE - - - - (158,104) 200 - - (234,355)  (392,259) - (392,259)
As at 1 January 2020, as restated
44817 866,092 6,302 78,791 - (160%) 49977 - AT (822,999) (543) (623,540
Lapse of share options BREXH - - - - - - (3,016) - 3,016 - - -
Issue of convertiole bonds arising BRI B EAME T
from the completion of financial WK ES
restructuring - - - - - - - 3,933 - 3,938 - 3,933
Shere issued to the creditor REEFRHTRE
upon completion of placing of  FEEAZ{TRL
new shares 215,512 183,184 - - - - - - - 398,696 - 398,696
Share issued by setfementof  HENTHEEEAZ
financial advisory fee for SHRBRERNETNRE
the completion of financial
restructuring 25,000 25,000 - - - - (21,695) - - 28,305 - 28,305
Equity settled share-based payment /AfE& %8 2 RARH
(Note 42 (d) [GEZ) 7,058 4942 - - - - - - - 12,000 - 12,000
Transaction with owners REEAETNRS 247,570 213,126 - - - - (24,711) 3,033 3,016 442,934 - 442,934
Deemed partial disposal of RELESIHERE
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 736 736 (736) -
Profit for the year TEEER © = = = - - - - 44,662 44,662 (1,171) 43,491
Exchange differences on translation #8550 £ 18 B
of financial statements of forsign ~ E4MER£8
operations - - - - - 19,379 - - - 19,379 - 19,379
Total comprehensive income TERREUALE
for the year - - - - - 19,379 - - 44,662 64,041 (1,171) 62,870
s at 31 December 2020 2387 1,080,118 6,302 78,791 - (126720 24666 3933 (214765  (315288) (2450 (317,738
HEREIEBERA 7] T _TFR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SERIMER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ=Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE

2020 2019
“ECTF ik
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
(restated)
(& =E5)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING HEEBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AT FIRE S (F518) 43,491 (605,242)
Adjustments for: RTINS EEL AR
Finance costs A& B AN 150,281 244,425
Bank interest income RITH B WA (1) (29)
Amortisation of film products BREMBH - 1,210
Depreciation of property, plant and Y HREREEITE
equipment 59,613 63,240
Depreciation of right-of-use asset EREEENE 15,918 15,927
Expenses recognised in respect of RN RO SR
equity-settled share-based payments R 12,000 21,695
Impairment loss on property, Y- WRENEEBERESE
plant and equipment 372,110 93,627
Bad debt written off 122 R i 85 271 -
Witten off on inventories WEFE 1,566 =
Gain on financial restructuring B i E A U 25 (805,663) =
Impairment losses on trade and other 25 REMEWKIE
receivables EODRIEN SR 141,934 134,496
Impairment loss on investment in film BERRERERERSE
production - 986
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant ﬁiftﬁ% TR 5 Ko 5% 1 Y
and equipment =),/ B8 (155) 82
Share of loss of a joint venture 33\15—F' EEPHEEIE 2,390 2,479
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESEHAIMNLE
working capital BemneE (6,245) (27,104)
Decrease in inventories FERL 117 414
Increase in film products and film production B E M &EEEFE R
in progress 0 (592) (4,344)
Increase in trade receivables FEUCE 5 IR N (7,961) (35,813)
Increase in prepayments, FENFE -ZekHEM
deposits and other receivables JE UK SR IE 18 0 (31,185) (70,023)
Increase in trade payables FERTE S RIEE N 2,532 16,093
Increase in other payables and HiENARIBEREFTER
accruals byl 44,268 113,622
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) %% (FRA)RLBE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 934 (7,155)

160 National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual Report 20



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERTMEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE

—E-EF+-A=t+—HBLEE

2020 2019
—E-TEF T —NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ERT FHET
(restated)
(=E5)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BETHHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received A B U A 1 29
Payments for property, plant and equipment ¥ % - &= &R & 5% (17,726) (36,470)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BEM&E
plant and equipment P8 5IE 2,000 =
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BRETFHMAZFHESE
ACTIVITIES (15,725) (36,441)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEHHIRLSRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid EENEES (14,456) (127,766)
Proceeds from shareholders loans Hﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂ 15 3KIA 90,023 13,220
Repayments of shareholders loans EERRER (5,578) (20,659)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 3 B {2 2K B 2 20R 9,507 39,194
Repayments of short-term borrowings EREHER (12,930) (5,213)
Proceeds from other borrowings E A {& R PT13 5KIB 5,141 =
Repayments of other borrowings EEHEMER (7,452) =
Proceeds from issuance of bonds BITESSHRIA - 526,871
Transaction costs of issuance of bonds ?ﬂﬂf%ﬁ’]ﬁ&%ﬁkﬂi - (24,302)
Repayments of bonds EERES - (482,004)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEaE (4,421) (1,909)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon BREETEREITRMD
exercise of share options P8 5IE - 550
Proceeds from placing of shares Eﬂ’iﬂx{ﬁﬁﬁ@?ﬂ - 111,480
Transaction costs of placing of shares A& 1% EE%ZX%EX$ - (6,689)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REESRBASEE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 59,834 22,773
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReprRaFEEEEN  (BD)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS b 45,043 (20,823)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FPHRLeRRELEEEE
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR (2,111) 13,474
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE EESEHAFIIMNEHESEH
CHANGES ON THE BALANCE OF CASH My &
HELD IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES (30,331) 5,238
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EXRFALRIESEEER
THE END OF THE YEAR 12,601 (2,111)
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH & RIFASZHEBLB I
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances BRe RIRITE 12,601 3,667
Bank overdrafts RITBEX - (5,778)
12,601 (2,111)
BB#RE{IEEBFRA —E-TER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=-Z=ZF+-A=+—HILFE

. " REMEEREE

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

a)

General

National Arts Entertainment and Culture
Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries as, the “Group”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16
November 2001 as an exempted company
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) in the
Cayman lIslands. On 14 October 2010, the
Company deregistered in the Cayman lIslands
and continued in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the laws of Bermuda with
effect from 14 October 2010. The registered
office of the Company is at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong is at Room 1514-1515, 15/F.,
Seapower Tower, Concordia Plaza, No.
1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“The Stock Exchange”). The Company is
principally engaged in investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group include
film production and distribution, the provision
of management services to artistes, event
coordination, operations of film studio and
hotel and provision of travel related products.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”),
which is also the functional currency of the
Company and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (“HK$’000”) unless
otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (Continuead)

b)

Financial restructuring plans

On 14 June 2019, a winding up petition
together with the application for the
appointment of Mr. Osman Mohammed
Arab and Mr. Lai Wing Lun, both of RSM
Corporate Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited, and
Mr. Roy Bailey c/o EY Bermuda Ltd as joint
provisional liquidators (together “JPLs”) of
the Company on a light touch approach for
restructuring purposes (the “JPL Application”)
was presented and filed with the Supreme
Court of Bermuda (the “Bermuda Court”) by
the Company’s Bermuda Counsel, Conyers
Dill & Pearman at the request of the Company
(the “JPL Application”).

Under the JPL Application, the Board shall
retain all of its executive powers in relation
to the ordinary course of business of the
Company, subject to the JPLs’ supervision,
for the purpose of developing and proposing
a financial restructuring, of the exercise
of such powers. This would allow the
Company’s current management to work with
the JPLs to oversee the implementation of a
financial restructuring proposal.

The Bermuda Court made the orders as
sought by the Company under the JPL
Application, inter alia, the JPLs have been
appointed on 14 June 2019.

On 10 July 2019, the Company invited
all known creditors of the Company (the
“Creditors”) to make an offer to the Company
for possible restructuring transaction, which
has received substantial support from most of
the Creditors.

On 26 August 2019, the Company put
forward the proposed scheme of arrangement
pursuant to Section 99 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda and Section 670 of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong
Kong.

The appointment and the powers of the JPLs
were recognised by the High Court of Hong
Kong on 15 August 2019.

1. " RERRGFEEE &)

b)

Bt R E RS

RZE—NFANA+THE BAQAFE
KA AR BB R E ERIConyers Dill
& PearmanPM B R E &= iR ([BH
EFXARDEERRERRERES ER
LAfE[SEoasl | EM EZEERELE
EEERANEERAEREER
%4 LA K EY Bermuda Ltd#JRoy Bailey
EEBEARNBMARBRERA (5
[HREIBEERAUMESHEBENE
F(THRBESBARS]) -

RIBAFREREBERARFE EFSHY
ARAR—MREBBRRE —RITHE
N AERARBRRBERAEET AT
EEBENGERREPEEME IR
BARARAEEIEEEAKFREER
ABEEEMBEAEZANRT

BREZEZREARBRHEARKES
BARFES (AP BRE) R_F
—NFERATOAEEHRREEES
NG

RZFB-—NAELATHE AREEHE

REAIMECHEREA ([EEADRAE
AAMAEEARSRARRIREE
# AERERSBEEARNI -

KABR-_ZE—AFENA-+BR
ERAREE(—AN—F)NRRDEF
G R BB XN F622E (Rallghl) 5
B70IKIR H s L HERT &l -

EREREERER - -NLENHA
THHERBAHRAGRERANESD R
e

REXEEBERR T —T-_ZFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE

1.

GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continuead)

b)

Financial restructuring plans
(Continued)

As part of the Company’s financial
restructuring plans, the Company invited the
Creditors to make an offer to the Company to
subscribe for:

M

1% annual coupon rate convertible
bonds due 2024 to be issued by the
Company (the “Convertible Bonds”) in
the principal amount equal to 60% of
the outstanding principal amount of
debts due and owing by the Company
to each of the Creditors (where
applicable, together with interests
accrued thereon and calculated up to
14 June 2019 at the respective annual
interest rate of the relevant debt(s))
and convertible into fully-paid ordinary
shares of the Company listed and
traded on GEM at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.55 per conversion share
(the “Conversion Shares”)(the “CB
Subscription”); and

new shares of the Company at the
issue price of HK$0.38 per share (the
“New Shares”) the total value of which
equals to the remaining 40% of the
outstanding principal amount of debts
due and owing by the Company to
each of the Creditors (where applicable,
together with interests accrued thereon
and calculated up to 14 June 2019
at the respective annual interest rate
of the relevant debt(s)) (the “Share
Subscription”) (the CB Subscription and
the Share Subscription together referred
to as the “Restructuring Transaction”),
as full and final settlement of all
outstanding debts (where applicable,
together with interests accrued thereon
and calculated up to 14 June 2019
at the respective annual interest rate
of the debt(s)) due and owing by the
Company to the Creditors, subject
to the execution, and the final terms
and conditions, of the subscription
agreement, the bond instrument, any
scheme of arrangement proposed by
the Company and/or other agreements
the execution of which is desirable for
the implementation and consummation
of the Restructuring Transaction, as the
case maybe.

—ECEFE+-A=+—HILEE

1.
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1.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (Continuead)

b)

Financial restructuring plans
(Continued)

The offer by the Creditors to participate in the
Restructuring Transaction also includes an
agreement that the Creditors will participate
in, support and vote in favour of a scheme(s)
of arrangement proposed by the Company,
where such scheme(s) is/are deemed
necessary and appropriate by the Company
and the JPLs of the Company appointed
pursuant to the Order of the Bermuda Court
dated 14 June 2019.

As at 12 August 2019, the Company has
received substantial support from the
Creditors regarding the Restructuring
Transaction.

On 10 October 2019, the Restructuring
Transaction was approved by the
shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) at the special general meeting
of the Company (the “SGM”).

On 8 November 2019, the creditors’ scheme,
which the Company will issue the New Shares
and the Convertible Bonds to the Creditors
to discharge and release the debt owing
by the Company to the Creditors in full (the
“Scheme”), was approved by the requisite
statutory majorities of the Creditors.

On 6 March 2020, the Scheme became
binding and effective.

On 7 May 2020, the notice of decision
on adjudication of claim of the Scheme
Administrators pursuant to the Scheme (the
“Decision”) were dispatched to the Creditors.

On 27 May 2020, the application for review of
the Decision expired and no application was
received.

1.

—REMKEREE (2)

b) MIBEHE (F
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& —RWHE HRARBMMARE RRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ=Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE

166

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF 1. " REXREREE &)

PREPARATION (Continuead)

b) Financial restructuring plans b) BMIBEEHE (&
(Continued)
On 9 June 2020, the Scheme Administrators —EZEFERANE FEERAKE
informed the Company the final result of their B E 2']%]L RN KK TS %L%ﬂ
adjudication of claims pursuant the Scheme ARF WIETRARGRBEFE R ER
and instructed the Company to issue the ANEBEITHRA AT M ES -
New Shares and Convertible Bonds to the
Creditors pursuant to the Scheme.
The Scheme was completed and the New AFEERZZEZEFAAAZT AR
Shares and Convertible Bonds was issued to B RIS TR R A IR E S IR EITT
the each Creditor 29 June 2020. FEEEA-

c) Going concern c) FHEKE
In preparing these consolidated financial REENEREMBHREN EEE
statements, the directors have considered EZEAEERARBARBES - R_Z =
the future liquidity of the Group. As at 31 TE+_A=+—HB FXEEHEBER
December 2020, the Group had recorded BB EFRE4173,116,0008 70 (=&
net current liabilities and net liabilities of — L% :1,815,887,000% 1) k. & &)F
approximately HK$173,116,000 (2019: RH#)317,738,0008 L (=T — N F:

HK$1,815,887,000) and HK$317,738,000
(2019: HK$823,542,000) respectively. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and therefore the Group may
be unable to realise its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group is able to continue
as a going concern and to meet in full their
financial obligations having considered that:

823,542,000 7T) o b F M A R BT
AR AEBBEEFERLLE 26
BREARBZEATEERE  Eit
AEBTEELIREFEBBRESTE
BHEEEREEEGE:

ARBEERRAEEREAFERLE
REERBITEMBEME KEWOT:

()  Subsequent to the end of the reporting () MRBEEHERE XEBNHE
period, the Group has renegotiated ETERAETEEEMER
with certain creditors on the maturity AREMENRERESGTEA
date of other borrowings, and other (% Bl # £64,901,000/% T &
payables and accruals of approximately 55,231,000/ 7T ) E’]i'JEﬁ A&

HK$64,901,000 and HK$55,231,000
respectively. Those creditors extended
the maturity date for a two-year period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (Continuead)

c) Going concern (Continued)

(i

(ifi)

On 13 March 2020, the Company
entered into an agreement (the “SSF
Agreement”) with GEM Global Yield
LLC SCS (the “Investor”), pursuant to
which the Investor has agreed to grant
the Company an option to require the
Investor to subscribe for the shares of
the Company (the “Shares”) (the “Share
Subscription Facility”) and the Company
has agreed to issue 383,000,000
warrants (the “Warrants”) to the Investor.

Under the Share Subscription Facility,
the Company has right to request the
Investor to subscribe for the Shares at
a price which is 90% of the average
closing price of last 10 trading days
immediately following the delivery of
subscription notice by the Company
to the Investor, but not lower than
HK$0.23 per Share (the “Option”). The
Option is exercisable by the Company
for 3 years, commencing on 13 March
2020. The aggregate subscription price
under the Share Subscription Facility is
HK$2,350,000,000.

The Warrants carry a right to the
Investor to subscribe for up to a
total of 383,000,000 Shares at a
price of HK$0.23 per Shares for 3
years, commencing on the date of
the satisfaction or the fulfilment of
conditions precedent to the SSF
Agreement.

On 27 May 2021, the Company issued
a convertible bond to the Investor with
a principal amount of HK$25,000,000
carrying a coupon rate of 4% for three
years;

1. " REMEREREE (2)

c)

5]

(i

(iii

1R

KX(LEEERR A

&

g2 (m)

R-ZE-_FTE=A+=H0 &R
F]EGEM Global Yield LLC SCS
([%EE )T L% ([SSF#H
=) OBIBREERERAR
AIREEREAERKKEERRE
AABRG ([RD]) (R
HEEEARARBEREE
# %% 17383,000,00017 2 A& #E &
(IR HERE]) -

BERERBEE AR EE
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BAZKA10ER S B FHIK
BEMNIONMERRBERML
MR R FR0.238 T (8%
) ARRRABE_T_TF=
B+ =B #E3FERNITHEZBAE-
BEBRBEEBETNEREEGAS
2,350,000,000/% 7T °

SSFip:ERIIEFEM AR
EEA BRFAREX LRGSR
AH#3F N & T A%0.23% LB
18 32 B8 4851 383,000,000 & A 17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ=Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF 1. " BRERKEHREE #)
PREPARATION (Continuead)

c) Going concern (Continued) c) BHEEE (&)

(iv) On 2 September 2021, the Group
obtained a loan with principal amount
of RMB29,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$35,366,000) carrying
an interest rate of 10% per annum from
an independent third party, available
for the Group’s working capital and
its financial obligations. Such credit
facilities matures after twelve months
from 2 September 2021.

(v)  The management of the Group plans
to improve the Group’s financial
performance by taking steps to
reduce discretionary expenses and
administrative costs.

Having taken into account of the
abovementioned, the directors of the
Company adopted the going concern basis in
the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, in light of the aforesaid
arrangement implemented to date, the Group
will have sufficient working capital for its
current requirements and it is reasonable
to expect that the Group will remain as a
commercially viable concern. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company are satisfied that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 on a going concern basis.
Should the Group be unable to continue
to operate as a going concern, adjustment
would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for future liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities to current respectively.
The effect of these adjustments has not
been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

Change in accounting policy for hotel
properties and film studio

In accordance with HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment, the Group’s hotel properties and film
studio can either be accounted for using the cost
model or the revaluation model after their initial
recognition. The Group accounted for its hotel
properties and film studio using the revaluation
model in previous years.

Given the fact that a) the effect of COVID-19
pandemic on unexpected fluctuation in properties
value; and b) most of the hotel properties and film
studio held by listed companies in Hong Kong in
the hotel and theme park industries, are accounted
for using the cost model, during the year, the Group
aligned its accounting policy with the industry
practice and stated its hotel properties and film
studio at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. This change in accounting
policy has resulted in a decrease in the value of
the hotel properties and film studio owned by the
Group. In addition, the Group’s hotel properties
and film studio are not expected to be sold in the
normal course of business, instead, the future
economic benefits embodied in the properties will
be recovered principally through use in the Group’s
operation. In the opinion of the directors, this
change in the accounting policy enables the Group
to provide more relevant information in the financial
statements about its performance.

2.
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2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(Continued)

Change in accounting policy for hotel
properties and film studio (Continued)

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income

SEHHRRIBEEESS (2)

BEMERBGEABEABOREE (£)

(Increase)/decrease in depreciation of
property, plant and equipment

Increase in impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment

(Decrease)/increase in profit/(loss)
for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

(Decrease)/increase in earnings/(loss)
per share attributable to owners
of the Company

Basic

Diluted

(&), EL
mE BB RRERE
&5 1832 AN

ZAN/NCIE ¥ PN A ]
FEMNE/ (B1R)
CRA) /&

ARE A AR
ZEAaN,/ (BER)
CR ) /1250
BN

B R RAME HWas &

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BE HE
—2"FTF —ET-NF
TZA=+—H gl
I EE IFFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER FAT
(3,324) 342
(90,483) (93,627)
(93,807) (93,285)

(HK15.21 cents) (HK19.19 cent)
il B

(HK11.12 cents) (HK19.19 cent)
&l A
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING 2. B BERKRELS (&)
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(Continued)

Change in accounting policy for hotel BEMERLRWETBOREE (£)

properties and film studio (Continued)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
HZ=E
—E-NEF
+=-—A=+—H
EFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER FET
(Decrease)/increase in profit/(loss) FEFME/(FE)
for the year CRA) /o (93,807) (93,285)
Decrease in revaluation of properties BIEERMEEGHRE
held for own use 8,531 235,879
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities EEREE ER D (2,844) (58,970)
Decrease in exchange WEEIINEKZ
differences on translation of TE 5, 2= F80R
foreign operations 41,078 200
Increase/(decrease) in other KARIEBABEEE
comprehensive income/(expense) Hpzmk A
for the year attributable to owners of (A8 (Fd)
the Company 46,765 177,109
(Decrease)/increase in total RABHEBANEIEFE
comprehensive income/(expense) ZEBA (FAX)
for the year attributable to owners @ CRd) /&
of the Company (47,042) 83,824
Consolidated statement of financial position HEMBERILE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2019
k- o -3 ZE-NEF ZZ-NEF
+=B=+—H +-A=+—H —H—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T THL
Decrease in property, plant and equipment %1% 5B L&k ER D (520,902) (491,759) (634,553)
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities ERBEEERD 2,780 99,500 158,470
Decrease in properties revaluation reserve MEE-HEERD 149,572 158,104 335,013
Decrease/(increase) in translation reserve BERERLY /(M) 41,018 (200) =
Increase in accumulated losses 2RBELEMN 327,532 234,355 141,070
BHEREYCEEBERA Al —E-_TFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=-Z=ZF+-A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs" )

a)

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current
year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Definition of Material

Definition of a Business
Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

The application of the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards and the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR ERAR MY AE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs" ) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following

new and amendments to HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

b)

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Insurance Contracts
and the related
Amendments'

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions*

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021°

Reference to the
Conceptual
Framework?®

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture®

Classification of
Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and
related amendments
to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Deferred tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’

Property, Plant and
Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts -
Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-20202

Disclosure if Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS 3. KAKBIEBMBHREE

[o=]
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL Al (BB ERESER])
REPORTING STANDARDS (#)
(“HKFRSs” ) (continued)
b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in b) EEMERREFRIHETREE
issue but not yet effective (Continued) I EEMBREER (2)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 RZEZ=F—A— Az 2 &HABH
after 1 January 2023. FEBBES -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 2 RZZEZZF—-—A— A2 BHRBH
after 1 January 2022. FEBRER
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 3 RETARIcERBOFERBE
after a date to be determined. o
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 4 R-ZZE-ZZTFNA—BARZ2BEBH
after 1 June 2020. FREBHEER
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 5 RZEZ—F—A— Az 2&EABN
after 1 January 2021. FEBBES -
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 6 RZTEZ—FMA— B2 BHABH
after 1 April 2021. FEBHEER
The directors of the Company anticipate ARARESTEHEAMBEMI X
that the application of all other new and BAEET BB U W E R A R 2R
amendments to HKFRSs will have no TEHEENBEREENERTE -

material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

o, e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities (including structured entities) controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

176 National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=-Z=ZF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests
according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Investments in associates and joint
venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
and joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is or the portion
so classified is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5. Any retained portion of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture that has not
been classified as held for sale shall be accounted
for using the equity method. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in
that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ=Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. BEESTTEHE#)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint
venture (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the in vestment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or
a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint
venture (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a
joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate or
joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in
the associate or joint venture is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate of joint venture.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE

4.

;N_(}ﬁ’onal Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limi

e

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint
venture (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes
an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value
upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership investments
in an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=-Z=ZF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

The table below is a summary of how the Group’s
revenue from different types of operations is

recognised under HKFRS 15.

Types of revenue (within
the scope of HKFRS 15)
WA (FEMBRE

155 EBE M)

4. BEEESTTHE (#)

RESHERBWE (&

T 2 4930 7 2 ) 5 5 S ) 4B B 22 7 ) M6 AR
1875 8 B 7 R S5 R B 51558 AR o

Accounting policy under HKFRS 15

FEEVBREENEISSH THEBR

Artiste management fee income

Hotel room income
BIE R RE B A

Food and beverage income

EHRIA
Entrance fee income
AZE IR A

Event income

AEUA

Films production and licensing
income

BYRIEREHFUA

Artiste management fee income are recognised on a net basis (i.e. the
amount entitled by the Group rather than the total consideration set
out in the related contracts as the Group concluded that it is merely
acting as an agent) as a performance obligation satisfied over time
as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs.
EEERBWADNDRFEAERR (MAEEAHESN SR M3k
HEaNmMENARE BARASEHE SEEEEIRE) BARE
WMEER—BRERANER MAKERBROR EFRBKREZAR
SEBENREBNE -

Hotel room income is recognised over time during the period of stay
for the hotel guest.
BEEERARBEAAT R —BREMAER-

Food and beverage income is recognised when control of the goods

has transferred, being at the point the customer purchases the goods
at restaurant.

EHRRARERNERIREERER IXFPREBEEEE MR -

Entrance fee income is recognised when the tickets are accepted and
surrendered by the customer.
ANGERFIRERPEMIE REER -

Event income is recognised as a performance obligation satisfied
over time as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs.

EBHRARBHEER —RERNEEKEER BRAEEEOR -
ERPRARKREZAAEEBORENN G-

Income derived from the production and distribution of films, when
the production is completed and the film is released, the film has
been distributed to the cinema circuit and the amount can be
measured reliably, which is generally when the cinema circuit confirms
to the Group its share of box receipts.
ERAERETEENRARTANBEREZETEEYRGA S
RIS ER (—RAEXEGMASRERRDEZFE WG 2 ) R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

Types of revenue (within
the scope of HKFRS 15)
g (FENBRE
FHIE15GREBEA)

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

4., BEESTTHE (&)

RESHERNWE (&)

Accounting policy under HKFRS 15

FEVBREENE 1SS THEBR

Sales of travel related products

5 & Ik 2 AR BE 2 o

Sales of goods

HEEMm

Ancillary services

RER®

Income derived from the licensing of the distribution and broadcasting
rights over films, when the Group’s entitlement to such payments
has been established which, subject to the terms of the relevant
agreements, is usually upon delivery of the film negatives to the
customers.
HAESTYETRNMEEREENBRARASEZEZSERIBEHNET
géxzﬂ% (BRFHEBRERME —BRANBEPRINEZER 2K)
o

Sales of travel related products is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being at the point the customer purchases the
travel related products.
HEREEEERNRERNETRERRRER NEFPBEEIRERH
E AR 2o

Sales of goods is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred to the customer, being at the point the goods are
delivered to the customer.
HEEMREMNEHEERZEEPE®RR NERRXN TEFOE
Bk

Ancillary service income is recognised when a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs.

RERBUARBOETN —BRERAANBEKNKER RAEEELD
BOEPRREIMEZANEBBEAORMON -

Types of revenue (outside
the scope of HKFRS 15)
Wi (FEMBRE
R FE155REE )

Accounting policy

Wi BE

Rental income from operating leases

REBPENHESWA

Rental income under operating leases is recognised over the lease
term. Contingent rentals are recognised on the accounting period
when they are incurred.
REHENELBAEHEPAER A HSEEEN ST AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=-Z=ZF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Lease
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising
from business combinations on or after the
date of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components
of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components, including contract
for acquisition of ownership interests of a property
which includes both leasehold land and non-lease
building components, unless such allocation cannot
be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient
not to separate non-lease components from
lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received,;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term, upon exercising purchase options, the cost
of the relevant right-of-use assets and the related
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss are
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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4.

188 ;N_(}ﬁ’onal Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limi

¢

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 97)
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost
of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset. Other than investment properties
measured under fair value model, such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of
the Group’s interests in associates/joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes
a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or
joint arrangements that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grant will be received.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Retirement benefit costs and employee
benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans. The Group
operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries or the maximum
mandatory contribution as required by the MPF
Scheme and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior
to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contribution to the MPF Scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries
which operate in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), except Hong Kong, are required to
participate in the employee retirement scheme
operated by the relevant local government bureau
in the PRC and to make contributions for their
eligible employees. The contributions payable by
the subsidiaries are calculated based on a certain
percentage of the salaries and wages of those
eligible employees and are recognised as an
expense during the period to which they relate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Retirement benefit costs and employee
benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period in which
the employees render the related service. Short-
term employee benefits are recognised in the year
when the employees render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based employee compensation
Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments
transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

BEESIHEK (&)

BARBEFRERESEN (Z)

5 R 8 75 7

RHES R R AR B REMEBERSE
MEERESHARE+ @A U2 BN
MEBRAM (BEBBEMERI) - BHMEERAHN
RNEBRHAERENFEANER -

BEZAFHRNBINEEEZHER K
SEMESRBERE A LREREmES
MEBRNETRERFEDRE-

FRFAMHEHFR(MEREER) N HRE
7T THER -

RERL 18 7

B AR R R A R BT e BUS IR L R S8 A0
R AR B RS R X BB AR EAK A
B (AR ERE) HR -

CARR 63 B 2 2 0 R S ER BN

KRG BERZ

NESEE BN TR S

BETRE 2B E
m1{E B R EOURS 2 B b A T EH A9 A
REFEZBRONRZERTAREL B Y

fm
Z AR E &

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR

193



194

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based employee compensation
(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments
transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve. For shares options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of
the share options granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share capital and share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

When shares granted are vested, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share capital and share premium.

Shares granted to non-employees

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
with parties other than employees are measured
at the fair value of the goods or services received,
except where that fair value cannot be estimated
reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted, measured
at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values of
the goods or services received are recognised as
expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit/(loss)
before taxation” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

4.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale, except for freehold land, which is
always presumed to be recovered entirely through
sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at
initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, hotel properties and
film studio, are stated at acquisition cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ=Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. BEESTTEHE#)

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and
building

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the lease term

Buildings Over the shorter of the
lease term or 31/3%

Hotel properties Over the lease term

Film studio Over the lease term

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the
lease term or 20%

Furniture, fixtures and office 20%

equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht ~ 20%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets other
than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible
assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=-Z=ZF+-A=+—HILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-
generating unit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the assets of the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Film products

Film products are completed films produced
by the Group. Film products, are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation of film
products is calculated at rates sufficient to write
off their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal useful lives are one to three years.

Film production in progress

Film production in progress is stated at cost less
any impairment losses. Costs include all direct
costs associated with the production of films such
as direct labour costs, cost of services, facilities
and raw materials consumed in the creation of a
film. Upon completion, these films under production
are reclassified as film products. Film production in
progress is accounted for on a film-by-film basis.
Impairment losses are made for costs which are in
excess of the expected future revenue generated
by these films.

Investments in films/dramas production

Investments in film/drama production are stated
initially at cost and adjusted thereafter for the net
income derived from the investments less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs, including an appropriate
portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses,
are determined by the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ=Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement
of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses and measures loss allowance
for ECL on its financial assets which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (including
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits,
amount due from a joint venture, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month
ECL (“12m ECL”") represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables without significant financing
component. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances
and/or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ=Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE

4. BEESTHE (#)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. In particular, the following
information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument
has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has
a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate
to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ=Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. BEESTTEHE#)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq) &RTH (&)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TREERE(£)
(iy  Definition of default iy BHERE

The Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the past due
ageing analysis basis:

° Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables,
other payables and accruals, bank overdrafts,
loan from shareholders, bonds, promissory note
and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible loan
notes are classified separately as financial liability
and equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
A conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component (including any embedded non-equity
derivatives features) is estimated by measuring the
fair value of similar liability that does not have an
associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound
instrument as a whole. This is recognised and
included in equity, net of income tax effects, and
is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in
equity until the conversion option is exercised, in
which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date
of the convertible note, the balance recognised in
equity will be transferred to accumulated losses.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible loan notes are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to
the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged
directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible loan notes using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When an existing financial liability is renegotiated
in such a way that the liability is extinguished
fully or partially by issuing equity instruments,
it is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and a recognition of equity
instrument at the fair value upon issue with the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability (or part of the financial liability)
extinguished and the consideration paid (being
the fair value of the equity instruments issued),
recognised to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., BEEGTTHEE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties FAESE S
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: i — 77 8 TH1E 5 - IR & B & B 5 RA s -
(i)  the party is a person or a close member of () ZAR—BALTH—BALTZER M
that person’s family and that person, ZAANT
(@) has controls or joint control over the (a) EHIHERZEHAER:
Group;
(o)  has significant influence over the Group; b) HAEBHEEAFE X
or
(c) is a member of the key management () AREAEEFIAEEHRAFZEE
personnel of the Group or of a parent of BEEKE K

the Group; or

(i) the party is an entity where any of the iy ZARFTE NIMEAIRGNESE:
following conditions applies:

(@) the entity and the Group are members () ZEROAAEEBR -—S£BEZX
of the same group; SN

(b) one entity is an associate or joint by —HEEARSEB(XE—%
venture of the other entity (or of a B S/NIST N == RN T A - )
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of BAR)MEBERRRAERE:
the other entity);

(c) the entity and the Group are joint ) EREAEEHAER—F=F2Z
ventures of the same third party; AERE:

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a ) —HEBAF="FEEzE&ZD
third entity and the other entity is an X ME—EBEBRZE=-HERE
associate of the third entity; 2 /NCIE

(e) the entity is a post-employment benefit () EBRAASENEAEEAEHH
plan for the benefit of employees of ZE%Q‘EE‘?E(EA?U*“ZZ%H&%E
either the Group or an entity related to T2
the Group;

()  the entity is controlled or jointly (H EBI0)ATHA A TR 5
controlled by a person identified in (i); =

(@) a person identified in (i)(a) has significant (@ ) a)Fra% E'J/\iﬂ?i BHEKX
influence over the entity or is a member ?Z%E NIBZES (KZEBL
of the key management personnel of the SN D) E%EEEEX% =17
entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(h)  the entity, or any number of a group (h REAEEXAEBETAFREE
of which it is a part, provides key CEEENERSNEBSEMN
management personnel services to the BHEBEOERIKE QT

Group or to the presents of the Group.

iy,

*« ", s*‘x
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influence by, that person in their dealing with
the entity.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management and bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use. Bank overdrafts
are shown in current liabilities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 4, the
directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimates are revised if the revisions
affect only that period, or in the period of the
revisions and future periods if the revisions affect
both current and future periods.

4.

BEESIHEK (&)

BABESs (42)

—AATZAHREEZERR
TEIANLTRIIZAL

ReRrBeXEER

mEeBHenERMs BekBReHER
BERFRARSMEMFT BAR KA
ZEARNERAERERSCNBERS
AEEEHRABRRZEHSERPUERE
(ARERERYBRAKTERSEERR
TEXZHEKED) °

ERAMBIMRRME RekREEER
BERLERGBEZFEARRITHES (8
BREMEFIONREERARSAUZEE-
RITEXNARBRERZS -

FTEREFHE R TEE
Mz EFERIR

MM T4 2 AR B 5 B BIZF -
ARREEAHRENEMEEHFAELZ
BENMABREEFLHE Gt RERR-
ZEMHET RAABRR I RBEEERR KA
REACEMRARFEL BERERRSEZ
FERhF AR -

BEEEeHZRSHAMEERRSELTR
Ao HEAHETENR SETEE
SRR EELERTHRE BERT @5 A5
SEZHRER BETFEIRITETH
B A R R R AR - AR TTE AT iR A R
R HA R FE AR

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=-Z=ZF+-A=+—HILFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate
ECL for the trade receivables. The provision rates
are based on last due aging as groupings of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns.
The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered.
In addition, trade receivables with significant
balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in notes
7(b) and 25 respectively.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed
for impairment whenever events or change in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount
has been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs of
disposal calculations. The calculations require the
use of judgements and estimates.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual Report 2020

FEETHERETTEE
M2 EEBRIR (&

st FEE 2 EERIE

TXARBEMRRAEAAEE T @YK
FEEENABREAEAFERFHEMER
KEBONEITEEIXEMEFHTEEREZ M
TERR-

EWE 5 E A R E BE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area
of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions
in the cash flow projections, could affect the net
present value used in the impairment test and as
a result affect the Group’s financial position and
results of operations.

During the year, impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment recognised in profit or loss
amounted to approximately HK$372,110,000. The
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2020 was HK$545,148,000
(2019: HK$908,268,000 (see note 18).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
total debt (which includes trade payables, other
payables and accruals, bank overdrafts, loans from
shareholders, borrowings, lease liabilities, bonds,
convertible bonds and promissory notes) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company (comprising
issued share capital and reserves).

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements.

FEETHERETTEE
M2 EEBRIR (&

ME- -BERRBZBE(Z)

BIEEAMEEREFL HE - LE 2

EWE R EMH: ()T E £ 5 (DA A ER
HERAEFABEMETNRSE) RS
EUYHEEREE: Mi/FEREREE
BFANEEIERR BRZSEHERE
ERARSAEENERUR -EEEFTHRE
BFEAMRK (BRERSREBA AN
REFHERBRR)EEEL AJrap s
BENRTANFRE By EREED
B RS AR R s 4t o

FR RBHEERZDE BEREREHER
EE#E 4 A372,110,0008 T - R_E-F
E+-A=Z+-—"HB VE BERRED
85 T 8 45545,148,00008 T (=8 — L&
908,268,000/ 7t) (RHIFE18) °

EXRERERE

AEEERLEAURRAEE N T E B
WEEE - BB B R R T
DA 28 T 4 4 98 1 58 L 9 - 7 2 [ e B 9
A F KR A R D -

AEEMEAGEEHRER (BERENES
R HtEAFRAREER  RITEX
BREX BX HEEE EF TBRERE
FRARER) RARBERE ANEEELZ (2
EEBITRARGER) AKX -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBEmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.
(Continued)

Gearing ratio

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buybacks as well as the
issue of new debt.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period
was as follows:

BEXRRMRER (&)

EXEfALLE

ARREETHRUMEAEB -EREHNDH
—#WY EFTEEEEARARELEREAR
HENRR REEENEZZ A5SEHEA
B SRR BT AR B 1T R AR A [ B DA R B
THEBTEOEERREERERE-

RBEHRRNERBELRMNT

Total debts BIETE
Total assets wEE
Gearing ratio BEARBREEE

2020 2019

=S =TIl T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
(restated)

(K&E3)

1,423,142 2,353,983
1,108,355 1,633,392
128% 154%




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. €M I A

() &RIASE

(a) Categories of financial instruments

2020
—E-FF
HK$’000
FHETT
Financial assets SRS E
Long-term receivables = HA FE R IR 88,808 111,187
Pledged bank deposits BEEFIRITER 2,377 2,229
Trade receivables B E 5 % IE 5,556 75,184
Deposits and other receivables & K E At fE W T8 21,483 37,671
Amount due from a joint venture B —E A & ERE 2,414 2,414
Cash and bank balances He MIRITH % 12,601 3,667
Financial assets at amortised cost RBER AR B E 133,239 232,352
Financial liabilities SRHARE
Amortised cost HER A
Trade payables JETE S HIA 38,604 36,072
Other payables and accruals HEuENRIERETER 189,842 196,909
Bank overdrafts RITBEX - 5,778
Loans from shareholders REE R 90,023 589,457
Borrowings B 154,560 227,040
Bonds BEFH - 1,153,283
Promissory notes A E R 48,463 115,197
Convertible bonds AR & 5 866,016 -
1,387,508 2,323,736
BHEREYCEEBERA Al —E-_TFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=-Z=ZF+-A=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial
risks which result from its operating, investing
and financing activities. The Group’s major
financial instruments include long-term
receivables, pledged bank deposits, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables,
amount due from a joint venture cash
and bank balances, trade payables, other
payables and accruals, bank overdrafts,
loans from shareholders, borrowings, bonds,
convertible bonds, and promissory note.
Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
and the policies applied by the Group to
mitigate these risks are set out below.
The directors manage and monitor these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.

There has been no change to the types of
the Group’s exposure in respect of financial
instruments or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks.

Market risks

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Several subsidiaries
of the Group have foreign currency sales and
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Certain trade receivables and
payables of the Group are denominated in
either Renminbi (“RMB”) or United States
Dollars (“US$”). The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy as the
Directors considered that the volatility of the
exchange rates between HK$, RMB and US$
is limited. However, the Directors monitor the
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

/.

TRMIA®)
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=
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ZEPERER AEENETESHT A
BRERBARRKZE 2 EKBETFER
JEWE S FRIE e R EMERFRIE
et ERE Re RBRITEK
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AMBRESFRALEE RS2 T A
AIBEREMERE - TXHEHIHEZE S
BMTAEHEORAREAEERARK
ZERBOBR EFEENEEZS
B ARREERE SO REUE S
i

ARBEENSRTIARBBERKE
BErEEFMARRN T AL EEE-
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NN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The interest rates and terms of
repayment of the bank overdraft, loans from
shareholders, borrowings, bonds, convertible
bond and promissory notes which are subject
to fixed interest rates are disclosed in notes
28, 31, 32, 34, 35 and 36 respectively. The
Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy, however, the Directors
monitor interest rate change exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate
change exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of each reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting
periods were outstanding for the whole of
each of the reporting periods. A 50 basis
points increase or decrease in the market
rates is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss
for the year ended 31 December 2020
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$5,795,000 (2019: approximately
HK$11,000,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to variable interest
rates on bank balances and bank overdrafts.

/.

SRIA®)

(b) MEBEKREZEFEEBER (&)

T 2 B

MERBRSMNEMTAEANRALBERIR
SRERMBSANEREHMHR LN
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EXERFXREPAK TEREFE
BEEHPEANEEFHAR -
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BT E AEAHE T _ZTF
T+ A=+ ALFEZREEEB
# @ #5,795,0008 T (= F
— JLEE 1 911,000,000 7T) - = E B
RAEERBITEHRRRITESZNE
2 AT R R R e

REXEEBERR T —T-_ZFR

221
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ=Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. ERITE#)
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument would
fail to discharge its obligation under the
terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. To minimise
the credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals. Before accepting
any new customer, the Group uses an
internal credit scoring system to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring
attributed to customers are reviewed twice a
year. Other monitoring procedures are in place
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on trade balances individually. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

(b) MBEBREEEFEEBER (&)

§

S
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS /.
(Continued)

$RMITH (%)

(b) MEBEKREZEFEEBER (&)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers (Continued)

Credit risk is concentrated as 29% (2019:
17%) of the total trade receivables are due
from the Group’s largest customer within
film studio operation segment (2019: film
studio operation segment). However, the
management of the Group closely monitors
the progress of collecting the payments
from the customers and reviews the overdue
balances regularly. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

Bank balances and pledged bank
deposits

Majority of the Group’s bank balances are
deposited with banks in Hong Kong and the
PRC and the Group has limited the exposure
to any single financial institution. The credit
risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good credit-
rating.

Collateral held as security and other
credit enhancements

The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. ®BIA®)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management (b) HBEMEEEEHEBR (£
objectives and policies (Continued)
Impairment of trade receivables JEW B 5 5L EE 16
During the year ended 31 December 2020, REBEE_ZT-_ETF+-_A=+—AL
the Group provided impairment allowance of FE - AESEREBEAEHRNERE S
HK$91,068,000 (2019: HK$88,806,000) for FRIE 0 51 4291,068,0008 T (=T — A,
trade receivables with significant balances. 4 1 88,806,000 7T ) H J5k (B 4 -
The following table shows the movement TERAFAFEEE S FE RZFA (L
in lifetime ECL that has been recognised o BERNTEREREERENE
for trade receivables under the simplified go
approach.
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

FEUEYE GEHNED
FEBE EEBE
(E\HREE (LHREE

H1E) VERED) mEr

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHET THET

As at 1 January 2019 RZE—h&—A—H 6,982 = 6,982

Impairment losses recognised BRRBEERE 6,768 82,038 88,806
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE

1 January 2020 +-A=+—8Hk

—Z-FF—A—H 18,750 82,038 95,788

Impairment losses recognised ERRBEERE 4,354 86,714 91,068

Impairment losses reversed BEEBRERE (18,750) - (13,750)
As at 31 December 2020 R-BZEE

+=ZA=+-—H 4,354 168,752 173,106
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the
Group will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities. In the
management of liquidity risk, the directors
monitor and maintain a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance
the Group’s operations and to meet its
debt obligations as they fall due. The Group
finances its working capital requirements
mainly by the funds obtained from the
issuance of equity instruments.

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. ®®ITH (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management (b) HBEMEREBERER (£)
objectives and policies (Continueqd)
Impairment of other receivables and Bt JE WA BRI E 2.2 E
investrment deposits
During the year ended 31 December 2020, REBEEZ_T_FTF+_A=+—8HL
the Group provided impairment allowance of FE - AEEREBEAEHRNERE S
HK$64,616,000 (2019: HK$44,914,000) for FIE 5T 1264,616,0008 T ( —ZE— N
trade receivables with significant balances. £ :44,914,0008 70 ) B R (B B -
The following table shows the movement in TREAAREMELFBER T E RS
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for RIBEEE ERBANGFEHBEHEE
other receivables and investment deposits EEREE -
receivables under the simplified approach.
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
FRAEY FREAEY
EEBE FEEE
(ELREE ([HREE
B {E) W) wit
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL THT
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—F—H 7,792 = 7,792
Impairment losses recognised ERRREEE 28760 16,154 44,914
Exchange adjustments PE 5 & 776 - 776
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE—NF
1 January 2020 +—A=+—8kK
—E-TF—H—H 37,328 16,154 53,482
Impairment losses recognised BERRBESE 25,508 39,108 64,616
Exchange adjustments ME 5 A 1,079 - 1,079
As at 31 December 2020 A
+=-A=+—H 63,915 55,262 119,177
Liquidity risk management B & 28 i B

mBESRBRS R AKEE ) ETHE
HeMBEEHENEENER - BEER
PETRARE EXERRERFASR
BEEEHEEREUARAEBEEIR
HESRREBIAEETEREE
Bk o REB T EUHITERT AN
BESREHZEESTE-

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. ®mIEA (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management (b) MBEREEBFEHEBR (&
objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk management (Continued) BB EREE (&)

At the reporting date, the maturity profile
of the Group’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments and
the earliest date in which the entity can be
required to pay were set out below.

RiRER - $%@%%ﬂ%1ﬁ? B K ARBh
BNRRER ?T?ﬁxiﬁﬁfxa’ﬂa
HE D EH ’\ﬁ AEIIR T o

Liquidity tables MBES X
TREAEEFITESBRAENT
BANFH ZERBHIESMEER
BREBRSRERALEESRETHER
DEGIEE i B

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal TEAEMNERASESRE 3 TH
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows BEEME RAMReBHEARSHR
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is BAMMISMNEFESL -

derived from market interest rates prevailing

at the end of the reporting period.

More than
Weighted  On demand 1 year but Total
average or within less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years 5years  cash flows amounts

mE REXR SR-% RERRE
FhHHE —Eh  BOREF SREF  REHE REE
% HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR F#n FER FER TR

At 31 December 2020 RZF-%§

+ZRA=+-H
Non-derivative financial FELHAR
liabilities
Trade and other payables ENESTEREMER
and accruals FEUREHER - 168,282 60,382 228,664 228,664
Loans from shareholders REER 6.92 22,266 73,354 95,620 90,023
Borrowings BH 7.95 135,806 50,443 186,249 154,560
Convertible bonds THERES 9.85 - 1,307,267 1,307,267 866,016
Promissory note RARE 4,08 14,686 36,428 51,114 48,463
Lease liabilities HEERE 11.07 6,260 18,827 116,410 35,416

347,300 1,546,701 91,323 1,085,324 1,423,142

iy,

NN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-F=+—HLFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. *MIA %)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management (b) HBEMGEEBERBEK (£

objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk management (Continued) HEELE R EFE (&)

Liquidity tables (Continued) RBELRK (&)
More than
Weighted ~ On demand 1 year but Total
average or within less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
i REXE SR-E FERRE
THHE —FR  ESRIEF £k k£t REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TARL TAL TER TARL
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE
+-A=t-H
Non-derivative financial HITESRERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables EREHHBREMER
and accruals HBLA R R B - 233,465 - - 233,465 233,465
Bank overdraft RIER - 5,778 - - 5,778 5,178
Loans from shareholders RERER 9.40 617,088 = = 617,088 580,457
Borrowings B 10.32 239,834 10,645 - 250,479 227,040
Bonds E% 12.86 938,865 355,575 195,345 1,489,785 1,163,283
Promissory note ALRR 8 115,197 - - 115,197 115,197
Lease liabilties HERR 8 15,776 10,202 83,433 109,411 29,763
2,166,003 376,422 278,778 2,821,203 2,353,983
BEEREVILERBERA 71 ZT_TFH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. @I A (&)

(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements (c) AR{EFE
Fair value measurements recognised in RIS BEMRIRAERZ 27
the consolidated statement of financial EitE
position
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial RZEB_ZTFERZZT-NE+TA
instruments carried at amortised cost were =+—B RNEEUEHEKRINEZ S
not materially different from their fair values MIAMNKEEHEREAAABETESK
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 except for Z2 - HETIERIARIN HLESH
the following financial instruments, for which TAZEEE ARrERAABEERE
their carrying amounts and fair value and BT
the level of fair value hierarchy are disclosed
below:

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2020 categorised into
R-B-BE+ZA=+-0H
AREFESEBUTESR

Carrying

amounts at Fair value at

31 December 31 December
2020 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

R-F-%E R-B-¥E

+ZA=+-B +Z-A=+-H
B AR E HARE -4 =8 £
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TET TER

Convertible bonds aRES 866,016 884,242 = - 884,242




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-F=+—HLFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. EmIEA (&)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurements (Continued) (c) AR{EFE(Z&
Fair value measurements recognised in RIS BEMRIERAERZ 27
the consolidated statement of financial EitE (&)
position (Continued)
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2019 categorised into
RZE-hE+-A=+-8H
DRBEHENBAUTER
Carrying
amounts at Fair value at
31 December 31 December
2019 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZZ-NE  RIZ-NF
+ZA=+-R +ZA=f-R
MEEE MRAE E—R E-H E=M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT TR FET TR
Convertible bonds AR ES - - - - -
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level FE=RAREFEMEAOGEERN
3 fair value measurements I g A\ Bg
The fair value of the convertible bonds is AIRBREFH AL BEEFTARKES
estimated as being the present values of mERRE ZER RSB R ET K
future cash flows, discounted at interest HEHGHFERNEHANETEES
rates based on the government vyield curve EZBR UWHAEEB N EERRE
as at the end of the reporting period plus an A
adequate constant credit spread, adjusted for
the Group’s own credit risk.
During the years ended 31 December 2020 HE_T-_TFR=_FT—-—NLF+ZA
and 2019, there were no transfers of fair value =+ —HIEFE F—HREE_HHE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 WHRAREFEZEE  TEERTRK
and no transfers into or out of Level 3. EEHE=R-
BHEREYCEEBERA Al —E-_TFR
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AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

8. REVENUE

Revenue derived from the Group’s principal

8. WA

activities recognised during the year is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of
HKFRS 15, disaggregated by
major products or services lines:
Artiste management fee income
Hotel room income
Food and beverage income
Films production and licensing income
Entrance fee income
Events income
Sales of travel related products
Sales of goods
Ancillary services
Consultation income

Interest revenue that reflects significant
financing granted to customers
Rental income

Timing of revenue recognition:
At a point of time
Over time

FREMBREERE1550

BEAMHNERSOWE

BRERERYBBRES:

BAEEBRA
BIEEEBA
HEHRUA
ERRERFEFRA
AZERA
EEILON

SHE IR AR EM
EmiHE

FL & IR 7%

A

REETFEFPHNERNBERN

B UMA

HEe WA

W 205 5 52 B [

1 2 18 B 5 26
ff@ o Eﬁ E:—\tr FlEﬁ

FAERRBEARNEEEIEEBHRANT

2020 2019
ZECTF Eeayiid
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#IT FHET
58 34
11,820 13,743
11,483 24,620
567 -
5,023 11,571
23 64,172

386 5,255
135 2,662
851 12,675

- 1,187
30,346 135,919
= 4,608
8,837 41,565
39,183 182,092
17,027 51,858
13,319 84,061
30,346 135,919

230 ;N_(}ﬁ’onal Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limi
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-F=+—HLFE

8. REVENUE (continuea) 8. WA (&)

SHFEFSHWE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-F-BE+-A=+-HILEE

Film production

and distribution,
sales of travel

related products,

artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
Segments coordination operation operation
ENRER
BT HERE
HHER &8
EBREDGES FEmEE BeHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TER TER
Types of goods or service ERBRBERN
Artiste management fee income HEEBBHA 58 - - 58
Hotel room income EEEERA - - 11,820 11,820
Food and beverage income 3 ON - - 11,483 11,483
Films production and B RER TR
licensing income 567 - - 567
Entrance fee income AZBIWA - 5,023 - 5,023
Events income EEILON - 23 - 23
Sales of travel related products HEREEBER 386 - - 386
Sales of goods HEEM - 135 - 135
Ancillary services RERS - - 851 851
Consultation income EEILON - - = =
1,011 5,181 24,154 30,346
Geographical markets WETIE
PRC i - 5,181 24,154 29,335
Hong Kong 55 1,011 - - 1,011
1,011 5,181 24,154 30,346
Timing of revenue recognition W3S FE R BB
At a point in time A (A B R 26 386 5,158 11,483 17,027
Over time KB 625 23 12,671 13,319
1,011 5,181 24,154 30,346
BEEREVILERBERA 71 ZT_TFH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

8. REVENUE (continuea) 8. WA (&)

SHFERSHWE (&

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-Z-NE+-A=+-HLEE

Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,

artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
Segments coordination operation operation Total
EFRER
BT HERE
EBER 2B
ok EEREDGRE FHBEE BEEE BEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL THT THL TRL
Types of goods or service ERBRBERN
Artiste management fee income HEERBENA 34 - - 34
Hotel room income BEEEKRA - = 13,743 13,743
Food and beverage income 5 ON - - 24,620 24,620
Entrance fee income N-CON - 11,571 - 11,571
Events income EEMA - 64,172 - 64,172
Sales of travel related products HEREEEER 5,255 = = 5,253
Sales of goods HEER - 2,662 - 2,662
Ancillary services RERS - 10,212 2,463 12,675
Consultation income EA 1 ON - 1,187 - 1,187
5,289 89,804 40,826 135,919
Geographical markets HE TG
PRC FE = 89,804 40,826 130,630
Hong Kong ) 5,289 - - 5,289
5,289 89,804 40,826 135,919
Timing of revenue recognition W3S FE B EY B
At a point in time P (IR £ 26 5,255 21,783 24,620 51,658
Over time R—REE 34 67,821 16,206 84,061
5,289 89,804 40,826 135,919




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-F=+—HLFE

REVENUE (continueq)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue
from contracts with customers with the amounts
disclosed in the segment information.

Segments

Reportable segment revenue THEFBKA
Rental income BeWA

Revenue from contracts BRSNS
with customers

8.

Film production
and distribution
sales of travel

WA &)
SHRERSHWS (&

TXIHEFPANKRAESHBENKENS
B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
§E-B-BE+-A=t-HLEE

related products,

artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation
ERHER
BT SHERE
HRER 88
EEREDRE HENEE IR BeH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TERT r THET
1,011 5,181 24,154 30,346
- 8,837 - 8,837
1,011 14,018 24,154 39,183

Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-NF+-A=+-ALL5EE

artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
Segments coordination operation operation Total
BERRER
BT HEKE
HHER B8
ok ERREHRE FRMEE RS BeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT THT FTET
Reportable segment revenue AREDBBA 5,289 89,804 41,285 136,378
Inter-segment revenue ASEEBA = = (459) (459)
Interest revenue that reflects REEFTEFPHNEARE
significant financing granted B F A
to customers - 4,608 - 4,608
Rental income R ON = 41,565 = 41,565
Revenue from contracts RPEHME
with customers 5,289 135,977 40,826 182,092

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

N7 2 Z
9. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 9. Hitk A R FW =
NET GAIN
2020 2019
kb ol T N
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Bank interest income RITH B WA 1 29
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE BEMEBEKE
plant and equipment 1,578 =
Government grant (Note) BT A Rh (BT EE) 6,525 =
Other interest income H b A B A - 6,148
Others HAt 3,521 8,481
11,625 14,658
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the M 82T _TF+_A=+—RHILFE"
Group recognised COVID-19-related government 7N 5 B i R A R % 15 A8 B A BUT
grants of approximately HK$5,689,000 related to AL 9B AE B R RITTBUR B R IR R 5E
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong ¥ERBENEESE NRENHELY
Kong Special Administrative Region Government 5,689,0007% 7T + LA K A BE IS AT 3% BB Bt 3
under the Anti-Epidemic Fund and the grants of 1R B %8 Bk £9836,000/% 7T » Y ER 3% & # B I
approximately HK$836,000 is provided by the PRC ERERMNGGREMMHIAETIE

government as supplement securing subsidiaries.
There are no unfulfilled conditions and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of those

subsidiaries.
2020
—E-FTF
HK$’000
FHET
Other losses Hihg58
Impairment losses of investments B/ BEREREZ
in films/dramas production BEEE - 986

ional Arts Enterrainmenf'
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

10. €M E ERERE

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF

11.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

2020 2019
—E-TE K3
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed), BRUATSE®R (#E)H
net on: VERIEN SEh -
— trade receivables —EWE S RIE 77,318 88,806
— other receivables — E b B W FRIE 64,616 45,690
141,934 134,496
SEGMENT INFORMATION 11. 2 EER

The Group manages its businesses by business
lines. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management, being the
chief operating decision maker (‘CODM”), for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the Group is currently organised into
three operating segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

— Production and distribution
of films, sales of travel
related products, provision
of travel related products,
provision of management
services to artistes and
event coordination

— Operation of film studio

— Operation of hotel

Films production and
distribution, sales
of travel related
products, artiste
management and
event coordination

Film studio operation
Hotel operation

Segment information about the Group’s reportable
segments is presented below.

AEEREBENEEEXH -RUERD
REERAFEENAAEEZSETRE
BAB(MEXTBELLRRE ([TERERK
FDETABEMREN BT AKE
BOoR=—EREN M - AKEY HEKLED
MAEGH AEK TSI 2Hm D B -

BEXRERET —BERBTER EH
5 & IR 2 40 B IRERBER [ZA
Em BATE RHEEERBELE
MEBSE nE

FRPBELE —REZHW

B R R —RREBIE

ERAKEA 2RO D BEHMZINWT -

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION 1. 2EER (&)
(Continued)
Segment revenues and results FEBUIN LR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue T AZAIZHDFE DM AREBIKRA RE
and results by reportable segments: BT

Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,

artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation
EVRER
BT HERE
HHER BA
EEREDGE pEnEE EEEE BeE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET TET TET
Year ended 31 December 2020 BZ-3-88
+ZR=t+-HLEE
Revenue from external customers RENREPEMA 5,945 9,084 24,154 39,183
Reportable segment revenue TEEFBRA 5,945 9,084 24,154 39,183
Segrment result e (29,688) (388,764) (48,631) (467,083)
Other income Ef A 11,625
Net exchange gain EHNEFE 50,564
Unallocated corporate gain KARDANE 598,666
Finance costs BEMKK (150,281)
Profit before taxation BB A 43,491

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Gr
’
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-F=+—HLFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

1. 2 EER ()

(Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) SEBUT N R LR (2
Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel Inter-segment
coordination operation operation glimination Total
EYAER
BT HERE
RAER EA
ERREDSE FRALE BEGE A PEEH #eH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx TR Thx TR ThR
Year ended 31 December 2019, BE-%-NEt-R=1-8
restated LR (EE3))
Revenue from external customers RENREFHRA 5,289 135,978 40,826 - 182,003
Inter-segment revenue AHERA - - 459 (459) =
Reportable segment revenue TERAPUA 5,289 135,978 41,285 (459) 182,093
Segment result PREE (26,245) (211,038) (55,692) - (292,975)
Other income A 14,658
Net exchange losses EHEBTE (17,791)
Unallocated corporate expenses AARAARR (20,933)
Provision for restructuring cost ERMAEE (43,776)
Finance costs HERA (244,425)
Loss before taxation BHAEE (605,242)

Revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers and inter-
segment sales during both years.

Segment result represents the loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs including directors’ salaries,
gain on financial restructuring, other income,
finance costs and income tax expense. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.

EREBOWAEMBEFEAREIATS
HRA R 7 BB Y $H 4 o

DEHMEERSOMEENER ETLED
FRRTHRA (BREEHE MBEA
Was HMWA BEXARMAFHRMAS) -
WTIRPEERRTEDBRAMNMEEL
BRRERSOFEND X

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

#
/ ,/

y
/

/4

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

1. 2 EER ()

Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,

SEHEERER

artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation

BEYRER

BT HERE

HEER EA
BEREDGE 2R EEEE BeH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET

At 31 December 2020 R-B-%%E
+ZA=t-H

Reportable segment assets ~ TE2HPBEE 8,620 699,126 310,002 1,017,747
Property, plant and equipment ER G 14
Cash and cash equivalents HeRReEERS 12,601
Unallocated corporation assets ~ KAEAAEE 77,993
Consolidated assets GABE 1,108,355
Reportable segment liabilities T 2 #1486 & (11,556) (31,675) (146,415) (189,646)
Loans from shareholder REER (90,023)
Borrowings S (154,560)
Convertible bonds ARES (866,016)
Promissory notes ELER (48,463)
Income tax payables ERFER (2,951)
Unallocated corporate liabilties AP E A EE (74,434)
Consolidated liabilities GaafR (1,426,093)

o, e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

—ECEE+-A=t+—HILEE

1. 7 &ER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) DHEERERE (£)
Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
EYRER
BT HERE
HBER -EA
ERAREDSE 2 BELE BeR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FAL TAR TAL
At 31 December 2019 (restated) R=F-NE
+ZA=t-H(E&7)
Reportable segment assets JEHPBEE 11,383 1,188,066 332,048 1,531,497
Property, plant and equipment ER G 14
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBE&EEER 273
Unallocated corporation assets ~ KAEAAEE 1,608
Consolidated assets GAEE 1,533,392
Reportable segment liabilities o 23 48 & & (10,937) (135,858) (31,897) (178,692)
Loans from shareholder REER (689,457)
Borrowings CE S (227,040)
Bond &% (1,153 283)
Promissory notes ARER (115,197
Income tax payables ERFER 2, 951)
Unallocated corporate liabilties AP EAFEE (90,314)
Consolidated liabilities GaERE (2,356,934)
RELERBRAD —E-_ZTFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=-Z=ZF+-A=+—HILFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

11.

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between

DEER (&)

SEBUA R LG (F)

RERDBRAINOBHEASEER

segments:
- all assets are allocated to reportable — BRRBEEN FIEEESIREEST
segments other than corporate assets; and 2WHE &
- all liabilities are allocated to reportable — BRRFAGEN FIEEEENIREST
segments other than corporate liabilities. EWMHE -
Film production
and distribution,
sales of travel
related products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
EVRER
BT SR
HEER EA
BRESGE HRMEE EEEE Bew
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAR TAR TAR
At 31 December 2020 R-F-F&
+ZR=+-8
Depreciation of property, nE BERIETE
plant and equipment 8,043 19,783 31,787 59,613
Depreciation of right-of-use FRESENE
assets - 13,355 2,221 15,576
Impairment loss on property, n¥ BERREIEEE
plant and equipment - 372,110 - 372,110
Addition to non-current assets  FEREIAEE M - 17,715 11 17,726
At 31 December 2019 (restated) ~ RZ=F—fF
+ZA=+—-B(K=75)
Depreciation of property, nE BERIETE
plant and equipment 1,391 23,628 38,221 63,240
Depreciation of right-of-use FRELENE
assets 2,105 11,577 2,245 15,927
Amortisation of film products EYEMRH 1,210 - - 1,210
Impairment loss on property, nE BERREIEEE
plant and equipment - 93,627 - 93,627
Addition to non-current assets  FEREIAEE M 192 36,066 212 36,470

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Geographical information

All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets are
principally attributable to the PRC including Hong
Kong (being the place of domicile of the major
companies comprising the Group).

The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the contracts are negotiated
and entered with the customers. The total revenue
from external customers is mainly sourced from the
PRC.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customer contributing over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group is as follows:

. D EBE R (#)

AEBERMBRARFERBDEEHDTIERESD
FEARKMNB ([FE]) (BEEE) (AKX
SEETIERRMENMLE) -

EEME AR ERRESEERETAL
BRI E M o K B SN E S e @I E B R
SR

AAEEEFMEH

S 4 {6 7 4 B 40 A B 3B 1 0% H0 0 5 g A
W

2020 2019
ket 0l T NLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET

Customer A BEA 4,604' N/A T iE A2
Customer B EFB N/A FiEH 29,613'

1 Revenue from film studio operation. 1 2R AL N

2 The customer did not contribute over 10% or more 2 ZEPRZFELEGAEEBHBABR

to the Group’s total revenue in the year.

. FINANCE COSTS

10%38k A o

. AR E R

2020 2019

TECEE ik

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHETT FAET

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENR 5,425 2,287
Interest on bonds BEHF B 41,491 144,797
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESFFE 40,494 =
Interest on promissory note AHZERF S 1,566 8,720
Interest on loans from shareholders f& R E AT B 41,124 58,245
Interest on unsecured other borrowings H b S 3K 1R B A F) B 8,166 12,578
Interest on secured other borrowings E B ERERR A 10,784 16,441
Interest on secured bank borrowings B RITERFE 1,231 1,357
150,281 244,425

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ=Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE

13. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE 13.BRBiAIFIE (&E)
TAXATION
2020 2019
—EoTF EiayEes
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#HET FHET
(restated)
(=E5])
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived BREBAAE (BB BNk,
at after charging/(crediting): (5T A) F3FIE:
Amortisation of film products BEYEmEH - 1,210
Write-off of inventories recognised as WEERARINEE
expenses 1,566 545
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BEMEBINE
equipment 59,613 63,240
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15,918 15,927
Equity settled share-based-payments B TS B R ME AR BB
made to financial advisor (2019: B IHR(ZE—NF:
included in provision for restructuring cost) &+ A & 48 Ak A & ) 12,000 21,695
Impairment loss on property, M- WEREEREESE
plant and equipment 372,110 93,627
Net exchange (gain)/losses X (W) BEFE (50,564) 17,791
Employee benefit expenses EERMAX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BPEEEHe)
— Salaries, allowances and benefits -Fre EMREVREF
in kind 49,299 47,190
— Contributions to retirement — BRI R B R
benefits schemes 4,073 10,830
53,372 58,020
Other operating expenses Hih @R
Direct cost of operation on NTREZHEEENRN
— Film Studio — R 10,863 42,237
- Hotel —BIE 6,955 17,000
Marketing and advertising costs MizEERESER 1,320 16,668
Legal and professional fee FRENEEER 10,250 10,383
Utilities expenses NAEXER 4,311 4,327
Auditor’s remuneration % AN BN & 1,100 1,000
Expenses related to short-term lease EHAERKEEHERS
and low value lease 12 1,975
Gain on financial restructuring B E A W A
Carrying amount of liabilities settled RIBEEERFHEER
under the restructuring transaction BEMNEEE 2,062,119 =
Fair value of convertible bonds issued RIBEEER ZEITH
pursuant to the restructuring transaction AMRESFHARE (829,454) =
Fair value of new shares issued pursuant REFATHEITH
to the restructuring transaction MR E QR E (398,696) -
Transaction costs R SR (28,305) =

805,664 =
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13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

13.BBAIFE(EBE) (@)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE
TAXATION (Continuea)

The fair value of the convertible bonds is
determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the valuation report prepared by
an independent professional valuer, by applying
discounted cash flow model on the liability
component and Binomial Tree Model on the equity
component and derivative component, if any.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made as there were no
assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

The PRC Enterprises Income Tax at 25% has
not been provided as the PRC subsidiaries have
available tax losses brought forward from previous
years to offset the assessable profits generated
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

14.

AMBEEFHAABIBHARARESZLSE
BUYEXRGEMEROGERS KAAE
BBy M BEIRIR 2 AR BY K 4 25 58 o3 A0 0T A AP
(AN -_XEEREETE -

PSR <

RBEE_Z_ZTFR_F-NF+_H
=+ —BIEREFE BEMNEHGRMEE
JERB M IA16.5%T B -HREZE T
ZERZZE-AFT_A=+—HALWEASF
ERNEEEEBELSESTAERBUET -
B LB B RS BRI B

HRPENBARABGERBEFEZAR
REBBEABENBEE T _TFR_FT—H
F+A=+—BLFEELZERBER -
ﬁ%gﬁ*ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ(ﬁ%%%%ﬂF

RE Al RLARE R E £ SR IR T IR A B AR
BEEARETE -

BEREXCEEERA A

[

—E_ZTFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

14. PRGBIFE X ()

AEEHREMI ARG S BRREAM2EK
BEROBHRAFE (BR)HERNT:

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to
profit/(loss) before taxation per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

2020 2019

—E-THF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#ET FAET

(restated)

(re&E7))

Profit/(loss) before taxation BrAE AT R, (E518) 43,491 (605,242)
Tax at domestic income tax rate ERAMSHRETENTRIE 7,176 (99,865)

Tax effect of share of loss of an joint venture 25— A LM ¥EEY
Uit 394 409

Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR S A&

for tax purpose 160,249 97,418
Tax effect of income not taxable BARMBANT IS 2

for tax purpose (143,032) (4)
Utilisation of tax losses previously AR ABRNBIEERE

not recognised (281) (7,343)
Tax effect of unrecognised estimated AERGFTHIBEED

tax losses D% 4 18,904 22,040
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries W E th FERE R L& HY

operating in other jurisdictions MEBARTRBRENTZE (43,410) (12,655)

Income tax expense for the year

REFERF/HRAX




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per
share is based on the profit/(loss) attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$44,662,000
(2019: HK$604,467,000) and the weighted
average of 616,926,000 ordinary shares
(2019: 486,198,000 shares after adjusting
for the share consolidation in 2021) in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per
share is based on the profit/(loss) attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$46,552,000
(2019: HK$604,467,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of
843,267,000 shares (2019: 486,193,000
shares after adjusting for the share
consolidation in 2021), calculated as follows:

(i) Profit/{loss) attributable to owners
of the Company (diluted)

15. 8REF, (F#E)

(a) BREXEFH ()

BREXAF, (BE)TIREARA R
A AREAEFH44,662,0008 7T (=
— JL%F 1 604,467,000/ 70) R AFEEE
1T T BAR B9 ON #E 19 81616,926,000
BRH (ZZ—hhFE R_T_—F2
i 1D & Of 1B I 32 18 & #9486,193,000
MR ) st &

(b)) BREFERH (EHRE)

EREERN(BR)REARAF
A ARAEFE, (E18) 46,552,000
BT (ZZ — N4 1 604,467,000 7T )
R 3 % hn 4 25 £ 49843,267,0000%
BH(ZE—NEF T —F2R
& BHE L A& 1% & 4486,193,0000%
D) HE - BT

() AREJHEEA BT
(F1E) (#%E)

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners
of the Company

After tax effect of effective interest
on the convertible bonds

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners
of the Company (diluted)

RRBHA AR
B (ER)

BMEEFERNEZ
Mg E

AREER AR
B (EE) (#5E)

2020 2019
l- ek -ck- M T — S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
(restated)

(r&E7)

44,662 604,467
1,890 -
46,552 604,467

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 15. 8REBR,(FE) (&)
(Continued)
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b) EBREHERF (EBE) (&)
(Continued)
(i) Weighted average number of (i) B HEFEE (#E)
ordinary shares (diluted)
2019
—E-NF
000
T
(restated)
(&%)
Weighted average number of R+-_A=+—8#H
ordinary shares at 31 December ITE A AT & 616,926 486,193
Effect of conversion of ERABRREFNTE
convertible bonds 226,341 -
Weighted average number of R+—A=+—8H8
ordinary shares (diluted) at I AR N 1 8

31 December (#58) 843,267 486,193




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-F=+—HLFE

16. DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF 16 EEREEZTHAEFHMH

EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

ENFEENNAR(ZE-AF ABIEER
TETHRABNHHNT

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
eight (2019: nine) directors and the chief executive

were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_FE-_FFf+_-_A=+—HLEE

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
and benefits benefits Total
Fees in kind schemes emoluments
e BUHR BHEH
ik BENER EIER ams
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET THET THET
Executive Directors: BITES:
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam ("Mr. Sin") GEMEE (DEEE]D - 3,600 18 3,618
Mr. Chow Kai Weng ("Mr. Chow") AR E ([AXE]) - 1,440 18 1,458
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun BN - 720 18 738
Mr. Ho Leung Ting fAmERE - 480 18 498
Non-executive Director: FBTES:
Dr. Lam Lee G. HREEL 100 - - 100
Independent Non-executive BAERTES:
Directors:
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert EfCas - 100 - 100
Mr. Li Kit Chee FRzEE - 100 - 100
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, Wilfred BB S A - 100 - 100
Total emoluments A 100 6,540 72 6,712

=

HEREEBMERA A —ZT_FTFH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

Y /— = -+ .
16. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 16EERETETHAEESEN 2
EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-Z-—NWF+A=+—HLFE
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
and benefits benefits Total
Fees in kind schemes emoluments
e 2R RIKEH
we BB FTEIR &s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT TEL
Executive Directors: BITES:
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam HEMEE - 2,274 12 2,286
Mr. Chow Kai Weng FREREE - 1,560 18 1,578
Mr. Cheng Wang Chun BN - 780 18 798
Mr. Ho Leung Ting MRELE - 574 18 592
Non-executive Director: FRTES:
Dr. Lam Lee G. HREEL 100 = = 100
Independent Non-executive BAERTES:
Directors:
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert e - 90 - 90
Mr. Li Kit Chee TR EE - 90 - 90
Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, Wilfred W B4 - 78 - 78
Total emoluments ape 100 5,446 66 5,612
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above EXFIRATEENME IREZEEELRR
were for their services in connection with the A R AR E B FRSFT IR AR A M S A B9 TR BN o
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.
The non-executive director’'s emolument shown EXFIRERTESHHES IRBEEAELR
above were for his service as director of the AINHEWBAR (MER) EZMEHERE
Company and its subsidiaries, if applicable. 0 32 15 /O R B
The independent non-executive directors’ EXFRBIFRTEETHN CMES IS
emoluments shown above were for their services as BEARRBESFIRMHARK M AR -

director of the Company.
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Note: Mr. Sin Kwok Lam was also the chief executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
included those for services rendered by him as the
chief executive. There was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

16EERFETHAETMN 2

M EEMEERBERTIARRITRER K
B2 BN B E R 1 B 1T BUAR B FT IR AR
B BE-_T=-TFR-_FT—NF
T A=+ HLFEYEANEHEES
BERRERETWHESHTHE-

REBEE_ZT_ZTFR_F-NLF+ZA
=+t HLEFE ASERERTANESY
NEMME ARSI BEMAREESKER
MAREBE 2 BE K BEBHE-

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 17 B EZ

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, four (2019: four) of them were the
directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in Note 16 above. The
emoluments of the remaining individual for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 were as
follows:

EXREERIERSFMALT OH(=F
—NFEIBR)REARANEE RENHFHS
REXWEIFHEE- RBEE_T_FTFR
ZE-AFE+ A=+ -RIEFE BT —
AANLTEFHBAT

Salaries and other benefits e REMEF
Retirement benefit costs R KRR T AE AR

2020 2019
TECTE i ks
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
523 2,100

14 8

537 2,108

Their emoluments were within nil to HK$1,000,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2019: nil).

S B T Z 21,000,000 7T ©
FR-AEEHEARAEZSSMEEE XN

EAHBME R IMAREBH AR Z RE) K
BHEE(ZE-AF &) -

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 18. % MERRKE

EQUIPMENT

1250 Nari

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land and Hotel Leasehold office vehicles
buildings properties  improvements equipment and yacht Film studio Total
TR i 2E
EENE HENERE  BAERE  REREE L2 a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL Thn Thn TEL Thn TAL TER
cosT %3
As at 1 January 2019, R=Z-N5-A-H
previously reported (%A fﬂ) 11132 764,37 3,039 51,140 7,19 884,966 1,721,709
Change in accounting policy SHEREE = (380,151) o > o (66,532) (446,683)
As restated asj 11,132 384,086 3,039 51,140 7,195 818,434 1,275,026
Addiions 5 - - - 7,308 - 28,662 36,470
Disposal HE - - - (449) - - (449)
Exchange realignment EH8E (237) (13,342) (16) 2,616 (34) (18,364) (24,377)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZA=+-H 10,895 370,744 3,023 61,115 7,161 833,732 1,286,670
As at 1 January 2020, “5-%%-f
previously reported (aué‘&aui&w) 10,895 724,557 3,023 61,115 7,161 642,069 1,448,820
Change in accounting policy HRREE - (353,813) - - - 191,663 (162,150)
As restated aEj| 10,895 370,744 3,023 61,115 7,161 833,732 1,286,670
Additions BE = 1 o 382 o 17,333 17,726
Disposal HE o - 97) (3,963) (4,561) - (8,621)
Exchange realignment EiAZ 720 24,497 49 3,585 75 40,348 69,274
As at 31 December 2020 RZB-FE+-A=+-8 11,615 395,252 2,975 61,119 2,675 891,413 1,365,049
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION AND SHAERAEGE
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
As at 1 January 2019 R-B-A%5-A-H 2,831 5 2,786 28,691 4011 = 38,519
Charge in accounting policy SHBREE - 108,436 - - - 79,434 187,870
As restated mE5| 2,831 108,436 2,786 28,691 4211 79,434 226,389
Change for the year ﬁ Ak 454 32,009 9% 9,954 1,135 19,500 63,238
Written back upon disposal HERER - - - (367) - - (367)
Impairment loss REEE - - - - - 93,627 93,607
Exchange realignment EXEE (69) (2,590) (13 (892) 28) (897) (4,485)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ-hn§+=A=+-H 3216 137,945 2,869 37,386 5,322 191,664 378,402
As at 1 January 2020, WZF-%25-A-H
previously reported (mxa250) 3,216 - 2,869 37,386 5,322 S 48793
Change in accounting policy SHEREE - 137,945 - - - 191,664 329,609
As restated aEy) 3,216 137,945 2,869 37,386 5,322 191,664 378,402
Charge for the year ERR 440 31,787 3 7,011 558 19,783 59,613
Witten back upon disposal HERER - - (19) (2,569) (4,194) = (6,776)
Impairment loss REER - - - - - 372,110 372,110
Exchange realignment ERRE 236 9,724 44 2,829 82 3,637 16,552
As at 31 December 2020 R-F-%%£+-A=+-8 3,892 179,456 2,928 44,663 1,768 587,194 819,901
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
As at 31 December 2020 R-F-F£+-B=1-8 7,723 215,796 47 16,456 907 304,219 545,148
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-hE+-A=+-A 7,679 232,799 154 23,729 1,839 642,068 908,268
As at 1 January 2019 K-F-hF-A-H 8,301 275,650 263 2,449 2,984 739000 1,048,637

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limi
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continuea)

The management of the Group performed an
impairment review of the recoverable amount
related to hotel properties and film studio. For
the purposes of impairment testing of the hotel
properties and film studio, the valuations were
performed by RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”) and
Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited (“Ravia”)
respectively. Both RHL and Ravia are independent
qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group.

Based on the annual impairment test performed,
no impairment loss recognised in respect of hotel
properties and an impairment loss of approximately
HK$372,110,000 (2019: approximately
HK$93,627,000) has been recognised on
film studio. The recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit determined based on value in
use.

The recoverable amount of film studio has been
determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the management
covering the following 5 years with a pre-tax
discount rate is 14% as at 31 December 2020
(2019: 14%), respectively. The annual growth rate
used is 3% (2019: 3%), which is based on the
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the relevant
industry. The cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using 3% growth rate
(2019: 3%). Another key assumption for the value
in use calculated is the budgeted gross margin,
which is determined based on the film studio’ past
performance and management expectations for the
market development.

Based on the result of the assessment,
management of the Group determined that the
recoverable amount of the film studio is lower than
the carrying amount. Based on the value in use
calculation and the allocation, an impairment of
HK$372,110,000 (2019: HK$93,627,000) has been
recognised against the carrying amount of film
studio.

The carrying amount of the hotel properties has not
been reduced since the amount of fair value less
cost of disposal of the owned properties is higher
than the carrying amount. The hotel properties were
measured at fair value based on Level 3 hierarchy
using valuation technique. The current cost of
replacement of the improvements, less allowance
for physical deterioration and all relevant forms
of obsolescence and optimisation were used in
measuring the fair value.

18.ME- -MERRZRE &)

AEEEEE LA EYERZRWN A YD
SRETRERT - MBEEVMERTZRBRLZ
BAER BT E - fSED BBk AT EREM
BRAA (KAT]) R SRR HHEF
BRAR ([ME])ETT KT RIKEY K
SAREE N WA ENB LA B REEMER -

REBEMETHEERENRER 2B
EMERRREEBE ERTZEWNERRE
BB 49372,110,0008 L (ZE— N EF: 4
93,627,000/ L) - e EEBMA A Y@
SRR EERABEET

ERMNTKESBENBRBERAEEFEE
T -R_ZE-_TF+_A=+—H % &
FREREEBHENRE RKAFHM
MBI KTEENRSRETE L LHEAIR X
14% (ZF— NFE14% )T E-FEB BN E
BERA3% (ZZTE—NF 3%)  JIENT
E¥REBASY YT BBRABITEN R
FHERER - AFEHZENIAEREFHI%
BER(ZZ—NF:3%)HE - FHEE
B3 BXEREZABEENE -HETHR
BYRRMzBARBEREEBYMBREZ
TEHMEE

BEIHEER AEETEEEFEY RN
MAKE S EEAEEmME - REFEHAE
EBFERIEBL ERERABOERE
%R RE372,110,0008 T (Z T — AL F:
93,627,000/ 7T ) ©

MREEMENDAERBIERANTES
REREE #OBE RN RE B ER D -
BIENEERGERNRE=RIAENE-
RABAARER BEERAVMERENRASE
ERA UHRERBRERAEHBELZAD
RERBLEE-

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

19. 2B H

ARRRBERARNEIEMBRRFELT

19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

at the end of the reporting period are set out as

follows:
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Forms of Place of paid share capital/ value of issued capital/
business incorporation or  registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERBILES  EETRARRE/ FARMBERTES
KWEARER EBREVS  SRbE HhEx/ BUEE EfE/ERERLH TEEH
2020 2019
e
National Arts Entertainment Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of management services to
(NA Entertainment”) HK$1,500,000 (indirect) (indirect) artistes in Hong Kong
BEREERLA MR B ERR1,500,0008 7T 100% 100% AEFEMBARBERRS
([EERE]) (%) (Fi%)
National Arts Entertainment Incorporated ~ British Virgin Islands  Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Holdings Limited US$192,308 (direct) (direct)
BEREERARAA MR ABERES LBR192,308% T 100% 100% EEBETRERR
(E®) (B%)
National Arts Production & Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of promotional performance
Promotions Limited (indirect) (indirect) services in Hong Kong
BERERERERAA il i LERIAT 100% 100% EEBREERRLRSE
(Fi#) (Fig)
National Arts Films Production Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of distribution of fim in
Limited (“NA Film”) HK$1,500,000 (indirect) (indirect) Hong Kong
BEYRREARAT MR B ERR1,500,0008 7 100% 100% EFARUEFEORE

SEEEZ:)

(RI%) (F&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continueq) 19. TEMBAF (#)

Issued and fully

Proportion of nominal

Forms of Place of paid share capital/ value of issued capital/
business incorporation or  registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERBILES  ERTRARRS/ KAFRREETER
P EBRERS  SRbE HME%x/ BHEF EfE/EREXLH TEEH
2020 2019
288 ST0F
Art Tour Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Inactive
HK$10,000 (direct) (direct)
BEERAT Al B LRR10,000ET 100% 100% ££%
(E8) (B%)
Glory Max Group Limited Incorporated  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(direct) (direct)
Glory Max Group Limited Bl ABBRES B3l AEIM 100% 100% AEEBETRERR
(E®) (E#)
Head Return Limited (‘HRL") Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(indirect) (indirect)
BRARAA ([22)) A £ ERRI00ET 100% 100% EEBEOTRERR
(Fi#) (Fi%)
Expand Pacific Limited (‘EPL’) Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(indirect) (indirect)
APFARERAT AL i EER100% T 100% 100% EEBETRERR
(TRFHAER]) (F#&) (&)
Foshanshi Huixing Jiudian Co., Ltd* Wholly foreign ~ PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Hotel operation in the PRC
owned 1JS845,000,000 (indirect) (indirect)
enterprise
("WFOE")
BUTEEEEERAT NEBELE TH 174 445,000,005 T 100% 100% EFESEERE
(%) (%)

Foshan Huishou Cultural Development ~ WFOE PRC Registered capital of 70% 70%  Property development and operation
Co., Ltd* (Formerly known as: 1US$40,000,000 (indirect) (indirect) offilm studio and theme park
Foshan Huishou Scenic Area in the PRC
Management Co., Ltd")

BUBEURXLEXZRERAR  SMEBELE TE 1M 4%40,000,000% T 100% 100% EREERNERELTZEAR

(AR RLEERRERERAR) (%) (B%)  XBRE

Foshanshi Yupinxuan Trading Domestic PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Retailing of souvenirs in the PRC
Co., Ltd* enterprise RMB100,000 (indirect) (indirect)

BUTHREREERAR mEL% HE HRERARE100,0007 100% 100% ERETELRM

(Fi#) (%)

Foshan National Arts Education Domestic PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Light refreshment restaurant in the PRC
Technology Co., Ltd* (Fomerly knwon  enterprise RMB100,000 (indirect) (indirect)
as: Foshanshi Yufu Food & Beverage
Co., Ltd*) (“National Arts Education”)

BUTEEHERRERAR mELZ il HRERARE100,0007 100% 100% RIEGEEREE

(A BUTHRKRERAR) (E#) (%)
SEESE)
Rainbow Dragon Corporation Limited ~ Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$150 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(indirect) (indirect)
EUERAA Al A LRR150ET 100% 100% EEBETREER
(%) (%)
Wide Expand Limited Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(indirect) (indirect)
BYERAR Faaliodnd i LRRI00ET 100% 100% EEBETRERR
(Fi#) (%)
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19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continueq) 19. TEMBATE (#)

Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Forms of Place of paid share capital/ value of issued capital/
business incorporation or  registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERBILES  ERTRARRS/ KAFRREETER
P EBRERS  SRbE s/ BEES EfE/EREXLH TEEH
2020 2019
“¥C¥E ToNE
Broad Sky Investment Limited Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$20 100% 100%  Inactive
(direct) (direct)
BRRARRAA il Eif LEkRo0BT 100% 100% E£%
(E%) (B%)
National Arts Travel Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of travel related products in
HK$500,000 (indirect) (indirect) Hong Kong
BERERRAR il B £1877500,000% 100% 100% AEFAREREEEER
(Fi#) (Fig)
Elegant Motion Enterprises Limited Incorporated  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(direct) (direct)
EHEEERLT il EBBREE LBRET 100% 100% EEBETRERR
(E%) (B%)
Flash Star Holdings Limited Incorporated  British Virgin Islands  Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(direct) (direct)
REARARAT il EBBREE LBRET 100% 100% EEBETRERR
(E%) (B%)
Wealth Day Enterprises Limited Incorporated  British Virgin Islands  Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(direct) (direct)
EAGRARAR AL EBBREE LBRET 100% 100% EEBETRERR
(E%) (B%)
Lux Unicorn Limited (“Lux Unicorn”) Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
(indirect) (indirect)
BEERAA ([EE]) MR B ERRI00ET 100% 100% EEBETRERR
(Fi#) (Fig)
NA Sing Sing Entertainment Limited Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 51% 51%  Provision of event coordination services
HK$500,000 (indirect) (indirect) in Hong Kong
LEREERAT il B £187500,000% T 51% 51% EEERUEDSEMRE
(Fi#) (%)
Brillant Grand Limited Incorporated  British Virgin Islands  Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
(direct) (direct)
BEERLA il ABERES LRRIER 100% 100% E£H
(E%) (B%)
Bright Joyful Development Limited Incorporated  British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
(direct) (direct)
GRERERAR il ABERES LRRIER 100% 100% E£H
(E%) (B%)
Thousand Famous Limited Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Inactive
(indirect) (indirect)
TEERAA il fs B LRRI00ET 100% 100% E£H

(RI%) (F%)
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19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continueq) 19. TEMBAF (#)

Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Forms of Place of paid share capital/ value of issued capital/
business incorporation or  registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERBILES  ERTRARRS/ KAFRREETER
P EBRERS  SRbE HME%x/ BHEF EfE/EREXLH TEEH
2020 2019
288 ST0F
Crystal Way Global Limited Incorporated  British Virgin Islands  Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
(direct) (direct)
BRERHRERLT il EBBREE LBRET 100% 100% EEH
(E%) (B%)
Luck Advance Ventures Limited Incorporated ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
(direct) (direct)
BEHRERLT il EBBREE LBRET 100% 100% EEH
(E%) (B%)
Success Converge Limited Incorporated  British Virgin Islands  Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
(direct) (direct)
HEARAR il EBBREE LBRET 100% 100% EEH
(E%) (B%)
Action Art Limited Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive
(indirect) (indirect)
2HERAT il ik TERIAT 100% 100% EEH
(E#) (Fig)
Skill United Culture Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive
(indirect) (indirect)
BRVLARAT R ik TERIAT 100% 100% EEH
(E#&) (Fig)
Broad Grace Limited Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive
(indirect) (indirect)
BRERAA R G TERIAT 100% 100% EEH
(%) (%)
National Arts Ditigal Technology Limited  Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Inactive
(Formuly known as: Real Wind Limited) (indirect) (indirect)
HEABNRARAR HR i EER100%T 100% 100% EEH
(FIf:ERBRAR) (%) (%)
—SHEREEN(RINERAR  WFOE PRC Register capital of 100% 100%  Inactive
RMB500,000 (indirect) (indirect)
-BREREFA(RINERRE  SEBELE $H &R AR B500,0007T 100% 100% EEH
(%) (%)
BLUTEZZRERERAR Domestic PRC Register capital of 100% 100%  Inactive
enterprise RMB1,000,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BUTAZREERARAR nEb% Gk &R AR 1,000,000 100% 100% EEH
(%)
(B%)
BUTERKERRAR Domestic PRC Register capital of 0% 70%  Inactive
enterprise RMB500,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BUTERREARAT mELE Gl EMER 0% 0% E£K
AR¥500,0007 (%) (B%)
FUTEREAREERAR Domestic PRC Register capital of 100% 100%  Inactive
enterprise RMB1,000,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BUTERBARERRAR nEL% Gl AMER 100% 100% &K
AR¥1,000,0007 (Fi#) (B%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

Issued and fully

Proportion of nominal

19. FEMB LT (&)

Forms of Place of paid share capital/ value of issued capital/
business incorporation or  registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERBILES  ERTRARRS/ KAFRREETER
P EBRERS  SRbE HME%x/ BHEF EfE/EREXLH TEEH
2020 2019
288 ST0F
BUTREZERARBERLR Domestic PRC Register capital of 100% 100%  Inactive
enterprise RMB1,000,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BUTHAYEZARBERAA nEL% B HMER 100% 100% EEH
AR1,000,0007 (E#&) (Fig)
National Arts Film Shooting Base Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 100% 100%  Inactive
Management Company Limited (indirect) (indirect)
A8y REANERARAA R ik LERI00%T 100% 100% EEH
(E#&) (Fig)
BLUTEEERERERAR WFOE PRC Register capital of 100% 100%  Inactive
US$3,000,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BUTEEREERERLA NEBERE WE F & 73,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EEH
(F#&) (%)
Foshan Yingyue Catering Co., Ltd." WFOE PRC Register capital of 100% 100%  Inactive
RMB100,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BUTERERERLT NERELE $H AR ARE100,0007 100% 100% E£H
(F#&) (%)
Foshan No.66 Highway Catering WFOE PRC Register capital of 100% 100%  Inactive
Co., Ltd.* RMB100,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BUTATARARERERAA NERELE $H AR ARE100,0007 100% 100% E£H
(F#&) (%)
Foshan Guoyi Zhongying Movie and TV Natural person  PRC Register capital of 51% 51%  Film studio operation in the PRC
Cutture Development Co., Ltd.* investment RMB20,000,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BUTREMRYE N RRERLE BRARE 4B A A A R %20,000,0007 51% 51% ERELETEY
(E#) (%)
Medialive Limited Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Inactive
HK$100 (indirect) (indiirect)
RHEEARAA R A TERI00%T 100% 100% EEH
(%) (%)
Novus Media Limited Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Inactive
HK$100 (indirect) (indiirect)
EREBRERAA R i TERI00%T 100% 100% EEH
(%) (%)
National Arts Digital Technology Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Inactive
(China) Limited HK$100 (indirect) (indirect)
BERTFHH (PH)ERAE il i TERI00%T 100% 100% EXH
(%) (%)
Skyyer Mediax Limited Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Inactive
HK$100 (indirect) (indirect)
ReATRBERAA FERlif B LRRI00ET 100% 100% EEH
(%) (%)
* For identification purpose only * 1E
Note: None of the subsidiaries had issued any listed Msr: REREH R - BERBATERITEMLEST
securities at the end of the reporting period. The FHR-BE_ZE_ZFER_FT—NAF+=A
Group had no subsidiaries which have material =+ —BHIEE KEBTEFBARHESR
non-controlling interests for the years ended BAGEERRE RS

31 December 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20 FRHEEE
The movements of the right-of-use assets in AEEHEBBEREEENZEHBRAOT
respect of the leases during the year are set out
below:
Office
Land lease premises and
prepayment staff quarters Total
THHEE WA R
SEAREN ETESE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAT FHAT FAT
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—-NE—HA—H 371,074 3,204 374,278
Additions NE - 1,982 1,982
Depreciation expense FERS (13,692) (2,235) (15,927)
Exchange realignment BE N FA R (65) (50) (115)
As at 31 December 2019 and RZZ—-NF
1 January 2020 + H _‘l' B X
—E-TF—HF—H 357,317 2,901 360,218
Additions NE - 4,420 4,420
Depreciation expense FERS (13,752) (2,166) (15,918)
Exchange realignment PE KR - 141 141
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZEF
+_H =+—H 343,565 5,296 348,861
2020 2019
—ETF ki
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Expense relating to short-term lease HAGHHEEEEMNAY 12 1978
Total cash outflow for lease HERSMLEE 300 1,978
BEEREVILERBERA 71 ZT_TFH
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20. EFHEEE (@)

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continved)

Note:

(i)

(if)

Land use rights represents lump sum considerations
paid or payable by the Group to acquire leasehold
lands located in the PRC. These leasehold lands
are with lease periods of 38-40 years and there are
ongoing payments to be made under the terms of
the land leases.

For both years, the Group leases various offices
and warehouses for its operations Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 24 to 36 months,
but may have extension and termination options
as described below. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases
for warehouse and office. As at 31 December 2020
and 2019, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which
the short-term lease expense disclosed above.

(if)

T FERAREASEANSANRFENA
ELENIEMN—AHERE - %EHA
S+ EE A38-40F BRI HHEEN
B NEBIXNER-

RAEFEE AEEAEEBERESTHA
ERBE GBS T24=36E ANETE
HARAA  MATEER S T AT AR B R 4R
IFEEE-AERIRERNEERES T8
BN AR R o N E M B R AR R AT
BRI RE ASERAGHNTEER
W EEE S X RT 58 H B ATEHARS -

ARETHRABERRAZT L EHAL -
R-FB_FFR-F-NAF+_A=+—
B-RMASHS R EHREEHEEM
XA REERAEEEELL -
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oy = == N 2
21.INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 21 REEE N T 2 =
2020 2019
t-clel-cl- B T — I
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FAET
Cost of investment in associates REE AT 2B KA - -
Share of post-acquisition profits and JE A W B 12 A1) K2
other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEHKA - =
On 3 September 2019, the Group disposed of RZE-—NFALAZB AEBEUZEREM
80% equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, —BBUE=ZF([WBF]HEZENB
HBLUTHBRAEREREEABRAQ A (“Target”), to rEfFLTEEERREERER AT ([B
an independent third party (the “Acquirer”) at zero ZTRA) Z80%MRE- R ETHKE K&
consideration. Upon completion of the disposal, B MRER100%E 2 E20% - R A%
the equity interest held by the Group reduced from KREHBEEQARMNESE BEEEHD
100% to 20%. Since the Group lost the control HMAREEMEE AT -
over Target, thus it reclassified as an associate of
the Group.
The net liabilities of Target at the date of disposal:i— BEREARRNEERBzAaBEFE: —
HK$’000
FAET
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables TETRIE - e RH Mg W E IR
Other payables H b JE A 5RIR (1)
Net liabilities BREFHE =
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, both the Group RIBZEFR_Z-NFT_A=+—8"
and the Acquirer had not paid up any registered AEBERKEFIRBRZEMFMER-
capital.
Details of each of the Group's associates at the PRBMER AEESBE AR ZFBERT
end of the reporting period are as follows:
Country of Principal
incorporation/  place of Proportion of ownership Proportion of voting Principal
Name of entity registration business interest held by the Group  rights held by the Group activity
R FEEMR FEARK
BEREE ERER TEEEHY Fra LBl RERLH TEEH
BUTEEERERERER AT PRC PRC 20% 20% 20% 20%  Inactive
BUTREERERERARAA e FE BEK
Inter Continental Cultural Education
Group Limited ("Inter Continental’) Hong Kong Hong Kong 30% 30% 30% 30%  Inactive
BEHEEAERAA
(TEBt#HE]) B &5 B
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

1. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 21.

(Continuved)

All of these associates are accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.

Summarised financial information of
immaterial associates

The financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s associate is not disclosed as the assets
and liabilities as at the year ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 were less than HK$1,000.

o

REE RAE 2w (4)
ZEBEATRUSEAHBERAERE
RN

FEXBEATN ZHMBERBE

HRAEESBERTARBE_T_TFR
—EBE-NF+-A=+— Etifﬁﬂ’ﬂéé&
B & 71,00008 TT - B0 B B 5E R X S ek
BRBM AR

22. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 2. REELEIER
Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture AEBREGELEZRENFBOT
are as follows:
2020 2019
ot ek 2l T —
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHET
Unlisted investment, at cost FELMIRE  RKAE 11,400 11,400
Share of post-acquisition loss and SRR EE R
other comprehensive income, Hih2mEEA -
net of dividends received MBRE WS (10,941) (8,551)
459 2,849
Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of AEEBSELERRERRNFBREOT:

the reporting period are as follows:

Country of Principal place of Proportion of ownership Proportion of voting rights
Name of entity incorporation business interest held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
BEREE FRAIER TEEEBE FEEREHREERERILA FRARFHREMEILN TERB
2019
ZE-NE
Zhuhaishi Guoyi Yingshi PRC PRC 60% 60% 60% 60% Cinema Operation
Management Co., Ltd* (indirect) (indirect) (indirect) (indirect)
HETHEYRAEERERAA Gk e (%) (F%) (B#) (F%) B28gk

For identification purpose only

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual

. (EX il
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22.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 2. REELE KR (/)
(Continuved)
Summarised financial information of the SELEZHMBEHBE

joint venture

Summarised financial information in respect of K’El/\%ﬁﬁzﬁﬁ‘%ﬁﬂﬁzﬁﬁlﬁ’\TX°
the Group’s joint venture is set out below. The NTHBEERMEEAELERET VS
summarised financial information below represents iﬁiﬁ,ﬁ\'ﬂﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁﬁ‘xiﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁé&@

amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

2020
—E-FF
HK$’000
FHET
Current assets MEEE 691 1,219
Non-current assets ERBEE 9,485 10,054
Current liabilities mEBE (8,382) (5,640)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - =
The above amounts of assets and FTREERBESSE
liabilities include the following: BELNTEHE:
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEER 140 476
Current financial liabilities nBemaE (TeE
(excluding trade and FEHE 5 RIE & A At
other payables and provisions) JEATFRIB A R B ) - -
Non-current financial liabilities FrnEemaE (~aE
(excluding trade and FET & 5 F0IE & A A
other payables and provisions) FE RIB A KB HE) - =
BHEREYCEEBERA Al —E-_TFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME
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22. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 2. NEELEER (&)

(Continuved)

BELEZMBANEE (4)

Summarised financial information of the

joint venture (Continued)

2020 2019
otk M — T —
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FET
Revenue WA 111 4,809
Loss for the year REFER (4,211) (2,579)
Other comprehensive income for the year 74 & H 2 E WA - -
Total comprehensive expense for the year AN [E &M S 2% (4,211) (2,579)
Dividends received from the joint venture AFE B AL
during the year W B % B - =
The above loss for the year include the FlRAFEEEBRE
following: ATHER :
Depreciation and amortisation e i 1,280 1,288
Interest income B A 1 2
Interest expense FER X 2 8
Income tax expense Frisfif - =

The amount due from a joint venture was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

"

ional Arts Entertainment And Culture Gr

e

RS ELENRBARERIT 2B RAR
BXREE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

Note: No amortisation (2019:

approximately

== / == /
23. FILM PRODUCTS AND FILM 2. EXERRETREEER
PRODUCTION IN PROGRESS
Films
production
Film rights in progress Total
ERHEN AHERER @st
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAT FHT FHT
Cost: :
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NE—-A—BH
b3 106,831 - 106,831
Additions NE - 4,344 4,344
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-N&E+=A
and 1 January 2020 =+—BRkZZ=%F
—B—BH&E#% 106,831 4,344 111,175
Additions NE - 257 257
Exchange realignment PE N AR - 335 335
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-E-FE£+=H
=+— B 106,831 4,936 111,767
Accumulated amortisation R EERBEEE:
and impairment losses:
Balance at 1 January 2019 R-ZZE-N&—A—H
) 4 5h 105,621 - 105,621
Amortisation of film products BRYEMEHE 1,210 - 1,210
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZT—hE+=A
and 1 January 2020 =t+t—BRk=-ZE=ZF
—A—Bm#EsH 106,831 - 106,831
Amortisation of film products BYEMEHE - = =
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-EZ-FEF+=H
=+—HHER 106,831 - 106,831
CARRYING AMOUNTS R (B
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-ZF-FE£+=AH
=+— B - 4,936 4,936
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—h&E+=A
=+—BH&EH - 4,344 4,344

Mist: XEAR

BEYRMOHEE (T -NF 8

1,210,000/ 70 ) it AR R B R E M2 E K
BRPHNEZRERNR - EXRNBEHEUE

HK$1,210,000) with respect to film rights
was included in cost of film production in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other REREMEAIERFHAMBEEREER
comprehensive income. Amortisation of film right is HEFHBEEME -TENFERAFHAE ==
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost Fo

less their residual values over the estimated useful

lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful

lives are one year to three years.
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24. INVESTMENTS IN FILMS/DRAMAS 24 REEE HBIBME

PRODUCTION
2020 2019
—E-FHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Investments in films/dramas production BEBY BB EIE 1,311 1,311
Less: Impairment B ORE (986) (986)
325 325
Note: The amount represents investments in licensed M e EERERBREQR UBEER
production houses for co-financing the production LB R IEHALE R EREAAEEE
of films and/or dramas. The investments are BUEARGIUZEBAHRZERE BiEHE -
governed by the relevant agreements entered into AEBGRKREITHEBEY R A
between the Group and the production houses MEERHF -

whereby the Group is entitled to benefits generated
from the distribution of the related films and/or

dramas.
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. BEWWE 18

2020 2019

TECTE ks

HK$’000 HK$’000

TFHET FAET

Trade receivables from contracts EWEHNEFESRIE
with customers

— travel agents — IR EER IR 120,689 113,611
— production crews — BB B 56,026 51,773
— others —Hfb 1,947 5,588
178,662 170,972
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEERRE (173,106) (95,788)

5,556 75,184
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group generally allows a credit period from
30 to 90 days (2019: 30 to 90 days) to its trade
customers in respect of film production and
distribution sales of travel related products, artiste
management and event coordination and hotel
operation. In respect of travel agent selling tickets
of a film studio owned by the Group on behalf of
the Group (referred to as “Ticket Selling Agent
A”), the credit period granted by the Group to the
Ticket Selling Agent A was about 1 year from the
date when the related revenue is recognised by
the Group. The Group assessed and concluded
that there was a significant financing component
and hence the Group adjusted the promised
consideration by using a discount rate that would
be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the Ticket Selling Agent A.
When the tickets are sold by Ticket Selling Agent
A on behalf of the Group, the Group recognised
the consideration adjusted for the financing
component as the revenue. The consideration
allocated to the financing income is recognised as
interest income over the credit period. The amount
of interest income recognised for the year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to HK$nil (2019:
HK$4,608,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Ticket Selling Agent A had settled its balances
in January to March 2019. Since April 2019, the
Ticket Selling Agent A has not repaid its remaining
balance due to the Group. As at 31 December
2019, the balance due by the Ticket Selling Agent
A was approximately HK$41,316,000. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the management
has repeatedly requested for repayments without
success, and legal letters had been issued. no
repayment has been made by Ticket Selling Agent
A. Accordingly, the management of the Group made
a full impairment on the balance of approximately
HK$41,316,000.

25. FEWE 5 I8 (&)

AEEREHEZ HEPAFFI0E0AME
BH(ZZT—N5F:30F90R) ' %ZEEFX
AEFEERKEEBERSH HEEE
MESGEREELBE RARNEEPER
EEFEHMAENKRTRENS (TXHEA
[EZRIEA]) AEELTFEEREANGE
B ANEEERRARBUE B RO —F-
AREBEBTE BSHERASEFHEEAN
BEKD At BEAAREBEREEERIEA
Z BB B A X 5 = i # B 38 3R 3 K
HRE - ZEZREARAEEHEZ A&£H
HRARBERDIEHAZNREB AW -H
EFRERANRE NERAEZEHAN
MEBWA - RBE_ZE_TF+_A=+—
AILFERIANANBMALEAT BT (=
T — 4 4,608,000/ 7T ) °

REBEE_ZE-hhFE+_A=+—RHILFE"
EEZRBAER -_ZE—LE-—AZE=A#&%
HE&EBR- BT AEFEMNAR EEZKIEA
MAEERNAEENBE - R_T—NLF
+ZA=+—8 EEZERBAENEHOA
41,316,000 L - REEZE =T —NF+=A
=+ HUIFE EEBREERERIL X
PRI B BEEEREG-AM ERRE
AT REFR -Fi AEBEEEEYHEHD
41,316,000/8 JL1EH & R R (& °

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

;N_(}ﬁ’onal Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limi

e

The Group in previous years had engaged another
agent to sell tickets on behalf of the Group (referred
to as “Ticket Selling Agent B”).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Ticket
Selling Agent B has only made repayments of
HK$15,500,000 in March 2019. Afterwards, there
has no repayment from Ticket Selling Agent B.
As at 31 December 2019, the balance due by
the Ticket Selling Agent B was approximately
HK$20,055,000. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the management has repeatedly
requested for repayments without success, and in
March 2020, legal letters had been issued. Up to
the date of issuance of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2019, Ticket Selling Agent B has not repaid on
its balance. Accordingly, the management of the
Group made a full impairment on the balance of
approximately HK$20,055,000.

Except for Ticket Selling Agent A and Ticket
Selling Agent B, the Group had receivables in
respect of distribution sales of travel related
products of approximateky HK$59,522,000 (2019:
HK$52,243,000). Included in the balances of
approximately HK$54,712,000 (2019: HK$Nil) was
past due for more than one year. In view of the long
outstanding, the management of the Group made
a full impairment on the balance of approximately
HK$54,712,000 (2019: HK$NIl).

—ECEFE+-A=+—HILEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade
receivables from film production companies
HK$56,026,000 (2019: HK$51,773,000). Included
in the balances of approximately HK$30,542,000
(2019: HK$18,481,000) was past due for more
than one year. In view of the long outstanding
and repeatedly request for repayments without
success, the management of the Group made a
full impairment on the balance of approximately
HK$30,542,000 (2019: HK$18,481,000). In addition
an expected credit loss (‘ECL") of HK$2,905,000
(2019: HK$5,518,000) was recognised. The
estimation of ECL was determined neither based
on the best scenario nor the worst scenario. The
directors estimated the amount of ECL based on
the expected amount and timing of payments.
In general, an ECL is determined based on the
present value of the difference between (a) the
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
and (b) the cash flows expected to be received by
the Group, at the appropriate discount rate. The
adopted discount rate was taken into account the
credit risk characteristics of such debtors.

Except for customers arising from entrance fee
income, whose credit term for payment was about
12 months after tickets are sold, the following is

25. EWWE 5 I8 (&)

R-BE-FBF+-_A=+—H K&EEHE
WEFRELAAMERZE HRIE £58Y
56,026,000/ 7t (=& — /L4 : 51,773,000
BIL) A ST B E A 430,542,000
T(ZE—5F:18,481,000 ) 2 & HA
Bm—F-ERNERHAEEAZAERAR
AEEE B Y4 2 430,542,0008 7T ( =
T — AL 18,481,000 T ) tEH 2 BRI E ©
SN B RERR2,905,0008 7T (ZFE — hLF:
5,518,000/ L) MIBEEEER ([BHEE
EiE)) T EHEEEE YIHERERE
NEREBAEC - EERBBHANRNESE
LR At EEBENSE - —Rm s —
BEHEEEERIREUTHEMZHENER
BET: @QEMNAEENAGHNRSTE: H(b)
AEBEBHBESHRESRE WEE M
BERAFZ - ERANBEXREIEZEED
ANEERRES -

BREMFUANERS (ENREERARE
RERMEA)IN ZBEZAREINNE S
FEW R IR (R RIBERBUE) < Rk D AT 1A

the ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of ™
allowances for bad and doubtful debts, presented
based on the invoice date:
2020 2019
—ECTE Emaaykcs
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET
0 to 60 days 0£60H 2,350 15,621
61 to 90 days 61£E90H 515 6,218
91 to 180 days 91£180H 25 23,632
Over 180 days Him180H 2,666 29,713
5,556 75,184

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR 267

[



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wa

B IR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

26.

27.

INVENTORIES 26 78
2020 2019
b ek BN T — | F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHET
Food and beverage B - 597
Merchandise [Eh 762 876
General operating supplies and others —MREEYWEREM 69 1,041
831 2,514

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 27. AN FE e REMER
OTHER RECEIVABLES I8
2020 2019
b ek BN T — 1 F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets ERIHEE
Long-term receivables (notes (i) and (iv)) & HiEUERIE (F &2 () M (iv)) 88,808 111,187
Investment and other deposits HENMEMES
(notes (iii) and (v)) (Bt & (i) Kz (v) ) 19,936 17,928
108,744 129,115
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments (note (vii)) TEAT IR (B E (vii)) 53,939 2,435
Rental deposits HEHEe 681 2,159
Other deposits HEmiEe 1,699 6,512
Other receivables (note (i) and (vi)) H b KT (B R (i) B2 (vi) ) 19,784 31,159
76,103 42,265
184,847 171,380




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continved)

Notes:

(i)

The long-term receivable originally represented the
amount due from a local government company
which was repayable in 40 years and secured by the
Wong Tai Sin Temple located in Xigiao Mountain in
Foshan City, the PRC. The Group and the PRC local
government company mutually agreed that interest,
based on the People’s Bank of China Benchmark
Interest Rates, would not be accrued until the Wong
Tai Sin Temple records a monthly turnover of more
than RMB100,000 for six consecutive months. The
amount was denominated in RMB. The monthly
turnover threshold had not been met yet in part.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
PRC government issued Guozongfa (2017) No.
88 (the “Guozongfa”) on 3 November 2017 to
address the commercialisation issues relating to
the development of Buddhism and Taoism in the
PRC. Under the Guozongfa, it is promulgated that
commercial capital is strictly forbidden to intervene
in Buddhist Taoism and no organisation or individual
may invest or contract for the operation of Buddhist
Taoism activities or conduct business operations on
or through Buddhist Taoism venues.

After the issuance of the Guozongfa, the Group,
with the assistance of PRC legal advisers,
proceeded to assess the legal effects of the
Guozongfa on the construction management
agreement entered into with the PRC local
government company and to discuss with
the PRC local government company in order
to effect amendments to the terms of the
agreement considered necessary as a result of the
promulgation of the Guozongfa. The management of
the Group was taking actions and steps considered
necessary to respond to the changes in regulatory
environment brought about by the Guozongfa with a
view to safeguard the Group’s interests in the Wong
Tai Sin Temple and optimize the synergistic benefits
that the temple can bring to the Film Studio as the
temple is located in the film studio area.

27 ANRE-ZERHAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continved)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual R

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group and the
PRC local government company reached mutual
agreement on the changes to the contractual
arrangements between them to take account of
the changes in the applicable laws and regulations
due to the promulgation of the Guozongfa.
In March 2018, the Group and the PRC local
government company officially entered into a
loan repayment agreement which supersedes
all previous agreements between them. Under
the terms of the loan repayment agreement, the
PRC local government company would repay the
principal amount and accrued interest payable
under the superseded agreements amounting
to RMB74,700,000 in aggregate in the following
manner:

- RMB11,259,000 was repaid on 21 March
2018;

- The remaining RMB63,441,000 to be repaid
annually in equal instalments over a period
of 15 years, bearing interest at 5% per
annum to be paid together with the annual
repayment instalment.

The amount of RMB11,259,000 was duly repaid by
the PRC local government company on 31 March
2019. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
aggregate amount of RMB65,941,000 owed to the
Group was classified as follows:

- Current assets: approximately
HK$5,078,000 (equivalent to RMB4,555,000)
(2019: HK$5,078,000 (equivalent to
RMB4,555,000));

- Non-current assets: approximately
HK$56,606,000 (equivalent to
RMB61,386,000) (2019: HK$60,863,000
(equivalent to RMB67,844,000)).

During the year, the management of the Group
considered the PRC local government company,
may not be able to repay the balances according to
the repayment schedule and expect the repayments
will be delay 3 years to 2023. Accordingly, the
additional impairment loss of approximately
HK$19,805,000 (2019: HK$15,154,000) was
provided for the balance due from the PRC local
government company to reflect the delay repayment
and increased in the credit risk from such balance.

—ECEFE+-A=+—HILEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continved)

Notes: (Continued)

(if)

(i)

Included in the balance of other receivables as
current assets of the Group as at 31 December
2020 and was loan receivable of RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$20,264,000)
(2019: RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$22,343,000)). Loan receivable was unsecured,
bearing interest at 10% per annum and repayable
in January 2019. In view of the long outstanding,
the management of the Group has made full
impairment on the balance for the year (2019: ECL
of HK$1,000,000).

Included in the balance of deposits classified as
non-current assets of the Group as at 31 December
2020 was deposit of approximately RMB7,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,318,000)
(2019: RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,803,000)) in relation to a proposed acquisition
of 60% equity interest of BhIL T EEELEE
R A &](Foshan City Yi Mei Wedding Photography
Limited*) at a consideration of RMB8,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,931,000). As at
31 December 2020, the proposed acquisition is still
in progress.

Included in the balance of deposits classified as
non-current assets of the Group was a receivable
of approximately RMB64,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$75,655,000) (2019:
RMB64,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$75,655,000)) lent to an independent third
party to construct a theme park located in Foshan
City. In return, the Group obtained the exclusive
operating rights and receive management fee
income once the theme park starts operating.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
management of the Group has estimated an ECL of
approximately HK$7,964,000 (2019: approximately
HK$6,461,000).

Included in the balance of deposits classified
as non-current assets of the Group as at 31
December 2020 was deposit of approximately
RMB24,000,000 (equivalents to HK$28,520,000)
(2019: RMB24,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,343,000)) in relation to a proposed
acquisition of entire equity interest of a company
established in the PRC. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the management of the Group has
estimated an ECL of approximately HK$11,490,000.

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the
acquisition was completed in January 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=-Z=ZF+-A=+—HILFE

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continved)

Notes: (Continued)

(vi) During the year ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, there are a number of other receivables
which individually were immaterial but having
been long outstanding for more than a year. The
management of the Group considered that those
other receivables may not recovered due to the
current economic environment both in the PRC and
Hong Kong, and a full impairment of approximately
HK$8,120,000 (2019: HK$11,291,000) was made
for those balances. In addition, the management of
the Group has estimated an ECL on the remaining
balance of approximately HK$2,552,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

(vii)  Included in the balance of prepayments of the
Group as at 31 December 2020 was a prepaid
commission of approximately HK$47,000,000 to
a financial advisor. The management of the Group
considered the service from the financial advisor
was not executed and the agreement financial
should be voided. Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of this report,
the negotiation between the Group and the financial
advisor is still in progress.

28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES/

BANK OVERDRAFTS

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks
and in hand and bank overdrafts.

Cash at banks earn interests at the floating rates
based on the daily bank deposits rates. Bank
overdrafts carrying interest at market rate which
range from 0.75% per annum below HK$ Prime
Rate to 1% per annum over Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate (2019: range from 0.75% per annum
below HKD Prime Rate to 1% per annum over
Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate).

At 31 December 2020, included in cash and
cash equivalents of the Group was approximately
HK$6,434,000 (2019: approximately HK$5,591,000)
of bank balances denominated in RMB placed
with banks in Hong Kong and the PRC and on
hands, which are not freely convertible into other
currencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-F=+—HLFE

29. TRADE PAYABLES 29. B E F 1A
The Group was granted by its suppliers’ credit REBEHEHERK TI0HE0R (ZF
periods from 30 to 60 days (2019: 30 to 60 days). —NF:30H=E60R)EEH - ENE HIE
The following is the ageing analysis of trade RIBEEZHBAMNRETOT

payables based on invoice date:

2020 2019
—E-THF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET FAET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 963 1,382
31 to 60 days 31260H 392 1,365
61 to 90 days 61£290H 728 1,070
91 to 180 days 91£180H 838 14,724
Over 180 days H#E180H 35,683 17,531
38,604 36,072
30. OTHER PAYABLES AND 30. HttEEIRIEREFTEH
ACCRUALS
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET T
Accruals (note) fEstE A (HsE) 98,066 113,335
Receipts in advance TE U R IE 218 484
Other payables (note) Hth B 5108 (M5E) 91,776 83,574
190,060 197,393
Current mE 129,678 197,393
Non-current IERE 60,382 =
190,060 197,393
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the MiZ: RBE-FT_TF+_A=+—HLFE"
Company completed the Restructuring Transaction, ARARERELAR S B TEFES BT
certain accrual interest, accrual expenses and other ERAREMEBEBARBEAZITIRNDRATR
payables were extinguished by way of issuance of BEHFZHREHE -

New Shares and Convertible Bonds.

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE

31. LOANS FROM SHAREHOLDERS

—ECEFE+-A=+—HILEE

31. RREK

2020 2019
TECTE ks
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FAT
Current liabilities REERE
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (note (a ) nd () BB MRS A (5T (a) & (e) 8,862 541,190
Ms. Law Po Yee (note (b) and (e)) FEET LT (HiEb) Ke) 5,000 24,819
Mr. Yiu Kin Kong (note (c) and (e)) BEiEMI L E (M RE(c) X (e) - 23,448
Mr. Chow Kai Weng (note (d) and (e)) BRI L E (HFEd) &(e) 76,161 =
90,023 589,457
The loans from shareholders are repayable as REE AR THRAEE :
follows:
2020 2019
—E-TE a3
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER FAET
Carrying amount repayable: AR THRAEE ZRAE:
Within one year —F R 20,301 589,457
More than one year, but not exceeding —F LN EETBEBAME
two years 69,722 -
More than two years, but not more than ~ MG LA HET BB EE
five years - -
90,023 589,457
Notes: M 5T
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2020, () REE-ZTE-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE"

the loans from Mr. Sin bear interest at 8%
per annum (2019: ranging from 5.00% to
15.00%), unsecured and were repayable
within two years.

(b) The loan was unsecured and bore interest
at 5.00% per annum and was repayable
within two years.

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the loan was unsecured and bore interest
ranging from 8.00% to 12.00% per annum
and was repayable within two years.

(d) During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the loan was unsecured and bore interest
ranging from 0.1% to 12% per annum and
was repayable within two years.

(e) During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Company completed the Restructuring
Transaction, certain loans from
shareholders were extinguished by way of
issuance of New Shares and Convertible
Bonds,

~'V'N_é}1i’ona| Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Li
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-F=+—HLFE

32. BORROWINGS

32. fE K

2020 2019
T EmiayEes
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHET
Current liabilities REER
Bank borrowing — secured RITER—BER
- Floating rate (notes (a)) —% 8 (M) 16,922 12,128
16,922 12,128
Other borrowings — secured HibfER— B
(note (b) and (d)) ( B 7% () B2.(dl) ) 12,000 81,780
Other borrowings — unsecured H h {8 50— K47
(note (c) and (d)) (Bt 5 (c) K (d)) 38,600 123,237
67,522 217,145
Non-current liabilities ERFHERE
Bank borrowings — secured RITEH—BEH - 6,956
Other borrowings — secured (note (b)) HifER—BER (D) 70,279 =
Other borrowings — unsecured (note (c))  Efth &3 —EIEIF (M35 (c)) 16,759 2,939
87,038 9,895
154,560 227,040
The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows: AEBEERERATHRAERE:
2020 2019
—ES"FTF ki
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH&T
Carrying amount repayable: HARATHERAEE 2 RAEE:
Within one year —F A 67,522 217,145
More than one year, but not exceeding —F LN EETBBAME
two years 87,038 9,895
154,560 227,040
BEEREVILERBERA 71 ZT_TFH
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32. BORROWINGS (Continved)

33.

Notes:

(@

The floating rate bank borrowings of the Group
are secured by the Group’s bank’s deposit of
approximately RMB2,000,000 and bears interest at
4.09% to 6.65% per annum (2019: 6.18% to 6.05%
per annum).

32.

R
B (&
Myt

(a) AEENZERTERARNEENRITE
RH AR 2,000,000 A FE AT
F4.09%%6.65% (Z T —NF: &FF6.18%
£6.05%) °

(b)  The other borrowings were secured by (i) the (b) HMERBATEERER: (VEEEFL
personal guarantee executed by Mr. Sin, (i) share # 1@ A FER ¢ K (i) Glory Max Group Limited
capital of Glory Max Group Limited and EPL and RARFHFARREGRA I RF E13.00%5
bore interest at 13.00% per annum. B

(c)  The other borrowings were unsecured and bore (0 HitERAREERRIZRN F2.50%Z%24.00%
interest ranging from 2.50% to 24.00% per annum WEMEFB(ZZE—NF N T250%F
(2019: from 2.50% to 36.00% per annum). The 36.00%H) FF|K) - HMERER—FEW
other borrowings were repayable within one year to FRAEE(ZZE—NEFE R=FR) - R=F
two years (2019: within the year to three years). As —NE+_A=Z+—B EtMERTBERE
at 31 December 2019, included in other borrowings - B 5t A B 3R IB 4950,160,0007% 7T ©
was an amount of approximately HK$50,160,000
due to Mr. Chow.

(d)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, the (d REEZE-ZZT-_FTF+-_A=+—HILFE"
Company completed the Restructuring Transaction, ARRERELAR D & TFERABITHR
certain borrowings were extinguished by way of MRAIBRER 2R EE-
issuance of New Shares and Convertible Bonds.

= =

LEASE LIABILITIES 33.10E8F

The exposure of the Group’s lease liabilities are as AEEHESERZENT

follows:

2020

—E-THF

HK$’000

FET
Current RE 2,256 13,502
Non-current FERED 33,160 16,261
35,416 29,763
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%

LEASE LIABILITIES (Continved)

eI HRRM
—ECEE+-A=t+—HILEE

33. *ﬂ.gﬁ'fﬁ (#&

2020 2019
—BC%E T-NE
Present Present
Minimum value of Minimum value of
lease lease lease lease
payments liabilities payments liabilities
REAEMFR I SRR e HEAERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TR THET FTAET
Minimum lease payment due: SERERFAT B 8-
— Within one year -—FR 6,260 2,256 15,776 13,502
- more than one year but not ——FUEETBBRE
more than five years 18,827 4,234 10,202 2,468
- Over five years —RENE 91,323 28,926 83,433 13,793
116,410 109,411
Future finance charges ARHBER (80,994) (79,648)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 35,416 29,763
Amounts due for settlement within ~ —F R F| H & E H5
one year (shown under current (FIREBEEE T)
liabilities 2,256 13,602
Amounts due for settlement —FRIBEE N
after one year 33,160 16,261
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate HRAREEBS BN METITESERMEN

applied to lease liabilities range from 4.5% to 15%
(2019: 4.5% to 15%).

The Group leases leasehold land, warehouse and
office premises for operation and these lease
liabilities were measured at the present value of the
lease payment that are not yet paid. All leases are
entered at fixed prices.

BONDS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company issued the bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$526,871,000
at par value (“Bonds”) in accordance with the
conditional placing and underwriting agreement
entered into between the Company and the
independent placing agents. The bonds have a
maturity from three months to 8 years from the
dates of issue and bear coupon interest ranging
from 0% to 9.6% per annum, accrued daily and
payable annually in arrears. A default rate ranging
from 0% to 9.60% per annum will be charged on
any sum due and payable under the Bonds from
the due date to the date of actual payment in full.
The Bonds were denominated in HKS$.

F4.5%%E15% (ZF—NF :4.5%%E15% ) ©

AEEREBREFEMHERAE L A
BERAE ZEMEEERHARAINNE
ENFFBREFE - 2HBEHREEER
FH

34. &%

ESZ:ZF: E-NF+_A=+—HILFE K
ARREAR AR RE R TN

1¢@E%&@§%’T£;’JE§ REBERTASEER
#)526,871,0008 T fEH ([E5]) - EZ%

EERETHHEF=ZEAZENFI -
RN FEHEFO%EIC " ﬂgtlﬂi%u‘l'l
BEFRPARAIAFIRNFE - MAREITZE
EFENIMIPEMNSE BRIYBEESR
B2H I HBHEEF0%EI.C0%RELF
BENFNE - ZEBHFUBILFE-

\\
)

=

[ BREMLEBBERA 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

34. BONDS (Continuved)

34. 1% (&)

The movement for the year on the bonds was as KFEENEFMNEBHOT
follows:
2020 2019
ZECTE iy ks
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FE&ET
Balance at 1 January R—A—HZ&% 1,153,283 1,023,319
Proceeds from issue of the bonds BITREFMERIE - 526,871
Transaction cost allocated to the liability D EEBBEID X H KK
component - (24,302)
Interest expense (note 9) FEZH (M) 41,491 144,797
Interest paid during the year FAENHE - (35,398)
Repayment during the year FREERE - (482,004)
Debt extinguishment BEREE (1,194,774) =
Balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—RB2#&% - 1,153,283
Carrying amount repayable: AR THRAEE ZRAE:
Within one year —FR - 769,105
More than one year but not exceeding —FUEETBBRE
two years - 220,088
More than two years but not exceeding MELEENBRAF
five years - 91,612
More than five years AFMNRE - 72,478
- 1,153,283

BENR-_BE—NE+-_A=+—B2Z22A
4 /617,072,000/8 L o & H 2 AR B T A
HBERAREENF9.96%F11.69%85IF ~
BeREstE UWIARARBSEHRE e

The fair value of the Bonds at 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately HK$617,072,000. The
fair value of the Bonds are calculated using cash
flows discounted at rate on the borrowings rate
ranging from 9.96% to 11.69% per annum and are
within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

REBEE_ZT_TE+_A=+—HILtEE"

ARABEREBEEAR S ZEFBEFABITHR
kAR ER 2z TABE-

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company completed the Restructuring Transaction,
the Bonds were extinguished by way of issuance of
New Shares and Convertible Bonds.
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 29 June 2020, the Company completed issued
the Convertible Bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$1,244,876,198. The Convertible
Bonds bear interest at 1% annual coupon rate
payable annually from the issue date of the
Convertible Bonds. The conversion period of the
Convertible Bonds is from 29 June 2023 to 28
June 2025 during which period the holders of the
Convertible Bonds can convert the Convertible
Bonds into shares of the Company at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.55 per conversion share
(the “Conversion Shares”). Assuming the exercise
in full of the conversion rights (the “Conversion
Rights”) attached to the Convertible Bonds at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.55 per Conversion
Share, an aggregate of 2,263,411,269 Shares (with
an aggregate nominal value of HK$226,341,126.9)
will be issued.

The fair value of the liability component of the
Convertible Bonds was calculated using future
repayments discounted at an estimated discount
rate of 9.31% per annum. The residual amount of
approximately HK$3,933,000 (being the difference
between the fair value of the Convertible Bonds
at issuance date and the fair value of the liability
component on initial recognition) is assigned as the
equity component and is included in equity heading
convertible bond equity reserve. The liability
component is subsequently stated at fair value,
with changes recorded in consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

R PSRRI

—ECEE+-A=t+—HILEE

35. AR E %

R-ZZE-_ZFEXNA-+THIB KQATKE
1T & 4% 51,244,876, 198,%759‘77%1&
EH-ARBREFRTFEME 1% E

B R ESHET E%itiiﬁwﬂ%%
BAHEZBRERBAE-_ZT-_=FA=-1tNLEZE
—E_RFENAZFTNB HEABERES
BA AR IEYSBRE SR BR%H0.55%8
T AR EEE R AR R R RGD ([
&5 1) - BERIEV SRR ESRIBARIGK0.55
%ﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬂ#&ﬁ#WﬁZ%k%U%
PR AE ) - BB 1T A H£2,263,411,2690% A% 17
(4 TE 8 /226,341,126.97 7T ) ©

AR ESFAERD E’J”&ﬁﬁfﬂﬁi&?ﬂ%
MG ITERFRRER M E - Rr S
%E?’JSQSSOOO%E(EHT%@H&E#E@%&GE
HORARERAES J‘S’\?)Jffﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ’]@ﬁ
BEHER) IR S Rat AR R(E
ﬁ*&mfﬁ%%ﬂ’ﬂémﬁ?t’%ﬁﬁ DHERBER
RENE AREHRGIATLALEE
W R AR

=

[ BREMLEBBERA 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ=Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE

36. PROMISSORY NOTES 36. B HEE

On 14 April 2018, the promissory note with
principal amount of HK$104,640,000 (the “PN 47)
at par value was issued to settle part of the
principal and interest accrued on the Convertible
Bonds in accordance with the supplementary
loan agreement dated 14 April 2018 entered into
between the Company and Mr. Sin. The PN has
a maturity of approximately 15 months from the
date of issue and bears coupon interest at 8% per
annum, accrued monthly and payable in full on the
maturity date.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company completed the Restructuring Transaction,
the PN 4 was extinguished by way of issuance of
New Shares and Convertible Bonds.

On 13 March 2020, the promissory note with
principal amount of HK$14,100,000 (the “PN 5”)
at par value was issued in accordance with the
SSF Agreement. The PN 5 has a maturity of 1 year
from the date of issue and bears coupon interest
at 4% per annum above the base rate of Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate from time to time,
compounded monthly and payable in full on the
maturity date.

On 13 March 2020, the promissory note with
principal amount of HK$14,100,000 (the “PN 6”) at
par value was issued in accordance with the SSF
Agreement. The PN 6 has a maturity of 2 years
from the date of issue and bears coupon interest
at 4% per annum above the base rate of Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate from time to time,
compounded monthly and payable in full on the
maturity date.

On 13 March 2020, the promissory note with
principal amount of HK$18,800,000 (the “PN 77)
at par value was issued in accordance with SSF
Agreement. The PN 7 has a maturity of 3 years
from the date of issue and bears coupon interest
at 4% per annum above the base rate of Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate from time to time,
compounded monthly and payable in full on the
maturity date.

R-ZZT—N\FOA+HMA REARFE
GAE VB A T —N\FNA+TA
2EXEEHE REERTLASSER
104,640,000 7T < #5215 ([HE R EHE4])
ERATRRES 2P ANE RERFFE -
ZEREENBETRSEAOTRMEARIE
ZERFENESNT ARt WEAREHE R
B Ao

RE=E TE+-_A=Z+—BLEE"
PN/ Tnﬁki%ﬂx% EH EIRAAEIT IR
DRATBRES 2 HEE-

\_?_gi A+=8 RIESSFiH=
NRIREE T $é%ﬁmnwow%n%
%E%ﬁ@@%%#mw%EKWﬁﬁﬁ
AHifE —F 28 ZERTHEAMNES
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁé%ﬁﬂ$m¢ﬂ$mﬁrﬁﬂ
EERN YERIBBEEEIM-

RZZEZEF=A+=H A2 RBRESSF
W EEZEITA S5 A14,100,0008 L K
AEEE ([EEEE6]) &K EEeg #1T
BHETMERE ZERTEAMNES

RITRE EFEEEF R INFE N KA4%5 - & A
EERN YERIHBBEEELI-

NZZEZEF=A+=H A2 RRESSF
Wk R EE 7A€ 58 418,800,000 L K
AEEE ([EEEE7]) R EEE7TE#ET
BHf ZF2E Z8RTHEAMNES

ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬂTMEMTMﬁf&H
EEN YERIBBEERELIM-
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36. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continved) 36. ZH R EE (&
The movement for the years ended 31 December AAEBRBE_ZT_ZEFR_F—NF
2020 and 2019 on the promissory notes were as +-ZA=+—HLEFEZEFHMT:
follows:
PN 4 PN 5 PN 6 PN7 Total
R EH4 RRERS R EH6 RREHT @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FiEn Fan FiEn Tan
As at 31 January 2019 RZE-nE—AR
=1+-H 106,477 - - - 106,477
Effective interest expense (note 11) BB ASH R (Hz11) 8,720 = = = 8,720
As at 31 December 2019 and RZZ-NE+=A
1 January 2020 “+-HAR=-Z-%%
—-A-A 115,197 - - - 115,197
Debt extinguishment EKEE (115,197) - = = (115,197)
Issuance of promissory notes BORAER - 14,100 14,079 18,719 46,898
Effective interest expenses ERFEHY - 470 470 625 1,565
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZTE
+-A=t+-H - 14,570 14,459 19,344 48,463

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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37. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 7. BEEBIERE

ERERIAR A A EERERN AWK RDE
ERAONERERZEEHFAE -

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the tax
rates applicable in the tax jurisdiction concerned.

The following are the deferred tax liabilities THRASEEBANELEHIBEEBERER
recognised by the Group and movements thereon FARES -
during the year.

Revaluation of

properties
YIS
HK$ 000
FET
(restated)
(=E5)
As at 1 January 2019 —NFE—HA—H
As previously reported 5% B 2 W 158,470
Change on accounting policy SEHBRER (158,470)

As at 1 January, as restated and EEH) R
+—H -

RZT—NF—HA—H (4
31 December 2019 =

R-ZF—hF+=H

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$683,792,000 (2019: approximately
HK$665,135,000) available for offsetting against
future profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Included in the estimated unused tax losses
are losses of approximately HK$308,837,000
(2019: approximately HK$294,053,000) that will
expire within 5 years. Other estimated unused tax
losses of approximately HK$374,955,000 (2019:

RBMEBR AEEEFHTADAREE
18 #41683,792,0008 L (ZE— "L F: 4
665,135,000;‘%7%) A RAEEEEABEED

RAIZ AR &M AT RBAHEHETRE
B8 49308,837,0008 L (ZE— N F: 4
294,053,000 ) S8R A F A fEH - b A
=HAR B A 518 49374,955,0008 T ( —Z— N,
F: #9371,082,000/ 70 ) A] SR HA#E 45 - A
A SR PR I B LA T8 BN - B P 4 B R I B 18 AR
RIECERIBEE -

approximately HK$371,082,000) may be carried
forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of these estimated unused
tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit
streams.
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38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. A
Number of Shares Share Capital
L] (&S
Notes
ik

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREBIATZ ERK
Authorised: B
As at 1 January ®»—A—H 6,000,000 6,000,000 600,000 600,000
Increase during the year FREM () 14,000,000 - 1,400,000 -
As at 31 December R+-A=+—8 20,000,000 6,000,000 2,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRYR:
At 1 January ®»—A—H 4,948,170 4,517,160 494,817 451,716
Placing of shares RERH ) - 428,770 - 42,877
Share issued upon exercise of IFEREMBITORS

share options - 2,240 - 224
Share issued upon completion of KRB B EHTREEITH (b)

financial restructuring execrise & in 2,155,120 - 215,512 -
Share issued for settlement of RENTREBERAL ()

financial advisory fee for completion &1 ¥ i & F

of financial restructuring execrise M &7 250,000 - 25,000 =
Share issued for settlement of REMNBEZH 2 HBER ()

financial advisory fee for ERMBITRRNG

possible offer 54,050 - 5,405 -
Share issued for settlement of RENBCENERL )

financial advisory fee for BERER

review of possible offer TR 16,528 - 1,653 =
31 December R+=-A=+—8° 7,423,868 4,948,170 742,387 494,817

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR

[
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continved)

Notes:

(@

On 8 March 2020, the Company increased its
authorised share capital from HK$600,000,000
divided into 6,000,000,000 shares to
HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000
shares by the creation of additional 14,000,000,000
new shares, all of which will rank pari passu with all
existing shares.

In order to improve the Company’s liquidity and
financial position and to restructure its debts,
the Company carried out a financial restructuring
exercise. As part of the financial restricting exercise,
the Company issued 2,155,114,938 ordinary shares
at issue price of HK$0.38 each. The ordinary shares
were issued on 29 June 2020 to the creditors.
to improve the Company’s liquidity and financial
position and to restructure its debts.

On 3 August 2020, 250,000,000 shares were issued
to a financial adviser as settlement of the advisory
fee for completion of financial restructuring exercise.

On 13 August 2020, 54,054,054 shares were issued
to a financial adviser as settlement of the advisory
fee in relation to possible offer.

On 20 November 2020, 16,528,925 shares were
issued to a financial adviser as settlement of the
advisory fee in relation to review of possible offer.

On 15 March 2019, the Company have successfully
placed 428,770,000 shares at placing price of
HK$0.26 per share.

38. BN (7

W :
@

RZE_ZEF=ZANB ARAIERER
14,000,000,0000% %1 3% 15« #§ & & IR A
F600,000,0005% 7T (% A&6,000,000,000
% M%) 1 50 Z=2,000,000,000%8 7T (9 A
20,000,000,000/% &5 ) * s E B’ #& B AT
ERBERMNZEBREMAL -

ARERARRAZRBES RPN UK
BHEE AAREBEHRVBEAR-FAMK
EAMN— D ANQAIEEITEFTR0.38H
JLE172,155,114,938 L @M% - X S LB
RZE_ZFNA-FTNBEITTFEEA
N ERRRZRBE S KT BEMRRTAR
BHRER-

R-IE-_ZTFNA=ZH ARAM—BFH
BB 18 %% 17250,000,0000% A& 19 + LA & 1+ 81 75
SHEMBERER-

R-ZZE_FEFNA+=ZB ARRA—RKY
7% A B 1754,054,054 8 B 15 » A &S 7B 1
ZHNERER-

RZBE-_TFE+—A-+B B RHBE
% 1716,528,925 et - AEREEZER
BMERER-

RZZE—NE=ZA+EHEAB ARBKINUE
E(EEMR0.267 7L AL & 428,770,000/% f& 17 ©
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39. RESERVES

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 159 of the consolidated
financial statements.

The special reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the
shares of the Company issued in exchange for
the shares of the acquired subsidiaries under the
reorganisation.

The contributed surplus account was designated by
the Company within the meaning of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda which represented (i) the
entire amounts standing to the credit balance of
the share premium account of the Company as at
30 June 2010; (i) the transfer of the share premium
arising from capital reduction on 29 September
2010; and (iii) the offset with the accumulated
losses in full up to 31 December 2010.

40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had

39. @

AEEAFERBEFENFHEUENLE
BPNGAMBRRFEIOANERS e
BRANZED -

'RF ) {56 85 46 P W P BT /B8 2 1 B 4 A D (B B R
REINBAR RBRRATKENRE QRO M
BT R EERE R ZRE -

ARBMEENEHRRKR (EELARE
—NAN—FRFE)EOA R BB R B
RIZZE-—ZFRNA=TRHIERDRRER (i)
H-_Z-FFNA -+ NBRFERAEL
B aErEE: RiBBEHEEE T —
EFE+_A=+—HNRFERE-

40. B EKIE

R-B-BER-F-AE+-A=+—A"

the following capital commitments: REEE AT E ARFME
2020 2019
-l B T —
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHET
Contracted but not provided for: EHEENEES: LR
Construction of properties Y ERE 85,239 78,389
Authorised but not contracted for: BHEBKRETL
Construction of properties (Note) W ERED (HFE) 356,506 334,411

Note: Capital commitment for construction in properties
related to capital commitment for construction
of film studio and hotel in Foshan, the PRC. The
authorised amount was approved by the Directors
according to the land lease agreements signed
between Lux Unicorn Limited, the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and the local authority
in Foshan, the PRC, in relation to the leasing of
lands for development of tourism and related
entertainment business and hotel operations. The
completion of constructions and commencement of
operations of the projects shall be within three and
four years respectively from the signing of the lease
agreements.

BiZE: ¥ AR e & AN AR o B0 v B 49 L B GE Y
BERBENERAEER - ESEE
REBEBBERAR (ARAZE2EMBAR)
SR B L T30 B BL AR B L B R
P ESLA R AR R SRS TS OB R X0 1 &
RAIMTBERR EECHANSE-F
MIEEADRNEREERZ R HRFT=
FRUFAKRTIRRALE-

BEREXCEEERA A

[

—E_ZTFR
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41.

42.

BA SRR AL

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group participates in employee social security
plans as required by the regulations in the PRC.
The Group also participates in the Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme to which all qualified
employees of the Group in Hong Kong are entitled.
The assets of the retirement benefit schemes are
held, separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of the trustees. The employees
of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
social security schemes operated by the relevant
local government authorities. The pension plans
are funded by payments from employees and
by the relevant group companies. The amounts
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income represent
contributions payable by the Group at the specified
rates according to the respective plans. The
only obligation of the Group in respect of the
retirement benefit schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had
share options schemes for employee compensation
as set out below.

(@) Post initial public offering share
option scheme

The post initial public offering share option
scheme (“Post-IPO Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved by a resolution of the
sole shareholder dated 22 July 2002 (the
“Effective Date”). Major terms of this scheme
are summarised as follows:

(i) The Post-IPO Option Scheme enables
the Company to grant share options
to selected persons as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the
Group.

ZECERFE+ZRA=t+-HLEEE

42.
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iR 48 R & 2

AEERBPEZAIREL2HEEL R
[Eat &l - K%lﬁ/AmﬁﬂﬁﬁlFE
ZHEREREEZRFIMEATEDFE -
REMNFECEERRNKRECEEDF m
EREAMEZEHZESFE -RPEWNE QA
ZEESAMBEMBFEELH 2 SRE
ArElzK B RS HZESKRRIES
EEBEE AR ZHR NS Bn kE
EERERARZEE/NEERESGE
B ELREN ZHR AEBEABRIKRE
Mgz —BERELFERR-

LURMDAEENNRRS

RIE-_FER-FT—
AEEATIIRERS

NEFE+-A=+—8"
REM T & B0 R AR R AT & o

3G 18 B 1R BB AR 4 T 21

(@ BRXRA

BAAFBREBRESTS (TBRA
FAAEKkEBRESEDKE ST _F
+tAZ+ZB([EZB))E—REN
R%%ﬁﬂﬁ%m&°%ﬁﬁmigﬁ
R

(i) E/X’AF‘%?EH%&E%%%%%WE%$

REAZBHEN A LR D BRGE

ERBEEHAEEFEL TR E
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continved)

(a)

Post initial public offering share
option scheme (Continued)

(i

(i)

The participants of the Post-IPO Option
Scheme include any employee, director,
advisor and consultant, supplier,
customer and shareholder of any
member of the Group as well as any
provider of financial assistance to any
member of the Group.

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the
Company on acceptance of the share
option offer. The share option offer will
be offered for acceptance for a period
of 14 days from the date on which the
offer is granted.

Share options may be granted on such
terms and conditions in relation to their
vesting, exercise or otherwise as the
board of directors of the Company may
determine, provided such terms and
conditions shall not be inconsistent with
any other terms and conditions of the
Post-IPO Option Scheme. The grantees
are not required to hold any share
options or any shares allotted pursuant
to any share options for any minimum
period.

The subscription price for the shares
under the Post-IPO Option Scheme will
be determined by the board of directors
of the Company and notified to each
grantee and will be at least the highest
of (a) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the share option, which must be a
business day, (b) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant
and (c) the nominal value of a share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=-Z=ZF+-A=+—HILFE

42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continved)

(a)

Post initial public offering share
option scheme (Continued)

(vi)  The limit on the number of shares which

(vii)

(viii)

may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO
Option Scheme and other share option
schemes must not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Post-
IPO Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at 17 October 2002, amounting
to 49,219,623 shares (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit"). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit at
any time subject to prior shareholders’
approval. However, the Scheme
Mandate Limit as renewed must not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of the aforesaid shareholders’
approval.

The total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of
the share options granted under the
Post-IPO Option Scheme to each
grantee (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue from time to time. Any
further grant of share options to such
grantee which would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all share options granted and to
be granted to such grantee (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further
grant representing in aggregate over 1%
of the shares in issue, must be subject
to shareholders’ approval with such
grantee and his associates abstaining
from voting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continved)

(a)

(b)

Post initial public offering share
option scheme (Continued)

(ix) A share option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the
Post-IPO Option Scheme at any time
during the period notified by the
board of directors of the Company to
each grantee provided that the period
within which the share option must
be exercised shall not be more than
10 years from the date of grant of the
share option.

x) The Post-IPO Option Scheme
remains valid for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Effective Date. In
addition, the Company may, by ordinary
resolution in general meeting or the
board of directors of the Company may
at any time terminate the operation of
the Post-IPO Option Scheme. Share
options which are granted during the
life of the Post-IPO Option Scheme
may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue.

Pursuant to a special resolution
passed in the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company, the Post-IPO
Option Scheme was terminated on 29
September 2010.

New share option scheme

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in
the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company, a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme”) was approved on 29
September 2010. Major terms of this scheme
are summarised as follows:

(i) The purpose of the New Scheme is
to attract and retain the best available
personnel, to provide additional
incentive to selected person and to
promote the success of the business of
the Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ=Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE

42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 2. UBRNAEEENNRRS
TRANSACTIONS (Continved) (#&)

(b) HrRBRRHESTEI(4F)

(b) New share option scheme
(Continued)

The participants of the New Scheme
include any employee of the Company
or any subsidiary of the Company,
a director, a shareholder, a supplier,
a customer or any subsidiary of the
Company; an agent, adviser, consultant,
strategist, contractor, sub-contractor,
expert or entity that provides research,
development or other technological
support or any valuable services to
Company or any of its subsidiary;
a holder of any securities issued by
Company or any of its subsidiary;

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the
Company on acceptance of the share
option offer. The share option offer will
be offered for acceptance for a period
of 14 days from the date on which the
offer is granted;

No offer of a New Share Option which is
capable of or open for acceptance shall
be made after the expiry of the exercise
period pursuant to the New Scheme;

The subscription price for the share
under the New Scheme will be
determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion at the time of making the
offer of grant of a new share option
but in any case the subscription price
must be at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations

FetEm2uEEaEARARSNE
T BARMIMES ES-
KRR -HER TP AQAE
Al B B A &l s Al AN A &) sk H AT (A
BB 2 B4R A A B s BT S
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LA%E 49 ;
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BIRZ AR M A R RE
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FEE THRMRBBEESHES
@E@?E%fﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂx%%%%m
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A)EBIATAREBERTERN
Hﬁ(ﬁ{%:(ii)ﬁxf REERZEY
AT A ELEEBEBIMEHE
iﬁ%i‘%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ’]ﬁfﬂﬂlmh (i)

sheet on the date of the offer of grant, AR 1D EE
which must be a Business Day; (i) the

average closing price of the shares as

stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily

quotations sheets for the five Business

Day immediately preceding the date of

the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal

value of the shares;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continved)

(b)

New share option scheme

(Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the New
Scheme and any other schemes in
aggregate not exceeding 10 per cent of
the issued share capital of the Company
as at 28 June 2020 (2019: 28 June
2019), amounting to 4,948,170,452
shares (2019: 4,948,170,452 shares)
(the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The
Company may renew the Scheme
Mandate Limit at any time subject to the
approval of the Shareholders in general
meeting provided that such renewed
limit shall not exceed 10 per cent of
the Shares in issue as at the date of
approval of such limit;

The total number of New Shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of
the New Share Options granted to each
grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding Share Options) in any
12 month period shall not exceed 1 per
cent of the relevant class of securities
of the Company in issue. Further New
Share Options may be granted to such
grantee, which, if exercised, would
result in such grantee becoming entitled
to subscribe for New Shares in excess
of the limit, by obtaining approval of
the Shareholders in general meeting
with such grantee and his associate(s)
abstaining from voting;

The share options may be exercised in
whole or in part by the Participant at
any time during the exercise period, i.e.
not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant of the relevant New Share Options
pursuant to the New Scheme, by
delivering to the Company a notice duly
signed in a form approved by the Board
(together with payment of the exercise
price in full in respect of each New
Share to be subscribed for) and delivery
of the New Share Option certificate for
amendment or cancellation; and
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(vii)

(viii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continved)

(b) New share option scheme

292 ;N_(}ﬁ’onal Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limi

¢

(Continued)

(ix)  The New Scheme will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing
on the date on which the New Scheme
becomes unconditional. The Board
may amend any of the provisions of the
New Scheme or withdraw or otherwise
terminate the New Scheme at any
time but no alterations shall be made
to the advantage of any Participant
unless approved by the Shareholders in
general meeting. All New Share Options
granted prior to such termination and
not then exercise shall continue to be
valid and exercisable subject to and in
accordance with the terms of the New
Scheme.

The following table discloses details and
movements of the Company’s share options
held by the directors, eligible employees and
other participants of the Group during the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Outstanding at

2. UBRBEREENNTRR S
()

(b) HrRBRRHESTEI(4F)

(ix) FEPEIRFFT BB EGEZA
EEHOFAER -EFGAIBER
& &1 % &t 8l &9 £ ] 15 5 Sk [
s AR M 7 AR B R AT 8 HERR
FRBRRBRAREG LHtE B
RIS A R RE 2
FHMEET © Fr A ROFT At BIAR LE AT
BB E R HARTTE R ER
R M A R 30X R H At 8
B 160K B T AR PR B S R AR THEE

TRBEEHE_ZT_ETFER_ZT— A
F+-_A=+—HULFEHEET A5
BEEBARASEAMBEERES
HARNTIEREZFERES:

Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding at

1 January during during during 31 December

Option type 2020 the year the year the year 2020

R-B-%%

RZE-%% +=8

-A-H . =+-H

RERESH i) AT 1 REMRH REMTTE RERKY i RATHE
Post-IPO Option Scheme BARRABRE

Btz 58,179 - - (58,179) -

New Scheme EHE 254,472,411 - - (254,380,000) 92,411

Total @it 254,530,590 - - (254,438,179) 92,411

Exercisable at the end of the year RE KA 17 254,530,590 92,411

Weighted average exercise price  flEF 51T (& HK$0.25% T HK$0.25% 7T

Note: No share options under the Post-IPO Option
Scheme nor New Scheme was exercised
during the year ended 31 December 2020:

=
7
Y

AR R 2 BRI 9B IR M B B
FHETOWRERAE S
F+ZA=+—AILFRETE:



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continved)

(b) New share option scheme

2. RO BEENFIRRS

(#&)

(b) HFRBARHESTEI(4F)

(Continued)
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at
1 January during during during 31 December
Option type 2019 the year the year the year 2019
RoE-hE
RZZ-n% TZA
—A-A \ ) ‘ . \ \ =t-A
BRER MARITE REARH RERTTE RERXH HMARITE
Post-IPO Option Scheme BRAFBRE
Bftal 4,073,680 - - (4,015,501) 58,179
New Scheme G 210, 410,579 - (2, 240,000)  (13,698,168) 254, 472,411
Total @it 274, 484,259 - (2,240,000)  (17,713,669) 254, 530,590

Exercisable at the end of the year  RERA{T{E

Weighted average exercise price  JIEFSITE(E

274, 484,259

HK$0 41T

254, 530,590

HK$0 .25% 7T

Note: The following share options under the Mz UWTEHBTHEREABE -
Scheme were exercised during the year —NE+ZRAR=+—HIEFEET
ended 31 December 2019: fi£
For the year ended 31 December 2019 REBE-_T—-hA&E+=-HA=+—H

IEEE

Share price
immediately
Number of Share price at before the date
Date of options granted Shares Exercise date exercise date of exercise
) : Rizii
RHBEREDS Ri&E T fTEBRE B#5in B E
16 May 2017 2,240,000 22 March 2019 0.25 0.35
—Z—-+FERATRAE 2,240,000 —E-hAFf=R=+z=AH 0.25 0.35

HEREIEBERA 7] T _TFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 2. UBRBAEEENFNRRS

TRANSACTIONS (Continved) (#&)

(b) New share option scheme (b) HEERRHESTEI(£E)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2020, the number of RZTZZFEF+_A=+—H RER
shares of which options had been granted EEET  EREEMNRITEBREY
and remained outstanding under the FEBRDEEB B2411BE (=T — A
share option scheme was 92,411 (2019: % 1 254,530,590/ ) AR RN E B
254,530,590) representing approximately HEBITRAN01% (T —h&F:
0.1% (2019: 5.1%) of the Company’s issued 5.1%) o NEFHH T & K FR 7R0.39
shares capital at that date. The weighted F(ZE—NF:1.89F) -

average remaining contractual life was 0.39
years (2019: 1.39 years).

Options granted are fully vested at the date of FIHOERERNRLE A RREEE -
grant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continved)

(c)

(d)

Issued of shares under specific
mandate in relation to advisory
service of financial adviser

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Company has appointed Oriental Patron
Asia Limited (“OPAL”), as the financial adviser
to the Company to advise on and assist
in a potential financial restructuring as to
improving the Company’s financial position
charging an advisory fee of HK$50,000,000.
On 26 August 2019, the Company and OPAL
agreed that the advisory fee is to be paid in
the form of issuing and allotting 250,000,000
newly issued and fully paid-up shares, such
shares shall be issued and allotted to OPAL
simultaneously with the new shares to be
issued to the Scheme Creditors under the
Scheme upon its completion.

The Group recognised expense of
HK$28,305,000 (2019: 21,695,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2020 in this
respect.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Company has appointed Yu Ming
Investment Management Limited (“Yu Ming”),
as financial adviser to advise the Company
on the conditional voluntary share exchange
offer by the Company to acquire all of the
issued shares in the share capital of Convoy
Global Holdings Limited, subject to fulfilment
of certain conditions (“Possible Offer”), in
return the Yu Ming charging an advisory fee of
HK$10,000,000. The Company and Yu Ming
agreed that the advisory fee is to be paid in
the form of issuing and allotting 54,054,054
newly issued and fully paid-up shares.

Further, the Company has appointed Yu Ming,
as financial adviser to advise the Company on
review of the Possible Offer, in return Yu Ming
charging an advisory fee of HK$2,000,000.
The Company and Yu Ming agreed that the
advisory fee is to be paid in the form of
issuing and allotting 16,528,925 newly issued
and fully paid-up shares.

2. RO BEENFIRRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE

43. DEEMED PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual R

On 20 March 2020, a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Nation Arts Education, increase
its registered capital from RMB100,000 to
RMB5,000,000 through investment from the
Group and inviting a new shareholder (“New
Shareholder”). The equity interest held by the
Group was reduced from 100% to 70%. Since
the Group remained control over Nation Arts
Education and thus the increase of registered
capital is considered as a deemed partial
disposal without loss of control and Nation
Arts Education remains a subsidiary of the
Group in 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Group
and the New Shareholder, paid up the
increased registered capital.

A summary of the financial impact of the
deemed partial disposal:

—E-EFE+-A=t-

ALLFE

A3. RAIEE o

& M L F

R-ZE-ZTE=A_+RH 2EMNBLR

FAHEHEEBAERERE RS AH
Hﬁ%(F%ﬁHﬁ%J)’H?;,\ufﬂﬁéﬂiEﬁ/\
E#100,0007T3E 10 Z A R #5,000,000
Tee AR B A B E B100%8 D =
70% HARNAKEEDERERFHES
b BUEEME AR R AREK
BN HE ﬁﬁlé’ﬁ%ﬁ(aﬁé:
Z_TENR/AKENMER

RZE-ZEF+-A=+—1H K5E
MR EG R R F MM E A -

BEMOHENMBZEMRR

HK$’000
FERT

Capital received from the New Shareholder
Add: Net liabilities value of

Nation Arts Education recognised

as non-controlling interests

Difference on Deemed Disposal of
Nation Arts Education recognised in equity

On 10 December 2019, a wholly-owned
subsidiary, BFILTEEERBEERFRA
&l (Formerly known as fi L1 7 B 2 [& £ ik
EHRAR) ("HEAEZR"), disposed of 20%
and 10% of its equity interest to shareholder
A and shareholder B (collectively referred
completion of the as “Shareholders A&B”)
respectively. Upon disposal, the equity interest
held by the Group was reduced from 100% to
70%. Since the Group remained control over
B # € 2 thus it remains a subsidiary of the
Group in 2019.

R R WHR B B AR =
n: HERRIFIERES

HEHEBEFE 638
RERERZBIEHE
BEHE 2z EH 638

i)

T-hF+-_A+B 2EWER
ABILTEEEAMEEEAR QA
(AT LTREERKERRAR])
(TE&ERZ])DRIMREARKREB
(S REAKRB]) HEH20%X10%
E - RHETEKE AEEFEHR
HEH100%H 2 E£70% - AR AN &£ B 1)
HEZERBEFLZEHE RER=_F
—NENAEREBNKHERQA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

DEEMED PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF A3. GREHBDLHERB LT (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continved)
Up to 31 December 2020, none of the Group nor HE —EFF+A=+—H K&£EEH:
shareholder A and shareholder B paid up any Hx%A& %Bi’J KRBT FMEAR-
registered capital.
A summary of the financial impact of the deemed REFH LENH B ERS
partial disposal:
HK$’000
FTHET
Capital received from the Shareholders A&B WA EAKBUELH & A -
Add: Net liabilities value of £ [& & recognised :ERAERER
as non-controlling interests Bl EER A EFE 98
Difference on Deemed Disposal of & £ [ Z RESERZRIELE
recognised in equity BEER L ZRE 98
The directors of the Company consider that the ARBEZRE AEENFEEREZEN
Group’s non-controlling interests were insignificant SEMEELIAER AR ZMEFERN
to the Group and thus are not separately presented BHmEPEHEEB2IIEERER LN
in these financial statements for both years. In BEEBEIZEEZENBARNPKE
addition, no separate financial information of these ¥} o
non-wholly owned subsidiaries is required to be
presented.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 414 BRI RS
Save as disclosed in notes 8, 11, 29, 33 and 36 to Bréz & B 5 KRBT I8 - 11 29 - 33 K% 36FT
the consolidated financial statements, the Group BRI A& Iﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ?’i”?&% :
entered into the following transactions with related
parties:
2020
—E-TE
HK$’000
TFHT
Interest paid to directors ENERHE - 2,574
Interest paid to shareholders EATIREF S 41,124 58,246
Compensation of key management TEEE SR
personnel
The Directors consider that they are the only key ZEERAR BERFAEEZZIEZEEREAR.
management personnel of the Group and details of {&wE’JM%%i’%ﬁK\\W‘E‘M °

their compensation are set out in note 16.

=
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)

45.

B R R R EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZ=Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE
B 3E Al
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 45 BEE B FiE 4+ B 2 ¥R
The table below details changes in the Group’s TERAVNASEREZHAELEREZHEE)
liabilities arising from financing activities, including &?‘Efﬁ@&%fﬁiﬂﬂ_ﬁﬁﬂ’l """"" fB) BB IR
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising FREXAEE i/ubga%&_j@ﬂixfﬁimui
from financing activities are those for which cash H%%’ﬁiﬁi%zﬁﬁ EiReaRemneaRAZHE
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in EEMBEERENE f'a BE-
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.
Loans from Lease Convertible  Promissory
shareholders  Borrowings liabilities Bonds bond note Total
ik
REER L HEER &% RiE% RRAER Foh
(note 31) (note 32) (note 33) (note 34) (note 35) (note 36)
(MsE31) (Mits2) (M5E33) (Pt34) (5E35) (PE36)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAR FHL TAR FHL TAR FHL
At 31 December 2018 and W=E-\%¥+=A=+-AH
1 January 2019 601,031 193,059 24,199 1,023,319 - 106,477 1,948,085
Financing cash flows 2,843 24,169 3,333 (10,904) - - 19,441
Finance costs recognised Eﬁgwu aﬂﬁﬁﬂ" 58,245 30,376 2,287 144,797 = 8,720 244,425
Transfer to other payables and accruals B E H {158
fERT 3R (72,614) (20,085) - (3,929) S = (96,628)
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEEREBYE
differences (48) (479) (56) - - - (583)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE+=A=1+—H
1 January 2020 k-Z-%%-f-B 589,457 227,040 29,763 1,153,283 - 115,197 2,114,740
Issue of promissory note for prepaid REARIETRLEE
expenses - - - - - 46,897 46,897
Financial restructuring HBEA (585,714) (67,658) - (1,194,774) 825,522 (115,197)  (1,137,821)
Financing cash flows BERERE 84,445 (19,902 (288) = = = 64,255
Finance costs recognised BEAREK 41,124 20,181 5,425 41,491 40,494 1,566 150,281
Transfer to other payables and accruals ~ EEEEMEMFIER
fERT 3 (39,289) (6,362) (1,524) - - = (47,175)
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEESZEYE
differences - 1,261 2,040 - - - 3,301
At 31 December 2020 W-2-ZF+-A=+-H 90,023 154,560 35,416 - 866,016 48,463 1,194,478

46.

47.

MAJOR NON-CASH
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company completed the Restructuring Transaction,
by which the Company allotted and issued, in
aggregate, 2,115,114,938 New Shares at the issue
price of HK$0.38 per share and the Convertible
Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,244,876,198 to the Creditors to discharge
and release the debts owing by the Company to
the creditors in full.

DIVIDEND

No dividend has been proposed or declared by the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020
(201.9: Nil).

46.

47.
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R PSRRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 H#E=-Z=_ZF+-A=+—HILFE

48. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 29 January 2021, the Company entered
into a sale and purchase agreement
(the “Agreement”) with Advanced Oasis
International Holding Limited (the “Seller”)
and Chu Hin Ming, Alfonso (the “Guarantor”),
pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire from the
Seller the entire issued share capital
of Majestic Bravo Limited (the “Target
Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Target Group”) at the consideration of
HK$90,000,000 (the “Consideration”) (the
“Acquisition”), which shall be settled by the
allotment and issue of 900,000,000 shares of
the Company (the “Consideration Shares”) by
the Company to the Seller upon completion
of the Acquisition (“Completion”).

Upon completion of the proposed
restructuring to be taken by the Target
Company prior to Completion (the
“Restructuring”), the Target Company will
through its subsidiaries hold 100% ownership
of the 26 units service apartment of Golden
Straits Morib, situated at Kawasan Kanchong
Laut Mukim Morib Banting State of Selangor,
Malaysia (the “Target Apartments”).

On 17 April 2021, the Company entered
into the Subscription Agreement with the
Investor, pursuant to which the Investor has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the
Company has conditionally agreed to issue,
the 2021 Convertible Bonds on the terms and
subject to conditions set out therein.

Upon full conversion of the 2021 Convertible
Bonds at the conversion price of HK$0.10 per
conversion share (the “2021 Conversion Share”)
(subject to adjustments), a total of 250,000,000
2021 Conversion Shares will be issued. The
2021 Conversion Shares will be allotted and
issued pursuant to the general mandate.

49. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 22 October 2021.

48 EH B RSB

i) R-ZE-_—F—HF=-+hhB KXAF
BIRGERIERBER AR ([EH]) R
KER (ERADFYEE DS ([
) OB ARAEBREREREA
U B Majestic Bravo Limited ([ B 122
Al EBEREMBATNGEIBIZEEEHE])
Z2EaHFeBTRA(TKRESE]) R
{& /590,000,000 T ([KE]) - HR
WHEEEENK ([ER])BBEARRAR
& 77 Bt % K %% 77900,000,0000% &K A A
D (TRERG]) T

pa)

FEERARNRTERAGETNREESE
BTEEDERE BERABFEBR
H [} B 2 545 A Golden Straits MoribfY
6EEMRBARE ([BERFE]H
100%F B # » B 12 A {1 R Kawasan
Kanchong Laut Mukim Morib Banting
State of Selangor, Malaysia °

iy RZE_—FWOA++tH AARHEE
BEIUREDZ B REEEK
HRERE MARREKEERERETT
T —FABRES HAREES
BT S G TR0 52 EAG R T IR PR -

B (T =—FBBRMD])0.10/8
T (A FHAE)NBRRETHERE
15 3 174 $£250,000,0001 8 — T — — 5
WA e — T - —FMR LMD G IRE
— PR T AR REIT

49 HE B I AR

BE_T-_ZHF+_A=1+—BLEFENLE
AUBBRREN _T-_—&F+A-+_P%
BEEgHERM-

AEMREX(EBERA A —T-F45H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=-Z=ZF+-A=+—HILFE

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 50. 7K~ B B9 B 7 AROR #Ro3k K R
POSITION AND RESERVES OF ]
THE COMPANY
2019
T—NF
HK$’000
FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment R ] 15 1
Right-of-use assets TRAEEE 3,213 =
Investments in subsidiaries MEARZIRE - 882
3,228 883
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposit and other BNREBE -Ee Rk
receivables H b fE U FRIE 50,989 16,988
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A B B - 1,611,484
Cash and bank balances B& RIRTTHE R 7,354 255

58,343 1,628,727

Current liabilities ) R=R

Other payables and accruals H b fEF 5KIB &V EA 105 101,610
Amounts due to subsidiaries N NGIE 3,565 19,399
Loans from shareholders IR E - 583,879
Borrowings B 30,000 149,700
Bonds (%2 - 769,105
Promissory note AR R 14,570 115,197
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,370 -

49,610 1,738,890

Net current assets/(liabilities) mEEE(8R)EE 8,733 (110,163)

Total assets less current liabilities SELBARREBER 11,961 (109,280)

Non-current liabilities EREEE

Other payables and accruals Hib (N RBEREFTER 60,382 =

Lease liabilities HESRE 1,952 =

Loans from shareholders fERE R 69,722 =

Borrowings IEEA 87,036

Bonds B - 376,414

Promissory note HOH B R 33,893 =

Convertible bonds A A A% (E 5 866,016 =
1,119,001 376,414

Net liabilities BfEi%8E (1,107,040) (485,694)

Capital and reserves BARRGHE

Equity attributable to owners of RAFIER ARMLER

the Company

Share capital H§$ 742,387 494 817

Reserves & (1,849,427) (980,511)

Total equity W45 (1,107,040) (485,694)

300 National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-F=+—HLFE

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 50. <~ &) BY B B AR O R Ak K
POSITION AND RESERVES OF & )
THE COMPANY (Continved)
The Company’s statement of financial position was KRR ZHMBERABERERETEN_Z
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of T+ A+ ZHHERERETE XA
Directors on 22 October 2021 and are signed on its TIESERRESSESE:
behalf by:
Chow Kai Weng Cheng Wang Chun
R ERSLER
Director Director
Ea E

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BiZE=—ZF=FF+=-B=+—HLFE

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 50. 75 5] 89 B 75 AR O 3R 3} K2 &
POSITION AND RESERVES OF & (#)
THE COMPANY (Continved)

Movement in the Company’s reserves AT A REE
Convertible Share
Share Capital bonds equity  Contributed options  Accumulated
The Company premium reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total
THERES
X485 R & EXGiE RLfE B4R BRERG 2iER &t

HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TER TiEn

Balance at 1 January 2019 N-B-NE-B-BHER 804,495 5217 - 76,471 H912 (1166917 (23876
Share issued upon exercise of share options 77 BB AR IE AT & 1T A0AX {3 583 - - - (257) - 326
Placing of shares ROEE 61,914 - - - - - 61,914
Equity-settled share-based payment NEREEZRONARR

expenses - - - - 21,695 - 21,695
Lapse of share options BRELK - - - S (13,973) 13,973 =
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - (825,684) (825,684)
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE-AF+-A=1+-H

Bis 866,992 5277 - 76,471 2377 (1978628  (980511)

Issue of convertible bonds arising from RxmIBEAMmELT

the completion of financial restructuring MR ES - - 3,933 - - - 3,933
Share issued to the creditor upon completion R E £ R HTRER

of placing of new shares BEARTHRN 183,184 - - - - - 183,184
Share issued by settlement of RN TRIBEE L B

financial advising fee for the completion of BB RMETHR R

financial restructuring 25,000 - - - (21,695) - 3,305
Equity-settled share-based payment NEREEZRANTER

expenses 4,942 - - - - - 4,942
Lapse of share options BREXH - - - - (3,016) 3,016 -
Loss for the year TEEFE - - - - - (1,084,280) (1,064,280

Balance at 31 December 2020 RZ2-2§+-A=+-H
okt 1,080,118 5,277 3,933 76,471 24,666 (3,039,892) (1,849,427)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=Z=ZF+=B=+—HLFE

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION AND RESERVES OF
THE COMPANY (Continved)

Movement in the Company’s reserves
(Continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as
a result of capital reorganisation and represents the
entire amounts standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company as at 30 June
2010 and the credits arising from capital reduction
for eliminating or setting off the accumulated losses
of the Company from time to time. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare
or pay dividend, or make a distribution out of
the contributed surplus, if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that: (i) it is, or would after
the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as
a result of the reorganisation and represents
the excess of the combined net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange
thereof.

50. A 7] B9 B 7 AR O 3R 3R K &
& (#)

XATMRBES (&)

el

!

ARAMESBBRTYEARANEEAME S A
ARAR_E—EFRA=THNRMNEE
FREVERZ BRI AMEEER AL
HBRREEADA TN R EE - RET
RE-NN—FREE FXRRANEHEH
FRAT DR AT WAEESBEEMBE: )
RAETEERN B ERMEHRTE RIS
A 3 IR & T RE S H B B B (K (i) A
ANRBEMAZREEGEAMINRERER
HE #TRAERMD G ERNAM  JIAR
ATREESRRPERIKMNBRERIEL
7K °

y
pul

ARRMEANFEEEAMES  BFK
BHBARNAHEEFESLARRMER
REMBITHRANEENRD

HEREXCEEBERR A —FT-_ZFR
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
I mE

FINANCIAL RESULTS M5 EE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
b 2l —T-fF T\ ZT—+F ZZT-<F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET AT THT AT FHET
(restated) (restated)
(lE75) (BE35)

Revenue WA 39,183 182,002 158,837 221,372 57,827
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRERIFE (BE) 43,491 (605,242) (415,558) (193,533) (327,092
Income tax expense FEHEY - - - - -
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE/ (BE) 43,491 (605,242) (415,558) (193,533) (327,092)
Attributable to: WAL :
Owners of the Company NG 2PN 44,662 (604,467) (493,616) (193,529) (327,091)
Non-controlling interests kR (1,171) (775) ) () (1)
43,491 (605,242) (493,618) (193,533) (198,533)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE -BERER

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
et kW —T-fF -\ ZE—+F CZE-<F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET AL FET TET
(restated) (restated)

(&s51) (&s5)

Total assets BELR 1,108,355 1,533,392 1,723,879 2,617,586 2,377,447
Total liabilties aERE (1,426,093)  (2,356,934)  (2,054787)  (1,977,155)  (1,737,469)
(317,738) (823,542) (330,908) 640,431 639,978

Equity attributable to the A UNGIE 2N
owners of the Company FEfhiEs (315,288) (822,999) (331,140) 640,197 639,740
Non-controlling interests R R (2,450) (543) 232 234 238

(317,738) (823,542) 330,908 640,431 639,978
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